Lowell City Council and Planning Commission
Joint Meeting
Tuesday, October 18,2022 at 6:00 p.m.

Lowell City Council
Regular Meeting
To follow the joint meeting (estimated to begin at 7:30 p.m.)

Lowell Rural Fire Protection District Fire Station 1
389 N. Pioneer Street, Lowell, OR 97452

Members of the public are encouraged to provide comment or testimony through the
following:

= Joining in person or by phone, tablet, or PC. For details, click on the event at
www.ci.lowell.or.us.

= In writing, by using the drop box at Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street,
Lowell, OR 97452.

= By email to: admin@ci.lowell.or.us.

Lowell City Council and Planning Commission Joint Meeting Agenda

Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance
Councilors: Mayor Bennett ___ Harris ___ Stratis ___ Weathers ___ Murray ___

Commissioners: Dragt___ Kintzley ___ Hall ___

Approval of Agenda

New Business
1. Consider volunteer applications to fill vacancies on the Planning Commission - Discus-
sion/ Possible action
a. Jason Pickett
b. Bill George
c. At this time, City Council may vote to appoint one or more of the applicants
d. Swearing in of new Planning Commissioners (if applicable)

The meeting location is accessible to pesons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing
impaired of other accommodations for persons with disabilities must be made at least 48 hours before
the meeting to City Clerk Sam Dragt at 541-937-2157.




City Council Meeting Agenda

2. Review amendments to the City of Lowell development code and discussion with staff
and project consultants - Discussion
a. Presentation by Henry Hearley, Associate Planner, Lane Council of Governments; Ja-
cob Callister, Principal Planner, Lane Council of Governments; and Zoe Anton, Pro-
gram Director and Planner, The Urban Collaborative
b. Questions and answers from Planning Commission and City Council
c. Discussion of next steps and project timeline

Other Business

Community Comments

Adjourn the Joint Meeting.

The City Council Regular Meeting Will Follow After a 5-Minute Break

Lowell City Council Regular Meeting Agenda (estimated to begin 7:30 p.m.)

Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance
Councilors: Mayor Bennett ___ Harris ___ Stratis ___ Weathers ___ Murray ___

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda
Council members may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed

as the first business item of the meeting.

Approval of the minutes for the September 20, 2022 regular meeting

Approval of the minutes for the October 4, 2022 regular meeting and executive session
August 2022 financial statements

September 2022 check register

B W e

Page 2 of 3



City Council Meeting Agenda

Public Comments

Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Council may ask questions but will not
engage in discussion or make decisions based on public comment at this time. The Mayor
may direct the City Administrator to follow up on comments received. When called, please
state your name and address for the record.

Direct all comments to the Council through the Mayor. All speakers are expected to be polite,
courteous, and respectful when making their comments. Personal attacks, insults, profanity,
and inflammatory comments will not be permitted.

Council Comments (three minutes per speaker)

Staff Reports
1. City Administrator report

2. Public Works report
3. Police reports - July and August

Public Hearings

0ld Business

New Business

1. Motion to authorize the City Administrator to place an order of $4,236 with Brodart and
an order of $8,785 with Ingram, totaling $13,021, to acquire books, DVDs, and other
materials for the Maggie Osgood Library collection. - Discussion/ Possible action
a. Presentation by Peggy O’Kane, Library Director

Other Business

Mayor Comments

Community Comments: Limited to two (2) minutes if prior to 9:30 P.M.

Adjourn the Regular Meeting

Page 3 of 3



Agenda Item Sheet
City of Lowell City Council

|Type of item: | Appointments

[tem title/recommended action:

Consider volunteer applications to fill vacancies on the Planning Commission — Discus-sion/
Possible action

a. Jason Pickett b. Bill George c. At this time, City Council may vote to appoint one or more of
the applicants d. Swearing in of new Planning Commissioners (if applicable)

Justification or background:

Two vacancies exist on the Planning Commission. The October edition of "The Bridge"
has a "Notice of planning commission vacancy," which encouraged members of the
public to apply to fill the vacancy. Staff also published notice of the vacancies and
request for applications on the city website. In response, the city received volunteer
applications from Jason Pickett and Bill George. At this meeting, city council may vote
to appoint the applicants. This item is placed first on the joint meeting agenda to give
the applicants the opportunity to participate in the joint meeting if they are
appointed.

Budget impact:

N/A

Department or Council sponsor:

|Planning Commission

Attachments:

Volunteer applications from Jason Pickett and Bill George

|Meeting date: | 10/18/2022|




VOLUNTEER APPLICATION
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES

ICIXYO"' ]]

Contact Information

Name: | Jaenss Yclees

Street Address:

Mailing Address:

City/State/Zip Code:

Home Phone:

Work Phone:

E-Mail Address:

Background

Years of Residence in Lowell: o

Place of Employment: Lo aall S hn! INstere?

Occupation:

Educational Background: H.\-); Sehos] Drploma
Jouaieqman shp— TRé®E

Prior Civic Activities:

Boards, Commissions, or Committees of Interest

Please check all of the following Boards, Commissions, or Committees that interest you:

City Council
0 Budget Committee
/¥ Planning Commission
Parks and Recreation Committee
0 Economic Development Committee
Library Committee
0 Blackberry Jam Festival Committee

(1 Other short-term task groups



Special Skills or Qualifications

Summarize any special training, skills or experience you may have pertinent to the Board, Commission,
or Committee to which you are applying.

20+ yanes  OF  Gowsfmatow  ERpERIDIE

8 t  yeses ?ub\r’t.. em?lo.tm‘\' (/Syf.wf})

Motivation
Discuss your motivation for serving on this Board, Commission, or Committee.

W‘ﬁ Co mmus Jy #res /‘j esite P> bethere 4"*7 &,ﬂ.w_ﬂ?

Special Notice

Please be advised that members of the City Council and Planning Commission are required to file an
annual Statement of Economic Interest with the State of Oregon.

Agreement and Signature

By submitting this application, I affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete. I understand
that if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions, or other misrepresentations
made by me on this application may result in my immediate dismissal.

Name (printed) Jpgom  PrekeT
Signature Q -dp P——%\
Date d ‘?/ A 3/ 2022
Our Policy

It is the policy of the City of Lowell to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,
religion, national origin, gender, sexual preference, age, or disability. The City of Lowell accepts
applications from potential volunteers throughout the year and will hold applications until vacancies
exist on specific boards, commissions, or committees. Thank you for completing this application form
and for your interest in volunteering with us.

Applications may be submitted by mail, in person, or email to:

City of Lowell

P.O. Box 490

107 East Third Street
Lowell, OR 97452
volunteer@ci.lowell.or.us




VOLUNTEER APPLICATION

Ic.w or 11 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES

Contact Information

s 27
/e OCORGE

Name:

Street Address:

Mailing Address:

City/State/Zip Code:

Homefhone:
Work Phone:

E-Mail Address:

Background

Years of Residence in Lowell: / f

Place of Employment: .

Occupation: V(Z’/l’lé 2

Educational Background: @VP[ E’Tﬁy /Z MDE_
LLeeTrRICAC A SLBAI e «%}wz;

Prior Civic Activities: Vfﬁﬂl‘/wﬁ _ al'ﬂ/ @A)CI(, B ﬁﬂfjc g’
ribyon

Boards, Commissions, or Committees of Interest

Please check all of the following Boards, Commissions, or Committees that interest you:

0 City Council

1 Budget Committee

#” Planning Commission

(J Parks and Recreation Committee

0 Economic Development Committee
0 Library Committee

0 Blackberry Jam Festival Committee

Other short-term task groups



Special Skills or Qualifications

Summarize any special training, skills or experience you may have pertinent to the Board, Commission,
or Committee to which you are applying.

e Devecotey Lprp - OviLT $vses

Motivation
Discuss your motivation for serving on this Board, Commission, or Committee.

Toraesia ,uJ TiHe De/eeoymer S& Loy,

Special Notice
Please be advised that members of the City Council and Planning Commission are required to file an
annual Statement of Economic Interest with the State of Oregon.

Agreement and Signature

By submitting this application, I affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete. I understand
that if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions, or other misrepresentations
made by me on this application may result in my immediate dismissal.

_— z
Name (printed) sl pEO% é
Signature

Date ./0__./,_ mzz

Our Policy

It is the policy of the City of Lowell to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,
religion, national origin, gender, sexual preference, age, or disability. The City of Lowell accepts
applications from potential volunteers throughout the year and will hold applications until vacancies
exist on specific boards, commissions, or committees. Thank you for completing this application form
and for your interest in volunteering with us.

Applications may be submitted by mail, in person, or email to:

City of Lowell

P.0O. Box 490

107 East Third Street
Lowell, OR 97452
volunteer@ci.lowell.or.us




Agenda Item Sheet
City of Lowell City Council

[ Type of item: | Discussion

[tem title/recommended action:

Review amendments to the City of Lowell development code and discussion with staff and
project consultants — Discussion

Justification or background:

This is to receive a presentation from the city's consulting team on the development
code updates. The purpose of the meeting is to review the proposed updates, along
with feedback received from the public during the last community open house and
survey.

This is a discussion item only. After the presentation and discussion with city
council/planning commission, an outline will follow of the next steps towards
approving the development code updates.

Budget impact:

N/A

Department or Council sponsor:

|Planning Commission

Attachments:

Memo from LCOG, along with attachments including summary of community open
house, survey responses, and development code with proposed changes

|Meeting date: | 10/18/2022|




Agenda ltem Summary

TO: Lowell City Council and Planning Commission

FROM: Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) — Project Consultant
DATE: October 10, 2022

SUBJECT: TGM Development Code Update Joint Work Session

This memo is to provide Lowell City Councilors and Planning Commissioners with a basic
understanding of the background of the TGM Development Code project, a review of the issues,
guestions and answers that were posed at the September 28 “in-person” Community Meeting and
lastly, describe next steps and the schedule going forward.

The purpose of the work session is for City Councilors and Planning Commissioners to thoroughly
review the proposed code amendments and ask questions of staff and project consultants. It is
the hope of the project consultants this work session will help to address any concerns in advance
of the public hearings.

Background

The City of Lowell secured funding from the Oregon Transportation and Growth Management
(TGM) Program (a partnership between Oregon Department of Transportation and Oregon
Department of Land Conservation and Development) to amend the City of Lowell’'s Land
Development Code and implement the recently adopted Downtown Master Plan (2019) and
numerous other amendments.

The City of Lowell is pursuing these amendments in order to be responsive and adaptive to
changing needs city-wide. The Lowell City Council adopted the Downtown Master Plan in 2019.
Implementation of that Plan is a one key objective with the amendments. The Plan sets forth the
community’s vision for Lowell’s downtown and enumerates goals, urban design patterns, and
policies. The proposed amendments establish a “Regulating Plan,” which will guide development
within a very specific “Downtown District” in order to the realize the vision and goals of the
Downtown Master Plan. Other code amendments apply city-wide.

Community Meeting

On September 28, LCOG and DLCD held a community open house. There were an estimated 25-
30 persons in attendance, including several City Councilors, Planning Commissioners, and
stakeholders. LCOG provided a 30-miniute presentation that gave an introductory background of
the project and then went into more detail on some key thematic updates that are proposed.
These key thematic updates included organizing land use applications into standardized “types.”,
the implementation of four new zones specific to the Downtown District, and a review of all zones
for a reduction in basic lot standards. Following the presentation, LCOG, DLCD and City staff
fielded question from the audience for about 30 minutes. Following the question-and-answer
session, LCOG, City and DLCD staff broke out to speak to individual persons in attendance and
review maps that were prepared for the open house. LCOG has taken the liberty of summarizing



2

the feedback heard from the community during the open house (see Attachment A). The virtual
open house went live following the community open house. The virtual open house contains a
pre-recorded version of the same presentation that was presented in-person. The virtual open
house webpage contains all the same documents that were presented and distributed during the
community open house. In addition, there is a questionnaire posted on the project webpage to
garner the community’s feedback on the proposed code amendments (refer to Attachment D for
feedback received thus far). The virtual open house will close on October 12.

Next Steps

Following the work session, the project consultants will begin drafting the final version of the code
amendments. This work session is the last meeting scoped for the project, except for the required
hearings for adoption.

Schedule

City staff anticipate bringing the code amendments to the Planning Commission for a
recommendation on January 4, 2023. Planning Commission will make a recommendation for
approval, denial or revision onto the City Council for final approval and adoption.

City Council will receive the proposed code amendments on January 17, 2023, and make a final
decision on adoption. Adoption of text amendments to the Lowell Development Code must occur
via an ordinance that will be prepared by the City Administrator. The first reading of the ordinance
to adopt the amendments can occur on January 17; the second reading can occur on February 7.

Attachments

Attachment A — Community open house notes (including questions and answers)
Attachment B — 2-Pager describing proposed amendments (same as was distributed during
community open house)

Attachment C - Building standards sheets

Attachment D — Community feedback from questionnaire (up through October 10, 2022)
Attachment E — Proposed code amendments (revised draft #2)



ATTACHMENT A 3

Lowell In-Person Community Open House Notes

September 28, 2022, 6-8 pm
Lowell Rural Fire District Station Attendance Summary:
25-30 total attendees
e Several city councilors, planning commissioners, mayor, and key land and business owners,
many residents.

Meeting
~ 30-minute presentation providing background and overview of key amendments (recording on City
Webpage - Virtual Open House).

Questions and General responses:
Q - Won't this require raising taxes? Many in community are barely making ends meet.

A — Some of the public projects are expensive. There is no funding at the ready for most of
these. The Master Plan outlines funding mechanisms. This includes property owner partnership
and City support. It’s a long-term plan and implementation. The City will take measured steps
and continue to be involve at impactful decision points.

One of the stated Goals of the Transportation and Growth Management Program (funder) is
managing community costs. The proposed amendments enable more efficient use of land within
the UGB, mitigating those costs. Community cost mitigation is one aim of the amendments.

Q- What about safety and security measures associate with increased activity in Lowell?

A - This is an understandable question, but ultimately a separate issue. The City is planning to
address this more explicitly in the Spring. The Downtown vision will realize incrementally with
opportunities to evaluate, and course correct. Good urban design principles should create
increased safety in higher activity areas.

Q- Is all of the proposed change focused on the downtown area?

A — Most of the changes we have addressed tonight are related specifically to Implementation
of the Downtown Master Plan and applicable to that area only. There are proposed changes that
apply City wide. These include the language we discussed about Accessory Dwelling Units,
Cottage Clusters, Access, Flood hazards and Manufactured Homes (HB 4064).

Q- | own land in a new Downtown Zone. | have plans to use my property differently in the future. What
are the implications of these amendments for this.

A —The Downtown Area Zones are proposed to lead with FORM meaning they will focus on the
form of your property more than the USE. The new Form based approach will be more flexible
and accommodating.



Legally Existing Non-Conformity — The proposed amendments to not require homeowners to
proactively modify their homes. Such change will be required only when significant
redevelopment or significant modification occurs.

Q — Will the form-based code result in cookie Cutter development?

A — The Building Standards Sheets present one manifestation of a form consistent with the
standards. Not every development will look like those examples. Building Sheets layout key
principles (height min and max, orientation, facade transparency, parking) but afford latitude in
design, color, etc. -Even mandating breaks in patterns to provide variety.

Q - Staff mentioned a Lowell Housing “Crisis” can you elaborate?

A — “Crisis” is a term which may be better applied at the state and national level. Perhaps the
term “shortage” is more relatable in Lowell. Teachers and other professionals who work in
Lowell are unable to find housing in in Lowell. The School district indicates that many teachers
and staff wish they could find a place in Lowell to spare them the travel. Increasing housing
options is a way to address this. Others wish to “age in place,” or simply have more options.

Q - Traffic calming and proposed street (sidewalk) Improvements seem to have implications for
adjacent properties. Will private property be required to meet Amendment/Master Plan
aspirations/regulations?

A- Any street standards proposed in the Master Plan or in code assume all street features will be
accommodated in the public Right-of-way. It is not uncommon for there to be misunderstanding
about where private property ends and the Right-of-way begins (it is rarely where pavement
ends/begins, for example.)

General feedback-

Residents mentioned a desire to be involved earlier in the conceptual and draft amendment
process.

Several residents mentioned difficulty finding the materials. Wishing it had been more
straightforward to access them.

Generally staff’s conversations revealed a positive reception of the Form Based Code

Some concern was expressed about neighbors may be motivated to do with decreasing
minimum lot sizes. Will CCRs hold up in the current housing legislation landscape?

Some skepticism expressed about Off Street Parking. Recognition of desire to have fewer
parking lots but need a more convincing/comprehensive solution.

Current new housing in Lowell is too expensive (min $400k) to meet most pressing demands.



5

ATTACHMENT B

Lowell Code Amendments Summary

I. Introduction/Background

The City of Lowell secured funding from the Oregon Transportation and Growth Management (TGM)
Program (a partnership between Oregon Department of Transportation and Oregon Department of Land
Conservation and Development) to amend the City of Lowell’s Land Development Code and implement
the recently adopted Downtown Master Plan (2019) and a number of other amendments.

The materials presented in this meeting include code amendments developed by the Lowell
Development Code Update Project Management Team (PMT), consisting of staff from the Lane Council
of Governments, Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development, and Lowell’s City
Manager. The initial concepts were presented to, and revised by, an appointed Lowell Development
Code Committee, made up of community members with a range of backgrounds and perspectives.
Current and previous materials associated with this project are available at www.ci.lowell.or.us/code-
amendments.

Il. Why Is the City Pursuing Code Amendments?

A City’s regulations, including its development code, should be adaptive and responsive to changing
needs. The City Council adopted Lowell’s Downtown Master Plan in 2019. It lays out the community’s
vision for Lowell’s downtown and enumerates goals, urban design patterns, and policies. It establishes a
“Regulating Plan” (attached), which will guide the realization of the vision and goals of the Downtown
Master Plan through standards in Lowell’s Development Code.

There are additional proposed code amendments that address needs in the broader Lowell community
outside the downtown.

Generally speaking, all the code amendments are intended to streamline, simplify, and clarify. In some
cases, this involves additional code language, defined terms, procedures, or new zones to implement
the Downtown Master Plan. An example is helpful graphics incorporated into the Code to help illustrate
key elements in a straightforward, user-friendly manner. The amendments intend to realize the kind of
development described in adopted plans and desired by the community.

The objective of this Project is to address the following within the Development Code:

o Implementation of the Downtown Master Plan e Streamline application procedures (Establish

e Potential reduction of Minimum lot sizes Application Types I-IV.)

e Mixed-use development standards e Clarify setbacks in all zoning districts.

e Development standards for “middle housing” e Clarify driveway paving requirements.
types (e.g. cottage housing, townhomes, and e Establish procedure for lot consolidation.
accessory dwelling units) e Address parking and storage of recreational

e Access and driveway standards vehicles and trailers in the public right-of-way.

e Reduction in minimum lot sizes



Ill. Key Code Amendment Themes

The City has made available, a marked-up draft of the proposed code amendments. The amendments
are in “legislative” format, meaning that underlined text is proposed new text and struck-through-textis
propesed-for-deletion: All proposed changes are also reflected in red text. Unless otherwise noted,
references pages numbers refer to the proposed text amendments. To aid in review of these changes,
staff have identified key amendment themes:

Development standards for downtown zones will focus on form, not just use. Code
amendments will be guided by the Downtown Regulating Plan, to achieve the walkable, quaint
downtown envisioned by the Downtown Master Plan (pg. 20 of the Downtown Master Plan).
The Regulating Plan establishes four new downtown zones and provides specific building types
and layouts allowed in each. The zoning in these areas focuses on built form rather than uses.
This will help guide future development to create a desired aesthetic (look and feel), sense of
place, and a more active town center in downtown Lowell (starting on pg. 20 of the Downtown
Master Plan).

Transition to Application “Types” Type I-V. Land use decisions range from non-discretionary to
highly discretionary, thus public noticing requirements are different for each type of
development. Under a “Types” model of application review, the lower the type, the lower the
amount of discretion exercised, the less notice provided, and the less the ability to appeal, etc. A
Table is proposed on pgs. 12-13, which provides a key for determining the proposed review
procedure and the decision-making body for particular approvals. The change is largely
organizational, with many applications seeing little or no change in process.

Off-street Parking. (pgs. 103-104) The Off-street parking standards are largely the same but are
in the form of a table that is easier to read and understand. A notable difference is a proposal
for no minimum off-street parking requirements in two new Downton zones, as directed by the
Downtown Master Plan. Developers know a development’s needs best and will provide parking
that fit the actual development and location, while at the same time utilizing on-street parking
where available in order to minimize land devoted to parking.

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU). (pg. 160) Section 9.707 is a proposed new code section
pertaining to the allowance of ADUs and new state law (House Bill 2001). The proposed code
language is derived from DLCD’s Guidance on Implementing the ADU Requirement at link:
Microsoft Word - SB1051 ADUguide updatedSept2019.docx (oregon.gov).

Cottage Clusters. Cottage cluster housing developments are being proposed to be outright
permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3 Zones. Cottage clusters are a series of small dwellings
(cottages) that are clustered together and typically include a common open space intended for
use by all residents of the cluster. Pgs. 160-162.

House Bill 4064 ORS Compliance: Amendments are included to bring the Development Code
into compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes related to child care facilities (ORS 329A) and
manufactured dwellings / prefabricated structures (House Bill 4064 [2022].

For more information please contact:
Jeremy Caudle, Lowell City Manager, (541) 937-2157, jcaudle@ci.lowell.or.us
Henry Hearley, Project lead, Lane Council of Governments, (541) 682-3089, hhearley@Icog.org




ATTACHMENT C
7
CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

CONTENTS

9.421 DOWNTOWN REGULATING PLAN 2
9.422 BUILDING STANDARDS 3
9.423 DOWNTOWN FLEX 1 BUILDING STANDARD 4
9.424 DOWNTOWN FLEX 2 BUILDING STANDARD 5
9.425 DOWNTOWN RESIDENTIAL ATTACHED 6

9.426 DOWNTOWN RESIDENTIAL DETACHED 7



8
CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

SECTION 9.421 DOWNTOWN REGULATING PLAN

LEGEND

[:=:1 Downtown District
——— Build To Line (RBL)

- === Required Pedestrian
Entry Zone
C.—.1 Parking Zone
13 Min/Max Stories
[ Downtown Flex 1

(Commercial, Mixed-
Use, Residential)

[ Downtown Flex 2
(Commercial, Mixed-
Use, Required
Residential)

Downtown Residential
Attached

]
[ 1 Downtown Residential
s
s

E 2nd Street
N | T ] \‘" — — }

N Moss Street

e y E st Street

%

Detached
Civic / Public
Greenspace / Parks

N Pioneer Street

r————

--—.
e—
e — i
- —

-
4

S Moss Street

.

|~’ S Pioneer Street

E Lakeview Avenue

0 125 250 250
@



9
CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

SECTION 9.422 BUILDING STANDARDS

(@)

(b)

(©)

Purpose. The purpose of this section is to set forth the regulations for building standards
applicable to each Parcel Type that are appropriate to use within Lowell Downtown district and
are organized by development typology on the Regulating Plan. These standards are intended to
ensure that new development strengthens and enhances the existing character and scale of the
Lowell Downtown district and its surrounding communities.

Applicability.

The requirements in this section shall apply to all proposed development within Lowell
Downtown District and must be considered in relation to the intent and general character of
the District.

The standards and requirements applicable to a Parcel Type shall modify and take precedence
over any duplicative or conflicting provisions of the Supplemental Regulations as prescribed
in the Lowell Downtown Zoning Code, unless otherwise explicitly permitted.

These building standards shall not apply to the existing use of any buildings or land and

shall not prevent the restoration of a building damaged not more than fifty (50) percent of

its assessed valuation by fire, explosion, natural disaster, or the public enemy, or prevent the
continuance of the use of such building or part thereof as such use existed at the time of such
damage, but shall apply to any alteration, expansion or enlargement of a building or alteration
of any parcel.

General. Building standards are not intended to indicate or suggest any specific architectural
style.



CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE

9.423 DOWNTOWN FLEX 1 BUILDING STANDARDS

10
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

LEGEND

======= Required Building Line (RBL)

Use (see Note 1) Notes
Ground floor: commercial (retail, service, office, trade) 1. Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, noise, or vibration that is
commercial (retail, service, office, trade), perceptible beyond the property boundaries are prohibited.
Upper floor(s): residential 2. Pnmary building entrance must be located along the
Required Pedestrian Entry Zone and oriented to the street.
Placement 3. Lots are required to be large enough and developed to
Front required bmldmg line 0 ft; the front-most part of the bmldmg (1e o accommodate the bmldu]g, sewage disposal system,
(RBL) wall, front porch) must be built to the RBL required parking. service access, and pedestrian circulation,
Side setback 0 ﬁ min:; 10 ft min. when abutting e including for persons with disabilit_ies.
residential zone 4. One hundred percent lot coverage is allowable when
0 ft min.: 10 ft min. when abutting applicable minimum loading space and setback
Rear setback residential zone e requirements are met.

- - 5. There is no building height limitation except when the
Park?ng setback from RBL 0k n-nn. - - Q property abuts a residential zone, in which case the building
Park:ng setback from parcel 6 ﬁmln:; 20 ft min. when abutting G height is limited to the height allowed in the adjacent
lines with no RBL residential zone residential zone for a distance of 50 ft.

Coverage 6.  Exterior building articulation is required every 40 horizontal
Lot area no min ; see Notes 3 and 4 Q feet or less.
7. Ground floors with non-street-facing residential uses must
Lot coverage 100% max.; see Notes 3 and 4 .. . )
be elevated a minimum of 18 inches above grade.
Primary street facade built to RBL  90% min. of RBL length Q 8. Pedestrian walkways must be provided to connect the
Height building primary entrance to the public right of way.

— 9.  Off-street parking, drives, garages, and other vehicle areas
Mimimen ausiber of floors i 8 must be oriented to and accessed from the alley or located
Maximum number of floors 3 floors behind or to the side of the building; they cannot be placed
Ground floor elevation 0 m mm above sidewalk; see Note 7 for o between buildings and streets.

residential use 10. Access shall be designed to encourage pedestrian and
Floor to floor height 10 ft min. Q bicycle use and shall facilitate vehicular movements with
— ] 10 max ; see Note 5 when abutting minimum interference or hazards for through traffic. Access
Building height resi denti, al zone o may be subject to the review and approval of the County
Engineer or State Department of Transportation. The
Facade Transparency dedication of additional right-of-way and construction of
Ground floor 75% of facade area min. street improvements by the applicant may be required in
Upper floors 40% of facade area min. order to facilitate traffic circulation.
- 11. Any ground-level shopfront windows facing circulation
Parking networks must be kept visible (unshuttered) at night.
Number of spaces no min. requirement 12. Residential uses entirely above the ground floor must have a

balcony at least four feet deep.




CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE

9.424 DOWNTOWN FLEX 2 BUILDING STANDARDS

11
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

LEGEND

! ' Parking Lines
~— j Lot Coverage

======= Required Building Line (RBL)

Use (see Note 1) Notes
commercial (retail, service, office, trade), 1. Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, noise, or vibration that is
Ground floor: residential perceptible beyond the property boundaries are prohibited.
commercial (retail, service, office. trade), 2. Pnmary building entrance must be located along the
Upper floor(s): required residential Required Pedestrian Entry Zone and onented to the street.
3. Lots are required to be large enough and developed to
Placement accommodate the building, sewage disposal system,
Front required building line 0 - 10 ft; the front-most part of the building 0 required parking, service access, and pedestrian circulation
(RBL) (i.e. wall, front porch) must be built to RBL including for persons with disabilities.
Side setback 5 ﬁ min:; 10 ft min. when abutting e 4. There is no building height limitation except when the
residential zone property abuts a residential zone, in which case the building
0 ft min ; 10 ft min. when abutting height is limited to the height allowed in the adjacent
Rear setback residential zone e residential zone for a distance of 50 ft.
Parking setback from RBL 20 ft min. Q 5. fxteriolr building articulation is required every 40 horizontal
Pmking sefback from parcel 6 ﬁ min:; 20 ft min. when abutting G 6. (:ct):;de;;rs with residential uses must be elevated a
lines with no RBL residential zone .. . )
minimum of 18 inches above grade.
Coverage 7. Pedestrian sidewalks or walkways must be provided to
Lot area no min : see Note 3 Q connect the building primary entrance to the public right of
way.

Lok covemge % max 8.  Off-street parking, drives, garages, and other vehicle areas
Primary street facade built to RBL __ 80% min. of RBL length Q must be oriented to and accessed from the alley or located
Height behind or to the side of the building; they cannot be placed

Minimum number of floors 1 foors between buildings and streets.

- 9. Access shall be designed to encourage pedestrian and
Maximum number of floors 3 floors 3 bicycle use and shall facilitate vehicular movements with
Ground floor elevation 0 m mm above sidewalk; see Note 6 for o minimum interference or hazards for through traffic. Access

residential use may be subject to the review and approval of the County
Floor to floor height 10 ft min. 6 Engineer or State Department of Transportation. The
o ] 1n0 max.; see Note 4 when abutting dedication of additional right-of-way and construction of
Building height residential zone o street improvements by the applicant may be required in
order to facilitate traffic circulation.
Facade Transparency 10. Any ground-level shopfront windows facing circulation
Ground floor 70% of facade area min. networks must be kept visible (unshuttered) at night.
Upper floors 40% of facade area min. 11. Residential uses entirely above the ground floor must have a
. balcony at least four feet deep.
Parking
Number of spaces no min. requirement




CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE

12
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

9.425 DOWNTOWN RESIDENTIALATTACHED BUILDING STANDARDS

N 1 Lot Coverage

"""" Required Building Line (RBL)

Use (see Note 1) Notes
Ground foor- residential, commercial (retail, service, 1. Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, noise. or vibration that is
oundiuppet Hloat. office, trade) perceptible beyond the property boundaries are prohibited.
2. Pnmary building entrance must be located along the
Placement . . .
- Required Pedestrian Entry Zone and oriented to the street.
Front required building line 3-15f when_ a;.)phc.able; the front-most 3. Maximum lot coverage includes accessory buildings,
(RBL) part of the !Julldmg (i.e. wall, front porch) 0 provided that any patio structure used solely for open space
must be built to RBL and swimming pool not structurally covered shall not be
Side setback 5 ft min. counted as a structure for measuring coverage.
Rear setback 5 ftmin ; 0 ft min. when abutting an alley 4. Maximum building height excludes basements and daylight
" basements. Accessory buildings are limited to one story.
Coverage 5. All garages, carports, or other parking structures must be
Lot area 2,000 sf min. located behind or to the side of the buildings; they cannot be
Lot width 20 ft min ; 40 ft min. for corner lots placed between buildings and streets.
Lot depth 1.5x lot width or 100 ft, whichever is less : Attached and detached garages shall be oriented to
" - and accessed from an alley
Lot coverage 60% max.; see Note 3 . When no alley exists, garages shall be tucked under
Primary street facade built to 80% min. of RBL length when applicable @ the first story and accessed f‘.‘r_om the front or side of
RBL the property if set back a minimum of 20 ft from the
Height front or 10 ft from the side.
Minimum number of foors > floors 6.  Residential uses entirely above the ground floor must have a
balcony at least four feet deep.
Maximum number of floors 3 floors
Ground floor elevation 18 in min. above sidewalk
Building height subject to Fire Chief approval.; see Note 4
Facade Transparency
Ground floor 40% of facade area min.
Upper floors 40% of facade area min.

Porch / covered stoop

Dimension 6 x 6 ft min. for each primary entry
Parking
Number of spaces no min. requirement @




CITY OF LOWELL DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE

13
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

9.426 DOWNTOWN RESIDENTIAL DETACHED BUILDING STANDARDS

LEGEND

———————

g ) Lot Coverage

Use (see Note 1) Notes

Ground foor- residential, commercial (retail, service, 1. Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, noise. or vibration that is
oundiuppet Hloat. office, trade) perceptible beyond the property boundaries are prohibited.
2. Pnmary building entrance must be located along the
Placement . . .
- Required Pedestrian Entry Zone and oriented to the street.
Front setback 10 ft min., 30 ft max. 3. Maximum lot coverage includes accessory buildings,
Side setback 5 ft min. provided that any patio structure used solely for open space
Rear setback 5 ft min ; 0 ft min. when abutting an alley and swimming pool not structurally covered shall not be
" counted as a structure for ascertaining coverage.

Coverage 4. Maximum building height excludes basements and daylight
Lot area 5,000 sf min.; 6,000 sf min. for corner lots basements. Accessory buildings are limited to one story.
Lot width 40 ft min_; 50 ft min. for corner lots 5. All garages, carports, or other parking structures must be
Lot depth 60 ft min. located behind or tf’ tl_le side of the buildings; they cannot be

" - ey placed between buildings and streets.
Lot coverage 30% max., 69 © max. T’v’ ceessory . Attached and detached garages shall be oriented to
Dwelling Unit (ADU): see Note 3 and accessed from an alley

Height . When no alley exists, garages shall be tucked under

Minimum number of floors 1 floors the first story and accessed from the front or side of

- the property if set back a minimum of 20 ft from the
Maximum number (-)f floors 3 ﬂ-oors- : front or 10 ft from the side.
Ground floor elevation 18 in min. above sidewalk 6.  Residential uses entirely above the ground floor must have a
Building height subject to Fire Chief approval.; see Note 4 balcony at least four feet deep.

Facade Transparency
Ground floor 40% of facade area min.

Upper floors 40% of facade area min.

Porch / covered stoop
Dimension 6 x 6 ft min. for each primary entry @

Parking
Number of required space 1 space per unit




Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback

ATTACHMENT D

#1

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 1:59:25 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:16:54 PM
Time Spent: 00:17:29

IP Address: _

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

| personally do not like much about this plan, | understand the vision but do not see how this would benefit our town. | have been here
for my entire life as well as my family established a home here in 1968. | do believe that our town is in need of a facelift but not at the
downfall to our small town atmosphere.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

By doing so you will be significantly increasing our population which is what most in this town do not wish to see. It is one thing to be a
destination town but another to be an overpopulated, overpriced mini Eugene. We need to look at other towns that have gone down this
path and see what has happened to them. Is their commerce increased yes, has the cost of living increased yes, and has the vast
majority of their population moved out, yes. Is that what Lowell wants for our community?

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

Sounds like a complete overreach of city power.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

How can anyone that loves our town do this?

1/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
15

H#H2

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:13:44 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:25:17 PM
Time Spent: 00:11:33

IP Address: _

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

Major departure from the way Lowell has been run up to now, but am in favor if it will help Lowell thrive.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

This would be great if it will help Lowell focus on redevelopment and infill in the older residential areas, replacing all the mfg homes and
developing all the vacant lots.

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

Should be reduced for all new development and for redevelopment.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

Is something in our code preventing new businesses from locating here? | heard the people who wanted to open a brewery were unable
to do so.

2/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
16

#3

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 5:44:00 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 5:57:10 PM
Time Spent: 00:13:09

1P Address: I

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

| believe that no buildings should be over two stories tall. It will take away from the beauty of the town.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

Not sure what ADUs or R-1/R-3 zones are. If they are subsidized housing than NO! Sorry, but if you bring in rif raf, the town will turn
into that as well. Crime will go up, that’s a fact.

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

No. If there was a fire, it could be easily spread to adjacent structures. Even though we have a top notch fire department and would
everything in its power so that wouldn’t happen. That would put more properties and lives ( of the firefighters) in a dangerous situation.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

As anyone can see, this town is not an inner city town. But if you rezone, add more people in this town without a full time police
department. You are just asking for trouble. Increase of petty crimes, more packages stolen from our porches and so on.

3/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
17

#H4

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 5:34:36 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 6:02:03 PM
Time Spent: 00:27:26

IP Address: I

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

That sounds good good. | hope that whatever buildings that get built have a vintage aesthetic like our high school. Please do not put
in ugly bee hive looking structures.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

These are fine, but please DO NOT PUT THEM IN BACKWARDS. We are the only city | have ever seen where so many new builds
are completely backwards. It makes no sense, and looks ridiculous, in my opinion.

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

It seems like a lot of lots in Lowell have less then 7,000 sqft, so I'm missing something. So | guess we are for it. As long as it only
applies to new builds and vacant lots.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

Can you please put in a side walk on the west side of N Pioneer St. From downtown to AT LEAST 2nd st. It would be appreciated.

4/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
18

#5

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 8:27:30 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 8:37:03 PM
Time Spent: 00:09:33

IP Address: _

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

Having a guide/framework will ensure a level of continuity that will benefit the city as it grows. On the other side of the coin, the
specific types and layouts of buildings outlined in the plan needs to allow for growth to actually occur.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

Adjusting the R-1 and R-3 codes to allow for ADUs is a way to promote growth without the need to continue to expand the city limits. |
support this approach to growth.

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

Allowing for a reduction makes sense, as other areas in Lane County already allow that. It will provide more opportunity for diversified
growth.

Q4 Respondent skipped this question

What other questions or concerns do you have about the
code amendments that you have not addressed above?

5/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
19

#6

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 10:19:20 PM
Last Modified: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 10:23:00 PM
Time Spent: 00:03:40

IP Address: I

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

Lowell does not have a downtown. Don't pretend it does. As such, the idea is absurd.

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

Yes, with building codes that protect owners and occupants

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

No. Keep the lot size at 70000

Q4 Respondent skipped this question

What other questions or concerns do you have about the
code amendments that you have not addressed above?

6/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
20

H

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Wednesday, September 28, 2022 7:39:05 AM
Last Modified: Wednesday, September 28, 2022 8:05:57 AM
Time Spent: 00:26:51

IP Address: _

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

Disappointed

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

Do not want this type of housing in our area. Feel this is more of a benefit for the builders than the area.

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

This kind of reduction is more for the benefit of those investing and building the areas. “People stacking” distracts from the beautiful
area we live in and causes future problems on resources.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

So far, not feeling as though this will benefit the current population as much as line the pockets of developers. Opening our town to
new business is important an much needed. Right now it feels as though a small group is running a monopoly. Everyone | have talked
to that lives here, moved here to get away from what the downtown housing project is suggesting.

7/8



Lowell Development Code Update - Community Meeting Feedback
21

#8

Collector: Web Link 1 (Web Link)

Started: Thursday, October 06, 2022 1:56:31 PM
Last Modified: Thursday, October 06, 2022 1:57:59 PM
Time Spent: 00:01:28

IP Address: _

Page 1

Q1

A key purpose of the code amendments are to implement the 2019 Lowell Downtown Master Plan. Development within
the boundaries of the Master Plan’s Regulating Plan will focus on form not just use. The Regulating Plan establishes four
new downtown zones and provides specific building types and layouts allowed in each. What are your thoughts about
this approach to development within the “Downtown District?”

Nice!

Q2

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to address the housing shortage in Lowell. As such, Accessory
Dwelling Unit (ADUs) and Cottage Cluster developments are proposed to be outright permitted uses in the R-1 and R-3
zones. What are your thoughts on adding these two types of dwelling units to the R-1 and R-3 zones?

good idea

Q3

Another key purpose of the code amendments are to look at ways to increase efficient use of land and decrease
impervious surfaces by the reduction of minimum lot sizes. The current minimum lot size in Lowell is 7,000 square feet
in the R-1 and R-3 zones. These minimum lot sizes are higher than most other comparable sized cities in Lane County.
The Planning Commission has also approved a number of variances to allow smaller lots. Because of this, a reduction
in the minimum lot sizes is proposed for all residential zones, including those within the Downtown District. What are
your thoughts on a reduction of minimum lot sizes in all residential zones and zones within the Downtown District?

good idea.

Q4

What other questions or concerns do you have about the code amendments that you have not addressed above?

are tiny houses. studios etc. allowed to be put in lot sizes above 7k sq ft

8/8



Underlined rex text = proposed new language

Crossed-out-text = proposed to be removed

Highlighted green = code references for updating

Highlighted yellow = manufactured home and child care amendments to comply with state law

CITY OF

LOWELL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

2006 REVISION
Lowell Revised Code Title 9

Page
ARTICLE9.1  CONTENTS TC1

ATTACHMENT E




ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

ARTICLE 9.2

ARTICLE 9.3

ARTICLE 9.4

Section 9.101
Section 9.102
Section 9.103
Section 9.104
Section 9.105
Section 9.106
Section 9.107
Section 9.108
Section 9.109
Section 9.190

Title

Purpose

Compliance Standards
Associated Regulations
Interpretation

Validity
Administration
Enforcement

Fees

Definitions

APPLICATION PROCEDURES

Section 9.201
Section 9.202
Section 9.203
Section 9.204
Section 9.205
Section 9.209
Section 9.210
Section 9.211
Section 9.220
Section 9.230
Section 9.240
Section 9.241
Section 9.242
Section 9.250
Section 9.251
Section 9.252
Section 9.253
Section 9.254
Section 9.255

Pre-Application Consultation
Pre-Application Conference
Application Procedure
Application Site Plan

Record File

Building Permits

Land Divisions

Property Line Adjustments
Subdivision or Partition Tentative Plan
Subdivision or Partition Plat
Filing of Plat

Replatting

Expedited Land Divisions
Site Plan Review
Conditional Uses

Variances

Amendments

Annexations

Vacations

DECISION PROCESS

Section 9.301
Section 9.302

Basis for Decision
Form of Decision

CONTENTS (Continued)

Section 9.303
Section 9.304
Section 9.305
Section 9.306
Section 9.307
Section 9.308
Section 9.309
Section 9.310

Type of Decisions

Notification

Limited Land Use Review Procedures
Quasi-judicial Public Hearing Procedures
Legislative Public Hearing Procedures
Decision

Appeal Provisions

Revocation

ZONING DISTRICTS

Section 9.401
Section 9.402
Section 9.403

Classification of Zoning Districts

Classification of Overlay Districts
Location of Zoning District

9.1-1
9.1-1
9.1-1
9.1-1
9.1-2
9.1-2
9.1-3
9.1-3
9.1-4
9.1-5
9.1-6

9.2-1
9.2-1
9.2-1
9.2-1
9.2-3
9.2-4
9.2-5
9.2-6
9.2-6
9.2-8
9.2-15
9.2-18
9.2-19
9.2-19
9.2-20
9.2-22
9.2-25
9.2-27
9.2-29
9.2-32

9.3-1
9.3-1
9.3-1

PAGE
9.3-1
9.3-3
9.3-6
9.3-7
9.3-9
9.3-11
9.3-12
9.3-14

9.4-1
9.4-1
9.4-1
9.4-1

23



ARTICLE 9.5

Section 9.404
Section 9.405
Section 9.406
Section 9.407
Section 9.408
Section 9.410
Section 9.411
Section 9.412
Section 9.420
Section 9.421
Section 9.422
Section 9.430
Section 9.432
Section 9.440
Section 9.441
Section 9.450
Section 9.451
Section 9.460
Section 9.461
Section 9.462
Section 9.463
Section 9.464
Section 9.465
Section 9.466
Section 9.467

Zoning Maps

Zone District Boundaries

Zoning of Annexed Areas

Similar Use Authorization
Nonconforming Uses

Primary Zoning Districts

Single-family Residential District R-1
Multiple-Family / Residential District R-3
Commercial Districts

Commercial District - C-1

Downtown Commercial District — C-2
Industrial Districts

Light Industrial District — I-1

Other Land Use Districts

Public Land District - PL

Overlay Districts

Application, Overlay District

Planned Development Overlay-District - PD
PD Development Standards

PD Conceptual Plan

PD Development Plan

PD Decision and Findings

Official PD Development Plan

Proposed Changes in Approved PD Plans
PD Plan Expiration

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Section 9.501
Section 9.502
Section 9.503
Section 9.504
Section 9.505
Section 9.506
Section 9.507
Section 9.508

Development Standards Matrix
Development Standards

Plan Conformance

Height Standards

Building Height Exceptions
Building Projection Exceptions
Lot Size

Lot Size Exceptions

9.4-1
9.4-1
9.4-2
9.4-2
9.4-2
9.4-4
9.4-4
9.4-6
9.4-8
9.4-8
9.4-10
9.4-12
9.4-12
9.4-14
9.4-14
9.4-16
9.4-16
9.4-16
9.4-17
9.4-19
9.4-20
9.4-22
9.4-23
9.4-23
9.4-24

9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-1
9.5-2

24



ARTICLE 9.6

CONTENTS (Continued)

Section 9.509
Section 9.510
Section 9.511
Section 9.512
Section 9.513
Section 9.514
Section 9.515
Section 9.516
Section 9.517
Section 9.518
Section 9.519
Section 9.520
Section 9.521
Section 9.522
Section 9.523
Section 9.524
Section 9.525
Section 9.526
Section 9.527
Section 9.528
Section 9.529
Section 9.530

Yard Setbacks

Yard Setback Exceptions
Drainageway Setbacks
Commercial & Industrial Setbacks
Parking

Off-Street Parking Requirements
Transportation Standards
Access

Streets

Sidewalks

Bikeways

Storm Drainage

Water

Sanitary Sewers

Utilities

Easements

Blocks

Building Sites

Grading

Landscaping

Exterior Lighting

Signs

SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

ARTICLE 9.7
STANDARDS

Section 9.601
Section 9.610
Section 9.620
Section 9.621
Section 9.622
Section 9.623
Section 9.624
Section 9.630
Section 9.631
Section 9.632
Section 9.633
Section 9.634
Section 9.635
Section 9.636

9.7-1

Section 9.701
Section 9.702
Section 9.703
Section 9.704
Section 9.705
Section 9.706
Section 9.710

Special Development Standards, General
Wetlands Development Standards

Flood Hazard (FH) Development

FH Purpose

FH General Provisions

FH Development Standards

FH Definition

Hillside Development (HD)

HD Scope

HD Standards

HD Submission Rgmts/Land Divisions
HD Submission Rgmts/Building Permits
HD Approval Process and Authority

HD Fees Authorized

Use Standards
Home Occupation Standards
Bed and Breakfast Standards
Residential Care Home Standards
Residential Care Facility Standards
Multiple-family Housing Standards
Manufactured Dwelling Standards

PAGE
9.5-2
9.5-2
9.5-2
9.5-2
9.5-3
9.5-6
9.5-7
9.5-7
9.5-8
9.5-10
9.5-11
9.5-11
9.5-13
9.5-14
9.5-14
9.5-15
9.5-15
9.5-16
9.5-16
9.5-17
9.5-18
9.5-19

9.6-1
9.6-1
9.6-1
9.6-3
9.6-3
9.6-4
9.6-7
9.6-10
9.6-13
9.6-13
9.6-13
9.6-16
9.6-17
9.6-19
9.6-19

USE

9.7-1
9.7-1
9.7-1
9.7-3
9.7-3
9.7-3
9.7-4

25



CONTENTS (Continued) PAGE
Section 9.711 General Manufactured Dwelling Provisions 9.7-4
Section 9.712 Classification of Manufactured Dwellings 9.7-5
Section 9.713 Placement of MD on Individual Lots 9.7-7
Section 9.714 Temporary Manufactured Dwelling Use 9.7-8
Section 9.715 Manufactured Dwelling Parks (MDP) 9.7-9
Section 9.716 MDP Improvement Standards 9.7-10
Section 9.717 MDP Design and Submission Standards 9.7-11
Section 9.720 Residential Structures in Com. Districts 9.7-13
Section 9.721 Public & Semi-Public Use Standards 9.7-13
Section 9.722 Urban Agricultural Use Standards 9.7-14

ARTICLE 9.8

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENTS 9.8-1
Section 9.801 Improvement Procedures 9.8-1
Section 9.802 Specifications for Improvements 9.8-1
Section 9.803 Required Public Improvements 9.8-2
Section 9.804 Public Use Dedications 9.8-2
Section 9.810 Improvements Agreement 9.8-2
Section 9.811 Security 9.8-2
Section 9.812 Noncompliance Provisions 9.8-3
Section 9.850 Design and Construction Standards 9.8-4
Section 9.851 Modifications Permitted 9.8-4
Section Applicability of Lane County Standards 9.8-4
#:8609.852

ARTICLE 9.9 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 2005 Revision 9.9-1
Section 9.910 Planning 9.9-1
Section 9.920 Environment 9.9-17
Section 9.930 Population & Economy 9.9-25
Section 9.940 Housing 9.9-37
Section 9.950 Land Use 9.9-51
Section 9.960 Public Facilities and Services 9.9-67
Section 9.970 Transportation 9.9-83
Section 9.980 Growth Management 9.9-93
Section 9,990 Comprehensive Plan Maps and Diagrams 9.9-117

ARTICLE9.1 ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

SECTION 9.101

TITLE

This document shall be known as the Lowell Land Development Code and may be referred to as
the "Development Code" or "Code."

SECTION 9.102 PURPOSE
The purpose of this Code is to establish standards and procedures for the orderly development of

land within the City of Lowell in conformance with the Lowell Comprehensive Plan, to protect
property rights, provide due process of law and promote the public health, safety and welfare of

26



the citizens of Lowell.

SECTION 9.103 COMPLIANCE STANDARDS

@

(b)

(©

(d)

©)

U]
(9)

(h)

0]

()

()

The Lowell Comprehensive Plan shall be the official policy guide for the Lowell Land
Development Code.

A property may be used and a structure or part of a structure may be constructed, altered,
occupied or used only as this Code permits.

No property, yard, off-street parking area, off-street loading area or other open space
existing on or after the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the minimum
required for it by this Code unless authorized under the procedures of this Code.

No property, yard, off-street parking area, off-street loading area, or other open space shall
be used as the requirement for another lot or use, except as provided for in this Code.

No lot, structure or use shall be permitted if it is a threat to the health, safety or welfare of
the user or the public.

Every lot or parcel shall abut and/or have access to a public street.

Recreational vehicles, fifth-wheelers, travel trailers, tent trailers, tents or similar facilities
may not be occupied for more than thirty (30) days in a calendar year within the City limits.
The City shall grant one 30-day extension upon receiving a written request.

No person shall divide land or develop land within the City without having complied with
the applicable provisions of this Code and the applicable provisions of county, state and
federal law.

No person shall sell any subdivision lot or partition parcel until the Plat of the subdivision
or partition has been approved by the City and recorded with Lane County.

The City shall be notified of any pending sale of a subdivision, partition or of any property
where the Conditions of Approval, Variance conditions or required improvements have not
been completed. Sale of property under these conditions shall invalidate the approval
granted by the City unless an agreement to complete the approved requirements is accepted
by the City.

All approvals granted by the City shall be completed within the time period specified in
the approval or within one year of approval if not specified. Periodic reviews of the
progress may be conducted by the City.

SECTION 9.104 ASSOCIATED REGULATIONS

In addition to this Code, the following policies, plans or regulations may apply:

@

The Lowell Comprehensive Plan.

27



(b)

(©
(d)

(e)
()
()
(h)

Official Maps or Development Plans, including but not limited to Zoning Map, Downtown
Master Plan and Regulating Plan, Water Master Plan, Sewer Master Plan, Master Road
Plan and agreed upon individual Development Pans.

Chapter 227, City Planning and Zoning, of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 227).

Chapter 197, Comprehensive Land Use Planning Coordination, of the Oregon Revised
Statutes (ORS 197).

Chapter 92, Subdivisions and Partitions, of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 92).
Chapter 209, County Surveyors, of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 209).
Recording requirements of the Lane County Surveyor.

All other applicable regulations provided by law.

No person shall divide land or develop land within the City without having complied with the
applicable provisions of this Code and the applicable provisions of county, state or federal law.

SECTION 9.105 INTERPRETATION

@

(b)

(©

(d)

©)

®

Where the conditions imposed by any provision of this Code are less restrictive than
comparable conditions imposed by any other provisions of this Code or any other city
ordinance, state law or federal law, the applicable provisions which are more restrictive
shall govern.

An oral opinion or interpretation of this Code or of the applicability of the Code to specific
site situations, including non-conforming uses, may be made by the City Administrator.
An oral interpretation may not be appealed unless it is first requested in writing as a request
for official interpretation as provide for below.

A request for an official interpretation of the content or applicability of this Code, the
Comprehensive Plan or any applicable provision of law shall be made to the City
Administrator.

A person requesting an official interpretation shall submit the request in writing and may
offer an opinion or recommendation. The fee for an interpretation shall be paid in
compliance with Section 9.109. Clarifications and interpretations of this Code or the
Comprehensive Plan may be made by the City Administrator or may be referred to the
Planning Commission. Public notifications and a Public Hearing by the Planning
Commission will be scheduled for interpretations affecting adjacent property owners.

The City Administrator shall issue a written response as soon as possible, but within a
maximum of 45 days from receipt of the request for review of the interpretation. A City
Administrator interpretation shall be made in writing and transmitted to the person
requesting the interpretation.

Appeal of an interpretation may be filed in compliance with Section 9.309.

28



(9) Interpretations shall be issued in writing and shall be binding on the City and the petitioner
unless appealed. A Record File shall be maintained for written interpretations.

SECTION 9.106 VALIDITY

The provisions of this Code are severable. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Code
is adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the decision shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions of this Code.

SECTION 9.107 ADMINISTRATION

@) The City shall maintain authority over all activities within the City Limits as provided by
law and the City Charter. All powers of the City shall be vested in the City Council unless
otherwise provided in the City Charter.

(b) The City Administrator, under the direction of the City Council, shall have the authority and
duty to enforce the provisions of this Code and all related city, county, state or federal
regulations. An Administrative Decision is a decision by the City Administrator with
notification of actions taken provided to the Planning Commission and City Council.

(1) The City Administrator shall have the initial authority and responsibility to interpret
all terms, provisions, and requirements of this Code as provided for in Section 9.105.

(2) The City Administrator shall have decision authority for Property Line Adjustments.

(3) Final Plat signature specified in Section 9.237.

(4) Flood Plain development permits as specified in Section 9.622.

(5) All correspondence and inquiries related to this Code shall be directed to the City
Administrator at the Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, P.O. Box 490, Lowell,
Oregon 97452, Telephone - (541) 937-2157, Fax - (541) 937-2936.

(6) The City Administrator may designate other City Officers or Staff to undertake
specialized duties, including but not limited to, the City Attorney, City Engineer and
City Planner.

(c) The Planning Commission shall have the authority to review and approve all Site Plans,
Conditional Uses, Variances and Partitions.

(d) The City Council, with recommendation from the Planning Commission, shall have the
authority to review and approve all Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map Amendments,
Vacations and Subdivisions. The City Council shall also review and approve all
Annexations.

(e) In the event that a single land use application requires more than one decision, the highest

TC-7 9/05/06

29



deciding authority will make all decisions.

(f) A decision by the City Administrator, the Planning Commission or the City Council may
be appealed as provided in Section 9.309.

SECTION 9.108 ENFORCEMENT

Owners and/or occupants of land or buildings within the City of Lowell are subject to the
enforcement authority of the City of Lowell as provided by State Law and the provisions of this
Code, including any other applicable Ordinances adopted by the Lowell City Council.

The City Administrator, acting on behalf of the City Council, shall have the authority to determine
and designate a violation of this Code or a violation of the Conditions of Approval of a prior land
use decision and seek such remedies as may be provided for in this Code or by law

@) Remedy. A structure located, constructed, maintained, repaired, altered or used in violation
of this Code, or land used in violation of this Code, shall constitute a nuisance. The City
may, as an alternative to other remedies that are legally available for enforcing this Code,
institute injunction, mandamus, abatement or other appropriate proceedings to prevent,
enjoin, abate or remove the unlawful location, construction, maintenance, repair, alteration
or use.

(b) Procedures.

(1) Upon determination of a violation of this Code, the City shall notify the property
owner that a violation exists. Such notice shall specify, with reasonable certainty, the
following:

A. The location and nature of the violation.

B.  The provision or provisions of this Code which have been violated.

C. That immediate enforcement will be sought unless the violation is corrected or
corrective action has been initiated within ten (10) calendar days.

A defect in the notice of violation shall not prevent the enforcement of this Code.

(2) Ifnecessary, the City Attorney shall take such legal action as required to ensure instre
compliance with this Code unless:

A. It has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City that the violation has
been corrected or removed or;

B. A court of competent jurisdiction has stayed enforcement pending the
outcome of a proceeding before it, concerning the violation.

(c) Penalty. A violation of this Code may be the subject of criminal, civil, or other sanctions
authorized by State Law or City Ordinances.

TC-8 9/05/06

30



(1) Inadditionto, orin lieu of criminal actions, a violation of this Code or a permit issued
herein may be the subject of a civil penalty to be recovered by a civil action in the
nature of a debt or of any appropriate remedy issuing from a court of competent
jurisdiction, including mandatory and prohibitory injunctions and orders of
abatement.

(2) Upon conviction of a civil violation of this Code, a fine up to $750 may be imposed.
Each day such violation continues beyond the ten (10) day Notice of Violation first
provided by the City Administrator, will be considered a separate offense.

SECTION 9.109 FEES

Application and review fees established by resolution of the City Council shall be paid to the City
at the time of submitting an application and shall be in addition to other fees established by county,
state or federal regulations.

cecooploatn  DERRUIORE (Daerred it -len
ARTICLE 9.2 APPLICATION PROCEDURES
SECTION 9.201 PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATIONS WITH CITY STAFF

An applicant may request an informal review of a proposal prior to application to determine the
general feasibility of the proposal. The applicant should submit a brief description and a sketch
drawing of the proposed development to the City for preliminary consultation. The City will
inform the applicant of the procedural requirements and any conditions and polices of public
agencies that may be pertinent to the proposal. The applicant may proceed with an application or
the City may suggest a pre-application conference with City Staff and affected agencies to assist
the applicant in preparing the application.

SECTION  9.202 PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE WITH AFFECTED
AGENCIES

Within 30 days after the pre-application consultation, the City Administrator may schedule a pre-
application conference with the applicant and representatives of the City and other affected public
and private agencies to further clarify the conditions and requirements necessary in the preparation
of the application.

(a) Changes in the law. Due to possible changes in federal, state, regional, and local law, the
applicant is responsible for ensuring that the application complies with all applicable laws.

(b) Disclaimer. Failure of the Planning Official or City Administrator, or his or her designee to
provide any of the information required for a pre-application consultation, as outlined in Section
9:201, shall not constitute a waiver of any of the standards, criteria, or requirements for the

application.

SECTION 9.203 APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Following preliminary consultation and the pre-application conference, where applicable, the
applicant shall prepare an application together with other supplementary data required to clearly

31

10



describe the proposed development and the decision requested of the City.

@

(b)

(©

(d)

)

®

(9)

(h)

0)

Applications, Petitions and Appeals provided for in this Code shall be made on forms
prescribed by the City. Forms are available at the Lowell City Hall, 107 East 3" Street ,
P.0. Box 490, Lowell, Oregon 97452, Telephone - (541) 937-2157, Fax - (541) 937- 2936.

Applications shall be accompanied by narrative descriptions, an Application Site Plan in
conformance with Section 9.204 if required, building plans, maps, specifications and any
other information that clearly describe the request and the applicable City Code sections
that may apply to the request.

A consolidated procedure shall be utilized by the City for applications that require more
than one approval procedure for a development project. The City will identify and address
all of the procedures concurrently and will utilize the most comprehensive procedure
and decision process of those required in the application. The total fee shall be the sum of
all individual procedural fees with the exception that Site Plan Review fees shall not be
included to arrive at the total fee.

Applications shall include the application form, site plan together with all documents,
evidence and supplemental information relied upon by the applicant. The City may require
the applicant to provide additional copies of all application materials. A Review or Hearing
will be scheduled not earlier than 30 days from the date the Application is deemed
complete.

All Applications shall be available to the public and notifications will be mailed by the
City not later than fifteen (15) days prior to the review or hearing meeting.

An application and review fee shall accompany the application request in accordance with
the provisions of Section 9.109.

Staff reports used at the review or hearing shall be available at least seven (7) days prior
to the review or hearing.

The City shall comply with ORS 227.178 and take final action on an application, including
resolution of all local appeals, within 120 days after the application is deemed complete.
If an application is incomplete, the City shall notify the applicant within 30 days of receipt
of the application and allow the applicant to submit the missing information. The
application shall be deemed complete if the applicant supplies the missing information, or
if the applicant refuses to submit the missing information, it shall be deemed complete on
the 31st day after the application is received by the City.

If an application is complete when first submitted or if the applicant submits the requested
missing information within 180 days of the date the application was first submitted,
approval or denial of the application shall be based upon the standards and criteria that
were applicable at the time the application was first submitted.

The 120 day period specified in subsection (8) may be extended for a reasonable time at
the request of the applicant.

The 120 day period specified in subsection (8) does not apply to an amendment to this
Code.

32



(k)  The Applicant bears the responsibility and burden of proof for the requested action.

(1)) The Application and the decision of the City shall be maintained by the City in a Record
File of the Application. Notice of Decision shall be given the Applicant and other
participants in the proceedings as specified in Section 9.304.

(m) Expiration. Approved applications shall be void eighteen (18) months after the date of
approval unless a building permit has been issued or other significant action has been taken
to exercise the approval, unless a different period was specified as a condition of approval.
However, upon written request, the Deciding Body may extend authorization for an

additional period of time.

(n)  The specific ﬁuircmcnts and decision process for each application procedure are

contained

(including consolidations)

Approvals Review Applicable Regulations
Procedures

Amendments (Text Change to Type IV Section 9.253 Amendments

Development Code or

Comprehensive Plan)

Annexations Type IV Section 9.254 Annexations

Building Permit Type | Title VIIl — Building and Applicable Standards
of Zoning Designation. Section 9.209.

Code Interpretation Type Il Section 9.105

Conditional Use Permit Type Il Section 9.251

Flood Plain Development Permit Typel Section 9.620 Flood Hazard Development

Home Occupation (outside of Type Il Section 9.702 Home Occupation Standards

boundaries of Regulating Plan)

Home Occupation (inside Typel Section 9.702 Home Occupation Standards

boundaries of Regulating Plan)

Official Planned Unit Development Type IV Section 9.465 Official PD Development Plan

(PUD)

Modification to Approval (minor) Type | Section 9.243 Proposed Changes in Approved
Plans for Subdivisions or Land Partitions.
Section 9.466 for PUD.

Modification to Approval (major) Type lll Section 9.243 Proposed Changes in Approved
Plans for Subdivision or Land Partitions.
Section 9.466 for PUD.

Zone Change Map Amendment Type IV Section 9.253 Amendments

Change (for one or more affected

properties)

Property Line Adjustments Type Il Section 9.211 Property Line Adjustments and

Lot Consolidations

33

12



Non-Conforming Use Type |l Section 9.408 Nonconforming Use

Determination

(Lots/Use/Structures/Premises/Ch

aracteristics)

Partition Type lll Section 9.220 Subdivision or Partition
Tentative Plans

Sign Permit Type | Section 9.530 Signs

Site Plan Review Type lll Section 9.250 Site Plan Review.
Site Plan Review for Building Permit
Submittal shall be a Type | process. See
Building Permit.

Site Plan Review (Within Type Il Section 9.250 Site Plan Review.

Boundaries of Regulating Plan) Site Plan Review for Building Permit
Submittal shall be a Type | process. See
Building Permit.

Subdivision - Tentative Type lll Section 9.220 Subdivision or Partition
Tentative Plan and Section 9.228 Decision
Criteria

Subdivision - Final Type | Section 9.230 Subdivision or Partition Plat
and Section 9.238 Decision Criteria

Temporary Manufactured Type ll Section 9.714 Temporary Manufactured

Dwelling Use Permit Dwelling Use

Variance Type lll Section 9.252 Variances

Annexation Type IV Section 9.254 Annexations

Vacation Type IV Section 9.255 Vacations

Replat Type lll Section 9.241 Replatting

(0) All land use and development permit applications and approvals shall be decided by using

the procedures identified in Table 1. The procedure “type” assigned to each application

governs the decision-making process for that permit or approval.

(1) Type | Procedure (Ministerial). Type | decisions are made by the City Administrator,

or someone he or she officially designates, without public notice and without a public

hearing. The Type | procedure is used when there are clear and objective approval

criteria and applying City standards and criteria requires no use of discretion. Type |

process is further outlined in Section B1208.

(2) Type Il Procedure (Administrative). Type Il decisions are made by the City

Administrator or his or her designee, with public notice, and an opportunity for a public

hearing if appealed. Type Il decisions may be heard by Planning Commission. The

appeal of a Type Il decision is heard by the Planning Commission. Type Il process is

further outlined in Section Bi208.

(3) Type Il Procedure (Quasi-Judicial). Type Il decisions are made by the Planning

Commission after a public hearing, with appeals reviewed by the City Council. Type IlI

decisions generally use discretionary approval criteria. The Type Il process is further

outlined in Section -

34

13



(4) Type IV Procedure (Legislative). Type 1V procedures apply to legislative matters.
Legislative matters involved the creation, revision, or large-scale implementation of
public policy (e.g., adoption of land use regulations, zone changes, and comprehensive
plan amendments that apply to entire districts, not just one property). Type IV matters are
considered initially by the Planning Commission for a recommendation, with a final
decision made by the City Council. Appeals are submitted to the Oregon State Land Use
Board of Appeals (LUBA). The Type IV process is further outlined in Section 9:208.

SECTION 9.204 APPLICATION SITE PLAN

Applications for land divisions requiring a tentative plan or for any land use request in this code
that requires a site plan shall submit the plan on 8 1/2 x 11 inch or 11 x 17 inch black/white
reproducible sheets for copying and distribution. Larger drawings may be required for presentation
and City review. Drawings shall be drawn to scale. The scale to be used shall be in any multiple
of 1 inch equals 10 feet (17 =20, 1”=30". 1”=100’, etc.) and may be increased or decreased as
necessary to fit the sheet size. The Application and site plan shall show clearly and with full
dimensioning the following information, as applicable, for all existing and proposed development.
It is understood that some of the requested information may not apply to every application. (X) out
the number of non-applicable information.

(a) The names of the owner(s) and applicant if different.

(b) The property address or geographic location and the Assessor Map number and Tax Lot
number.

(c) The date, scale and northpoint.

(d) A vicinity map showing properties within the notification area and roads. An Assessor
Map, with all adjacent properties, is adequate.

(e) Lot dimensions.

) The location, size, height and uses for all existing and proposed buildings.
(9) Yards, open space and landscaping.

(h) Walls and fences: location, height and materials.

0] Off-street parking: location, number of spaces, dimensions of parking area and internal
circulation patterns.

()] Access: pedestrian, vehicular, service, points of ingress and egress.

(k) Signs: location, size, height and means of illumination.

35

14



() Loading: location, dimension, number of spaces, internal circulation.

(m)  Lighting: location and general nature, hooding devices.

(n) Street dedication and improvements.

0) Special site features including existing and proposed grades and trees, and plantings to be
preserved and removed.

(p) Water systems, drainage systems, sewage disposal systems and utilities.

(@) Drainage ways, water courses, flood plain and wetlands.

(n The number of people that will occupy the site including family members, employees or
customers.

(s) The number of generated trips per day from each mode of travel by type: employees,
customers, shipping, receiving, etc.

(® Time of operation, where appropriate. Including hours of operation, days of the week
and number of work shifts.

(u) Specifications of the type and extent of emissions, potential hazards or nuisance
characteristics generated by the proposed use. The applicant shall accurately specify the
extent of emissions and nuisance characteristics relative to the proposed use.
Misrepresentation or omission of required data shall be grounds for denial or termination
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Uses which possess nuisance characteristics or those potentially detrimental to the public
health, safety and general welfare of the community including, but not limited to; noise,
water quality, vibration, smoke, odor, fumes, dust, heat, glare or electromagnetic
interference, may require additional safeguards or conditions of use as required by the
Planning Commission or City Council.

All uses shall meet all applicable standards and regulations of the Oregon State

Board of Health, the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, and any other public
agency having appropriate regulatory jurisdiction. City approval of a land use application
shall be conditional upon evidence being submitted to the City indicating that the proposed
activity has been approved by all appropriate regulatory agencies.

(v) Such other data as may be necessary to permit the deciding authority to make the
required findings.

SECTION 9.205 RECORD FILE

The City shall maintain an official Record File of each application containing all relevant data,
drawings, dates, notices, hearings, postponements, continuances, decisions, appeals and minutes
of all meetings pertaining to the application.

36



@)

(b)

©

(d)

)

®

Minutes of all meetings, reviews and hearings shall record the substance of all issues before
the review or hearing body including the criteria, factual evidence and the justification for
the decision as specified in Article 9.3. Summary written minutes shall be maintained in
the Record file. The minutes and records need not be a verbatim transcript of the meeting.

Proceedings may be recorded either stenographically or electronically although a verbatim
record is not required. Minutes may be summarized from the transcript or tape.

Testimony may be transcribed at the expense of the requesting party, if required for judicial
review or local appeal proceedings. The transcribing fee may include all actual costs as
authorized by state law.

The staff report and recommendation shall be included in the Record File.

The review or hearing body shall, where practical, retain as part of the record each item of
physical or documentary evidence presented and shall have the items marked to show the
identity of the person offering the same and whether presented on behalf of a proponent
or opponent. Exhibits received into evidence shall be retained in the Record file until after
all appeal periods have expired, at which time the exhibits may be released.

The public shall have access to the Record File of the proceedings at reasonable times,
places, and circumstances. A person shall be entitled to make copies of the record at the
person's own expense.

SECTION 9.206 APPLICATION TYPES PROCESS

(@)

Type | Procedure (Ministerial).

(1) Application Requirements

A. Application Forms. Type | applications shall be made on forms provided by the
City Administrator or designee.

B. Application Requirements. Type | applications shall:
1. Include the information requested on the application form.
2. Address the criteria in sufficient detail for review and action.
3. Be filed with the required fee.

2) Ministerial Decision Requirements. The City Administrator or designee’s decision shall

address all of the approval criteria, including applicable requirements of any road authority.

Based on the criteria and the facts contained within the record, the City Administrator shall
approve or deny the requested permit or action. A written record of the decision shall be
provided to the applicant and kept on file at City Hall.

(3) Final Decision. A Type | decision is the final decision of the City. It cannot be appealed
to City Officials.

(4) Effective Date. A Type | decision is final on the date it is made.

37

16



(b)

Type Il Procedure (Administrative)

(1) Pre-application Conference. A pre-application conference is optional for Type Il
reviews. Pre-application conference requirements and procedures are in ﬁ

(2) Application Requirements.

A. Application Forms. Type Il applications shall be made on forms provided by the

City Administrator or designee.

B. Submittal Information. The application shall:

1. Include the information requested on the application form;

2. Be filed with one copy of a narrative statement that explains how the
application satisfies each and all of the relevant criteria and standards in
sufficient detail for review and decision-making. Note: additional
information may be required based on the requested land use action; and

3. Be accompanied by the required fee.

(3) Notice of Application for Type Il Administrative Decision.

A. Before making a Type Il Administrative Decision, the City Administrator or
designee shall mail notice to:

1. All owners of record of real property within a minimum of 300 feet of
the subject site.

2. All City-recognized neighborhood groups or associations whose
boundaries include the site.

3. Any person who submits a written request to receive a notice.

4. Any governmental agency that is entitled to notice under an
intergovernmental agreement entered into with the City. The City may
notify other affected agencies. The City shall notify the road authority,
when there is a proposed development abutting or affecting their
transportation facility and allow the agency to review, comment on, and
suggest conditions of approval for the application.

B. Posted Notice. Posted notice shall be provided, when required, as follows:

1. The applicant shall post notice on the subject property no earlier than 14,
and no later than ten, days prior to the end of the 14-day comment period.

The notice shall remain in place throughout the comment period. The
applicant shall file an affidavit of posting with the City no later than five
days after the date of original posting. The affidavit shall be made part of

the file.
2. Posted notice shall be deemed to have been provided upon the date when

the sign is first posted. Subsequent removal of or damage to the sign by
anyone other than the applicant or an officer of the City shall not
invalidate the proceeding.

3. Notice shall be posted on each street frontage of the subject property, in a

conspicuous place that is visible from the public right-of-way. If no street

abuts the subject property, the notice shall be placed as near as possible
to the subject property in a conspicuous place that can be readily seen by

38

17



39

the public.
4, Posted notice shall be on signs approved by the City Administrator or

designee.
5. The applicant shall remove the signs from the subject property after the

comment period.

C. The purpose of the notice is to give nearby property owners and other interested
people the opportunity to submit written comments about the application before the
Type Il decision is made. The goal of this notice is to invite people to participate
early in the decision-making process.

D. Notice of a pending Type Il Administrative Decision shall:

1. Provide a 14-day period for submitting written comments before a

decision is made on the permit.

List the relevant approval criteria by name and number of code sections.

3. State the place, date and time the comments are due, and the person to
whom the comments should be addressed.

4. Include the name, telephone number, and email of a contact person
regarding the Administrative Decision.

5. Describe proposal and identify the specific permits or approvals
requested.

6. Describe the street address or other easily understandable reference to the
location of the site.

7. State that if any person fails to address the relevant approval criteria with
enough detail, they may not be able to appeal to the Land Use Board of
Appeals or Circuit Court on that issue. Only comments on the relevant
approval criteria are considered relevant evidence.

8. State that all evidence relied upon by the City Administrator or designee
to make this decision is in the public record, available for public review.
Copies of this evidence can be obtained at a reasonable cost from the
City.

9. State that after the comment period closes, the City Administrator or
designee shall issue a Type Il Administrative Decision, and that the
decision shall be mailed to the applicant and to anyone else who
submitted written comments or who is otherwise legally entitled to
notice.

10. Contain the following notice: “Notice to mortgagee, lien holder, vendor,
or seller: The City of Lowell Development Code requires that if you
receive this notice, it shall be promptly forwarded to the purchaser.”

N

E. Administrative Decision Requirements. The City Administrator or designee shall
make a Type Il written decision addressing all of the relevant approval criteria and
standards. Based upon the criteria and standards, and the facts contained within the
record, the City Administrator or designee shall approve, approve with conditions,
or deny the requested permit or action. If the application has unique or unclear
characteristics the City Administrator, or the applicant, may refer the application to
the Planning Commission for review in a public hearing, in which case the review
shall follow the Type 111 procedures in ﬁ

F. Notice of Decision.

18



40

1. Within five days after the City Administrator or designee signs the
decision, a Notice of Decision shall be sent by mail to:

(i) The applicant and all owners or contract purchasers of record
of the site that is the subject of the application.

(ii) Any person who submits a written request to receive notice,
or provides comments during the application-review period.

(iii)  Any City-recognized neighborhood group or association
whose boundaries include the site.

(iv)  Any governmental agency that is entitled to notice under an
intergovernmental agreement entered into with the City, and
other agencies that were notified or provided comments
during the application review period.

2. The City Administrator or designee shall cause an affidavit of mailing
the notice to be prepared and made a part of the file. The affidavit shall
show the date the notice was mailed and shall demonstrate that the notice
was mailed to the parties above and was mailed within the time required
by law.

3. The Type Il Notice of Decision shall contain:

(i) A description of the applicant’s proposal and the City’s
decision on the proposal (i.e., may be a summary).

(ii) The address or other geographic description of the property
proposed for development, including a map of the property in
relation to the surrounding area, where applicable.

(iii) A statement of where the City’s decision can be obtained.

(iv)  The date the decision shall become final, unless appealed.

(v) A statement that all persons entitled to notice may appeal the
decision.

(vi) A statement briefly explaining how to file an appeal, the
deadline for filing an appeal, and where to obtain further
information concerning the appeal process.

G. Final Decision and Effective Date. A Type |l administrative decision is final for
purposes of appeal, when it is mailed by the City. A Type Il administrative decision
is effective on the day after the appeal period expires. If an appeal is filed, the
decision is effective when the appeal is decided.

H. Appeal. A Type Il administrative decision may be appealed to the Planning
Commission as follows:

1. Who may appeal. The following people have legal standing to appeal a
Type Il Administrative Decision:

(i) The applicant or owner of the subject property.
(ii) Any person who was entitled to written notice of the Type Il
administrative decision.

19



Ly

(iii) _ Any other person who participated in the proceeding by
submitting written comments.

2. Appeal filing procedure. Any person with standing to appeal, as provided
in subsection 1, above, may appeal a Type || Administrative Decision by
filing a Notice of Appeal according to the following procedures. A
Notice of Appeal shall be filed with the City Administrator or designee
within 15 days of the date the Notice of Decision was mailed.

3. Contents of notice appeal. The Notice of Appeal shall contain:

(i) An identification of the decision being appealed, including the
date of the decision.

(ii) A statement demonstrating the person filing the Notice of
Appeal has standing to appeal.

(iii) A statement explaining the specific issues being raised on
appeal.

(iv)  If the appellant is not the applicant, a statement demonstrating
that the appeal issues were raised during the comment period.

()] Filing fee.

4. Scope of appeal. The appeal of a Type Il Administrative Decision by a
person with standing shall be a hearing de novo before the Planning
Commission. The appeal shall not be limited to the application materials,
evidence and other documentation, and specific issues raised in the Type
Il administrative review. The Planning Commission may allow additional
evidence, testimony or argument concerning any relevant standard,
criterion, condition, or issue.

5. Appeal procedures. Type 1l notice, hearing procedures and decision
process shall also be used for all Type Il Administrative Appeals, as
rovided in

6. Further appeal to City Council. The decision of the Planning
Commission regarding an appeal of a Type Il Administrative Decision is
the final decision of the City unless appealed to City Council. An appeal
to City Council shall follow the same notification and hearing procedures
as for the Planning Commission hearing. The decision of the City
Council on an appeal is final and effective on the date it is mailed by the
City. The City Council’s decision may be appealed to the State Land Use
Board of Appeals pursuant to ORS 197.805 — 197.860.

(c) Type Il procedure (Quasi-Judicial)

(1) Pre-application Conference. A pre-application conference is required for all Type IlI

applications. The requirements and procedures for a pre-application conference are
described in .

(2) Application Requirements.

A. Application forms. Type |1l applications shall be made on forms provided by the

20



City Administrator or designee; if a Type Il application is referred to a Type 11

hearing, either voluntarily by the applicant or staff, or upon appeal, no new

application is required.

B. Submittal Information. When a Type |1l application is required, it shall:

1. Include the information requested on the application form.

2. Be filed with one copy of a narrative statement that explains how the

application satisfies each and all of the relevant criteria and standards in

sufficient detail for review and decision-making. Note: additional

information may be required under the specific application requirements

for each approval.

3. Be accompanied by the required fee.

(3) Notice of Hearing.

A. Mailed notice. The City shall mail the notice of the Type IlI action. The records

of the Lane County Assessor’s Office are the official records for determining

ownership and can be accessed by RLID — Regional Land Use Information Database

www rlid.org. Notice of a Type Il application hearing or Type Il appeal hearing

shall be given by the City Administrator or designee in the following manner:

1. At least 20 days before the hearing date, notice shall be mailed to:

()

The applicant and all owners or contract purchasers of record

(ii)

of the property that is the subject of the application.
All property owners of record within 300 feet of the site.

(iii)

Any governmental agency that is entitled to notice under an

(iv)

intergovernmental agreement entered into with the City. The
City may notify other affected agencies. The City shall notify

the road authority, and rail authority and owner, when there is

a proposed development abutting or affecting their
transportation facility and allow the agency to review,
comment on, and suggest conditions of approval for the

application.
Owners of airports in the vicinity shall be notified of a

(v)

proposed zone change in accordance with ORS 227.175.
Any neighborhood or community organization recognized by

(vi)

the City Council and whose boundaries include the property
proposed for development.
Any person who submits a written request to receive notice.

(vii)

For appeals, the appellant and all persons who provided

(viii)

testimony in the original decision.
For a land use district change affecting a manufactured home

or mobile home park, all mailing addresses within the park, in

accordance with ORS 227.175.

2. The City Administrator or designee shall have an affidavit of notice be

prepared and made a part of the file. The affidavit shall state the date that the

42

21



notice was mailed to the persons who must receive notice.

B. Content of Notice. Notice of appeal of a Type Il Administrative decision or

notice of a Type |1l hearing to be mailed shall contain the following information:

1.

10.

The nature of the application and the proposed land use or uses that could

be authorized for the property.

The applicable criteria and standards from the development code(s) that
apply to the application.

The street address or other easily understood geographical reference to
the subject property.

The date, time, and location of the public hearing.

A statement that the failure to raise an issue in person, or by letter at the
hearing, or failure to provide statements or evidence sufficient to afford
the decision-maker an opportunity to respond to the issue, means that an
appeal based on that issue cannot be filed with the State Land Use Board
of Appeals.

The name of a City representative to contact and the telephone number
where additional information on the application may be obtained.

A statement that a copy of the application, all documents and evidence
submitted by or for the applicant, and the applicable criteria and
standards can be reviewed at City Hall at no cost and that copies shall be
provided at a reasonable cost.

A statement that a copy of the City’s staff report and recommendation to
the hearings body shall be available for review at no cost at least seven
days before the hearing, and that a copy shall be provided on request at a
reasonable cost.

A general explanation of the requirements to submit testimony, and the
procedure for conducting public hearings.

The following notice: “Notice to mortgagee, lien holder, vendor, or
seller: The City of Lowell requires that if you receive this notice, it shall
be promptly forwarded to the purchaser.”

C. Posted Notice. Posted notice shall be provided, when required, as follows:

1.

The applicant shall post notice on the subject property no earlier than 14
and no later than ten days prior to the end of the 14-day comment period.
The notice shall remain in place throughout the comment period. The
applicant shall file an affidavit of posting with the City no later than five
days after the date of original posting. The affidavit shall be made a part
of the file.

43

22



44

(i) Posted notice. Posted notice shall be deemed to have been
provided upon the date when the sign is first posted. Subsequent
removal of or damage to the sign by anyone other than the applicant
or an officer of the City shall not invalidate the proceeding.

2. Notice shall be posted on each street frontage of the subject property, in a
conspicuous place that is visible from the public right-of-way. If no street
abuts the subject property, the notice shall be placed as near as possible
to the subject property in a conspicuous place that can be readily seen by

the public;

3. Posted notice shall be on signs approved by the City Administrator; and

4. The applicant shall remove the signs from the subject property after the
comment period ends.

(4) Conduct of the Public Hearing.

A. At the commencement of the hearing, the hearings body shall state to those in
attendance:

1. The applicable approval criteria and standards that apply to the
application or appeal.

2. A statement that testimony and evidence shall concern the approval
criteria described in the staff report, or other criteria in the
comprehensive plan or land use regulations that the person testifying
believes to apply to the decision.

3. A statement that failure to raise an issue with sufficient detail to give the
hearings body and the parties an opportunity to respond to the issue,
means that no appeal may be made to the State Land Use Board of
Appeals on that issue.

4, Before the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, any participant
may ask the Planning Commission for an opportunity to present
additional relevant evidence or testimony that is within the scope of the
hearing. The hearings body shall grant the request by scheduling a date to
finish the hearing (a “continuance™) per paragraph 2 of this subsection, or
by leaving the record open for additional written evidence or testimony
per paragraph 3 of this subsection.

B. If the Planning Commission grants a continuance, the completion of the hearing
shall be continued to a date, time, and place at least seven days after the date of the
first evidentiary hearing. An opportunity shall be provided at the second hearing for
persons to present and respond to new written evidence and oral testimony. If new
written evidence is submitted at the second hearing, any person may request, before
the conclusion of the second hearing, that the record be left open for at least seven
days, so that they can submit additional written evidence or testimony in response to
the new written evidence.

23



C. If the Planning Commission leaves the record open for additional written
evidence or testimony, the record shall be left open for at least seven days after the
hearing. Any participant may ask the City in writing for an opportunity to respond to

new evidence submitted during the period that the record was left open. If such a
request is filed, the Planning Commission shall reopen the record.

1. When the Planning Commission reopens the record to admit new
evidence or testimony, any person may raise new issues that relate to that

new evidence or testimony.

2. An extension of the hearing or record granted is subject to the limitations

of ORS 227.178 (“120-day rule”), unless the continuance or extension is
requested or agreed to by the applicant.

3. If requested by the applicant, the City shall allow the applicant at least
seven days after the record is closed to all other persons to submit final
written arguments in support of the application, unless the applicant
expressly waives this right. The applicant’s final submittal shall be part
of the record but shall not include any new evidence.

4. The record shall contain all testimony and evidence that is submitted to
the City and that the hearings body has not rejected.

5. In making its decision, the hearings body may take notice of facts not in
the hearing record (e.qg., local, state, or federal regulations; previous city
decisions; case law; staff reports). The review authority must announce
its intention to take notice of such facts in its deliberations, and allow
persons who previously participated in the hearing to request the hearing
record be reopened, if necessary, to present evidence concerning the
noticed facts.

6. The review authority shall retain custody of the record until the City
issues a final decision.

D. Participants in the appeal of a Type || Administrative decision or participants in a

Type Il hearing are entitled to an impartial review authority as free from potential
conflicts of interest and pre-hearing ex parte contacts as reasonably possible.
However, the public has a countervailing right of free access to public officials.
Therefore:

1. At the beginning of the public hearing, hearings body members shall
disclose the substance of any pre-hearing ex parte contacts (as defined in
below) concerning the application or appeal. He or she shall

state whether the contact has impaired their impartiality or their ability to

vote on the matter and shall participate or abstain accordingly.

2. A member of the hearings body shall not participate in any proceeding in

which they, or any of the following, has a direct or substantial financial
interest: their spouse, brother, sister, child, parent, father-in-law, mother-
in-law, partner, any business in which they are then serving or have

45

24



46

served within the previous two years, or any business with which they
are negotiating for or have an arrangement or understanding concerning
prospective partnership or employment. Any actual or potential interest
shall be disclosed at the hearing where the action is being taken.

3. Disqualification of a member of the hearings body due to contacts or
conflict may be ordered by a majority of the members present and voting.
The person who is the subject of the motion may not vote on the motion

to disqualify.

4. If all members of the Planning Commission abstain or are disqualified,
the City Council shall be the hearing body. If all members of the City
Council abstain or are disqualified, a quorum of those members present
who declare their reasons for abstention or disqualification shall be
requalified to make a decision.

5. Any member of the public may raise conflict of interest issues prior to or
during the hearing, to which the member of the hearings body shall reply
in accordance with this section.

E. Ex parte communications.

1. Members of the hearings body shall not:

(0] Communicate directly or indirectly with any applicant,
appellant, other party to the proceedings, or representative of

a party about any issue involved in a hearing without giving
notice [_ger ﬁ above.

(ii)  Take official notice of any communication, report, or other
materials outside the record prepared by the proponents or
opponents in connection with the particular case, unless all
participants are given the opportunity to respond to the
noticed materials.

2. No decision or action of the hearings body shall be invalid due to ex parte
contacts or bias resulting from ex parte contacts, if the person receiving
contact:

(i) Places in the record the substance of any written or oral ex
parte communications concerning the decision or action.

(ii) Makes a public announcement of the content of the
communication and of all participants’ right to dispute the
substance of the communication made. This announcement
shall be made at the first hearing following the
communication during which action shall be considered or
taken on the subject of the communication.

3. A communication between City staff and the hearings body is not
considered an ex parte contact.

F. Presenting and receiving evidence.

25



47

1. The hearings body may set reasonable time limits for oral presentations
and may limit or exclude cumulative, repetitious, irrelevant or personally
derogatory testimony or evidence.

2. No oral testimony shall be accepted after the close of the public hearing.

Written testimony may be received after the close of the public hearing,
onI)_[ as érovided in ﬁ

3. Members of the hearings body may visit the property and the
surrounding area, and may use information obtained during the site visit
to support their decision, if the information relied upon is disclosed at the
beginning of the hearing and an opportunity is provided to dispute the
evidence.

(5) The Decision Process.

A. Basis for decision. Approval of a Type Il or Type Il application, or denial of an
appeal of a Type Il decision, shall be based on standards and criteria in the
development code. The standards and criteria shall relate approval or denial of a
discretionary development permit application to the development regulations and,
when appropriate, to the comprehensive plan for the area in which the development
would occur and to the development regulations and comprehensive plan for the

City as a whole.

B. Findings and conclusions. Approval or denial shall be based upon the criteria and
standards considered relevant to the decision. The written decision shall explain the
relevant criteria and standards, state the facts relied upon in rendering the decision,
and justify the decision according to the criteria, standards, and facts.

C. Form of decision. The Planning Commission shall issue a final written order
containing the findings and conclusions, which either approves, denies, or approves
with specific conditions. The Planning Commission may also issue appropriate
intermediate rulings when more than one permit or decision is required.

D. Decision-making time limits. A final order for any Type || Administrative
Appeal or Type Il action shall be filed with the City Administrator or designee
within ten business days after the close of the deliberation.

E. Notice of Decision. Written notice of a Type Il Administrative Appeal decision or
a Type |1l decision shall be mailed to the applicant and to all participants of record
within ten business days after the hearings body decision. Failure of any person to
receive mailed notice shall not invalidate the decision, provided that a good faith
attempt was made to mail the notice.

F. Final Decision and Effective Date. The decision of the hearings body on any Type
11 appeal or any Type |1l application is final for purposes of appeal on the date it is
mailed by the City. The decision is effective on the day after the appeal period
expires. If an appeal is filed, the decision becomes effective on the day after the
appeal is decided by the City Council. The notification and hearings procedures for
Type |11 applications on appeal to the City Council shall be the same as for the

26



48

initial hearing. An appeal of a land use decision to the State Land Use Board of
Appeals must be filed within 21 days of the City Council’s written decision or, in
the case of Type | decision, within 21 days of the administrative decision date.

(6) Appeal.

A. An appeal of a Type Ill decision may be appealed to the City Council within 15
days of the date the Notice of Decision was mailed. The appeal process for a Type
111 appeal shall be the same as a Type Il appeal process. See

(d) Type IV Procedure (Legislative)

(1). Pre-Application Conference. A pre-application conference is required for all Type IV

applications initiated by a party other than the City. The requirements and procedures for a
pre-application conference are described in .

(2). Application Requirements.

A. Application forms. Type IV applications shall be made on forms provided by the
City Administrator or designee.

B. Submittal Information. The application shall contain:

1. The information requested on the application form;

2. A map and/or plan addressing the appropriate criteria and standards in
sufficient detail for review and decision (as applicable);

3. The required fee; and

4. One copy of a letter or narrative statement that explains how the
application satisfies each and all of the relevant approval criteria and
standards.

(3). Notice of Hearing.

A. Required hearings. A minimum of two hearings, one before the Planning
Commission and one before the City Council, are required for all Type IV
applications.

B. Notification Requirements. Notice of public hearings for the request shall be
given by the City Administrator or designee in the following manner:

1. Atleast 10 days, but not more than 40 days, before the date of the first
hearing on an ordinance that proposes to amend the comprehensive plan
or any element thereof, or to adopt an ordinance that proposes to rezone

property, a notice shall be prepared in conformance with ORS 227.175
and mailed to:

(i) Each owner whose property would be rezoned in order to
implement the ordinance (including owners of property

27



49

subject to a comprehensive plan amendment shall be notified
if a zone change would be required to implement the proposed
comprehensive plan amendment).

(ii) Any affected governmental agency.

(i) Any person who requests notice in writing.

(iv)  For a zone change affecting a manufactured home or mobile
home park, all mailing addresses within the park, in
accordance with ORS 227.175.

2. At least 10 days before the scheduled Planning Commission public
hearing date, and 10 days before the City Council hearing date, public
notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
City.

3. The City Administrator or designee shall:

(i) For each mailing of notice, file an affidavit of mailing in the
record as provided by .

(ii) For each published notice, file in the record the affidavit of
publication in a newspaper that is required in

4, The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development
(DLCD) shall be notified electronically using the Post-acknowledgement
Plan Amendment (PAPA) online submittal system of proposed
comprehensive plan and development code amendments at least 35 days
before the first public hearing at which public testimony or new evidence
will be received.

5. Notifications for annexation shall follow the provisions of this SECHOM

and ORS 222.

C. Content of notices. The mailed and published notices shall include the following
information:

1. The number and title of the file containing the application, and the
address and telephone number of the City Administrator or designee’s
office where additional information about the application can be
obtained.

2. The proposed site location.

3. A description of the proposed site and the proposal in enough detail for
people to determine what change is proposed, and the place where all
relevant materials and information may be obtained or reviewed.

4. The time(s), place(s), and date(s) of the public hearing(s); a statement
that public oral or written testimony is invited; and a statement that the
hearing will be held under this title and rules of procedure adopted by the
Council and available at City Hall.

5. Each mailed notice required shall contain the following statement:

28



50

“Notice to mortgagee, lien holder, vendor, or seller: The Lowell
Development Code requires that if you receive this notice it shall be
promptly forwarded to the purchaser.”

D. Failure to receive notice. The failure of any person to receive notice shall not
invalidate the action, providing:

1. Personal notice is deemed given where the notice is deposited with the
United States Postal Service.

2. Published notice is deemed given on the date it is published.

(4). Hearing Process and Procedure.

A. Unless otherwise provided in the rules of procedure adopted by the Lowell City
Council:

1. The presiding officer of the Lowell Planning Commission and of the
Lowell City Council shall have the authority to:

(i) Requlate the course, sequence, and decorum of the hearing.
(ii) Direct procedural requirements or similar matters.
(iii)  Impose reasonable time limits for oral presentations.

2. No person shall address the Lowell Planning Commission or the Lowell
City Council without:

(i) Receiving recognition from the presiding officer.
(ii) Stating their full name and address.

3. Disruptive conduct such as applause, cheering, or display of signs shall
be cause for expulsion of a person or persons from the hearing,
termination or continuation of the hearing, or other appropriate action
determined by the presiding officer.

B. Unless otherwise provided in the rules of procedures adopted by the Lowell City
Council, the presiding officer of the Lowell Planning Commission and of the
Council shall conduct the hearing as follows:

1. The presiding officer shall begin the hearing with a statement of the
nature of the matter before the body, a general summary of the
procedures, a summary of the standards for decision-making, and
whether the decision which will be made is a recommendation to the
Lowell City Council or the final decision of the Council;

2. The City Administrator or designee’s report and other applicable staff
reports shall be presented;

3. The public shall be invited to testify;

4. The public hearing may be continued to allow additional testimony, or it

29



51

may be closed; and

5. The body’s deliberation may include questions to the staff, comments
from the staff, and inquiries directed to any person present.

(5) Continuation of the Public Hearing. The Lowell Planning Commission or the Lowell
City Council may continue any hearing, and no additional notice of hearing shall be
required if the matter is continued to a specified place, date, and time.

(6) Decision-Making Criteria. The recommendation by the Lowell Planning Commission
and the decision by the Lowell City Council shall be based on the following factors:

A. Approval of the request is consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals;

B. Approval of the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan;

C. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public
facilities, services, and transportation networks to support the use, or such
facilities, services, and transportation networks are planned to be provided
concurrently with the development of the property; and

D. All relevant applicable approval criteria as contained elsewhere in the Lowell
Development Code.

(7) Approval Process and Authority.

A. The Lowell Planning Commission shall:

1. After notice and a public hearing, vote on and prepare a recommendation
to the Lowell City Council to approve, approve with modifications,
approve with conditions, deny the proposed change, or adopt an
alternative.

B. Any member of the Lowell Planning Commission who votes in opposition to the
Planning Commission’s majority recommendation may file a written statement of
opposition with the City Administrator or designee before the Council public
hearing on the proposal. The City Administrator or designee shall send a copy to
each Council member and place a copy in the record.

C. If the Lowell Planning Commission fails to adopt a recommendation to approve,
approve with modifications, approve with conditions, deny the proposed change, or
adopt an alternative proposal within 60 days of its first public hearing on the
proposed change, the City Administrator or designee shall:

1. Report the failure together with the proposed change to the City Council.

2. Provide notice and put the matter on the City Council’s agenda for the
City Council to hold a public hearing make a decision. No further action
shall be taken by the Commission.

D. The Lowell City Council shall:

30



52

1. Approve, approve with modifications, approve with conditions, deny, or
adopt an alternative to an application for legislative change, or remand
the application to the Lowell Planning Commission for rehearing and
reconsideration on all or part of the application.

2. Consider the recommendation of the Lowell Planning Commission;

however, the City Council is not bound by the Commission’s
recommendation.

3. Act by ordinance. which shall be signed by the Mayor after the Council’s
adoption of the ordinance.

(8) Vote Required for a Legislative Change.

A. A vote by a majority of the qualified voting members of the Lowell Planning
Commission present is required for a recommendation for approval, approval
with modifications, approval with conditions, denial or adoption of an
alternative; and

B. A vote by a majority of the qualified members of the Lowell City Council
present is required to decide any motion made on the proposal.

(9) Notice of Decision. Notice of a Type IV decision shall be mailed to the applicant, all
participants of record, and the Department of Land Conservation and Development, within
five business days after the City Council decision is filed with the City Administrator or
designee. The City shall also provide notice to all persons as required by other applicable
laws.

(10) Final Decision and Effective Date. A Type IV decision, if approved, shall take effect
and shall become final as specified in the enacting ordinance, or if not approved, upon
mailing of the notice of decision to the applicant.

(11) Record of the Public Hearing.

A. A record of the proceeding shall be made by a minutes recorder, stenographic,
mechanical, or electronic means. It is not necessary to transcribe an electronic
record. The minutes and other evidence presented as a part of the hearing shall
be part of the record.

B. All exhibits received and displayed shall be marked to provide identification and
shall be part of the record.

C. The official record shall include:

1. All materials considered by the hearings body.

2. All materials submitted by the City Administrator or designee to the
hearings body regarding the application.

3. The record made by the minutes recorder, stenographic, mechanical, or

31



electronic means; the minutes of the hearing; and other documents

considered.

. The final ordinance.

. All correspondence.

. A copy of the notices that were given as required by SECHOMDX.

53

32



SECTION 9.209 BUILDING PERMITS

@

(b)

(©

(d)

Building Permits are issued by the City through a TYPE | ministerial process. The City
contracts with others to provide plan review and construction inspections in accordance
with ORS Chapter 455.

Building Permits applications may be submitted and building permits issued at any time
upon compliance with established Building permitting processes for Permitted Uses not
requiring a Review or Public Hearing by the Planning Commission or City Council.

Application for Building Permits requiring any land use decision described in this Article
normally may not be submitted until the land use decision has been made approving the
use. The exception to this requirement being that the Applicant may make application for
a Building Permit prior to land use approval if the Applicant agrees in writing to pay all
Building Permit fees should the land use decision be denied. Building Permits for an
approved land use decision shall not be issued until the appeal period, as specified under
Section 9.309, has passed without the approval of the City Administrator.

Certificate of Occupancy will only be issued when all Conditions for Approval of a land
use decision required to allow the building permit to be issued have been met.

54

33



SECTION 9.210 LAND DIVISIONS
SECTION 9.211 PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS

@) Purpose. A property line adjustment is a relocation of a common property line between
abutting properties when both parties agree. A property line adjustment shall not create an
additional lot or parcel, reduced a lot or parcel in size below the minimum size specified
for the zone, or create a violation of development standards on either lot or parcel. A lot
consolidation is the legal incorporation of two or more existing lots or parcels of land to
form a single, larger property.

(b) Application. A property line adjustment, or lot consolidation may be submitted for review
by the City Administrator without preliminary consultation, a land division conference, or
a hearing where the adjustment complies with Section 9.212 and 9.213.

(c)  Information. The City may require additional copies of the proposed map of the property
line adjustment together with other supplementary data required for recording or specified
herein as required for review and action by the deciding authority.

SECTION 2.212 PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENT REQUIREMENTS

All property line adjustment andfer lot consolidation requests shall contain the following
information:

(a) The property to be adjusted shall comply with ORS 92 for Property Line Adjustments.
(b) A map clearly and legibly drawn to scale with the scale indicated.

(c) The title "Property Line Adjustment” for, or “Lot Consolidation for” ....... ," the date and
northpoint.

(d) Name and address of the record owner(s) of the property to be adjusted.

(e) Assessor Map and Tax Lot numbers and approximate acreage or square feet of each
property prior to and after adjustment.

(f) The location and boundary dimensions and other information to accurately locate the
adjusted property line.

(9) Existing conditions for land within the properties to be adjusted:
(1) The locations, names and widths of existing streets.

(2) The location, width and purpose of existing or proposed easements.
(3) (e) The approximate location of buildings, public and private utilities, drainage ways

and other significant features that would affect development of the adjusted
properties.

55

34



SECTION 9.213 DECISION CRITERIA

A Property Line Adjustment or-Lot Consolidation-may be approved based upon
compliance with the submittal requirements specified above and the following findings:

(a) Property Line Adjustment.

@
®)

(e

(e}

(1) The adjustment will not create an additional unit of land.

(2) The adjustment will not create a land-locked parcel.

(3) The existing unit of land reduced in size by the adjustment complies with applicable
City Ordinances and this Code and will not create a non-conforming lot or non-conforming

development.

(4) The adjustment shall comply with any previous Conditions of Approval attached to the
properties to be adjusted.

(5) The adjustment shall comply with all state and county recording requirements.

(b) A Lot Consolidation.

(1) Each property is a lawfully established unit of land, or the consolidation is intended to
rectify previous unlawful establishment of units of land.

(2) The resulting number of parcels will be less than the existing number.

(3) All affected properties will comply with the minimum lot depth, width, and area
standards of the applicable zone after the proposed consolidation.

(i) Lot consolidations are permitted non-conforming lots.

(4) Existing structures on any affected property will comply with the minimum and
maximum setback standards of the applicable zone after the proposed consolidation.

(i) If existing structures on any affected property do not comply with the
minimum and maximum setback standards of the applicable zone, the
consolidation shall not increase noncompliance of setback standards.

(5) If the resulting aggregation of affected properties is eligible for additional development

under existing zoning, the proposed consolidation will not preclude the opportunity for
such additional development.

56

35



SECTION 9.214 DECISION PROCESS

@)

(b)

©

A Property Lme Ad|ustment or Lot Consolldatlon shall be processed asa Tvpe 1 process.

If the proposed Property Line Adjustment, or Lot Consolidation is consistent with City
land use standards, the City Administrator may approve the map as submitted, approve
with conditions or deny the request for noncompliance.

If the application requires a Variance or the establishment or relocation of an Easement, or
requires interpretation or the exercise of policy, the decision shall be placed before the
Planning Commission which shall hold a public hearing in conformance with the Type I11

process procedures of SECHOMPX. Ouasi—judicialPublic Hearings requirementsof Section
9.306.

SECTION 9.215 PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENT AND LOT CONSOLIDATION
EILING

@)

(b)

©

Deeds or conveyances for all lots or parcels conforming to the approved Property Line
Adjustment, or Lot Consolidation shall be filed with Lane County Deeds and Records the
County-Clerk in accordance with ORS 92.190, subsections (3) and (4).

Upon approval or denial, a Notice of Decision shall be given the Applicant together with
any conditions of approval for the proposed Property Line Adjustment, or Lot
Consolidation as specified in SECHOMOIB06. A decision by the City Administrator may be

appealed to the Planning Comm|SS|on in accordance with . IheApphean{—may

Copies of all recorded deeds, conveyances and filed surveys shall be provided to the City
for inclusion in the Record File of the Application, in accordance with

57

36



SECTIONS 9.216 through 9.219 Reserved for Expansion
SECTION 9.220 SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION TENTATIVE PLAN

@) The Planning Commission shall have the authority to review and approve Land Partitions,

and Subdivisions, pursuant to a Type Il process. And—the—City—Councih—with

(b) In the event that a single land use application requires more than one decision, the highest
deciding authority will make all decisions requested in the application.

SECTION 9.221 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

A land divider shall prepare a Tentative Plan together with improvement plans and other
supplementary material as may be required to indicate the general idea and objectives of the
project. The Applicant shall submit three copies of the Tentative Plan and supplementary data to
the City at the time of submittal of the application. The City may require additional copies to be
submitted before review or hearing.

SECTION 9.222 FORM AND SCALE

The Tentative Plan shall be clearly and legibly presented on 8 1/2 x 11 inch or 11 x 17 inch
black/white reproducible sheets for copying and distribution. Larger drawings may be required for
presentation and City review. The scale to be used shall be in multiples of 1 inch equals 10 feet
(17=20’,17=30". 17 =100’, etc.) and may be increased or decreased as necessary to fit the sheet
size.

SECTION 9.223 GENERAL INFORMATION
The following information shall be provided on all Tentative Plans:

(a) All information required by ORS 92 for a Tentative Plan including, but not limited to, the
following.

(b) No Tentative Plan shall be approved which bears a name using a word which is the same
as, similar to or pronounced the same as a word in the name of any other subdivision in the
same county, except for the words "town," "city," "place,” "court," "addition," or similar
words, unless the land Platted is contiguous to and Platted by the same party that Platted
the subdivision bearing that name or unless the party files and records the consent of the
party that Platted the subdivision bearing that name. All Plats must continue the lot and
block numbers of the Plat of the same name last filed.

Subdivisions submitted for final approval shall not use block numbers or letters unless such
subdivision is a continued phase of a previously recorded subdivision, bearing the same
name, that has previously used block numbers or letters.

(c) Date, northpoint, scale of drawing.

58

37



(d)

(©)

U]
(9)

Appropriate identification clearly stating the map is a subdivision or partition Tentative
Plan.

Location of the land division by section, township and range sufficient to define the
location and boundaries of the proposed subdivision.

Names and addresses of the owner, applicant and surveyor.

The approximate acreage of the tract being subdivided or partitioned, and the size of
proposed lots or parcels.

SECTION 9.224 EXISTING CONDITIONS INFORMATION

@

(b)

(©

(d)
©)

®

(9)

(h)

The location, widths and names of both opened and unopened streets within or adjacent to
the land division, together with easements, other right-of-ways and other important
locational information such as section lines, corners, city boundary lines and monuments.

The location of all existing sewers, septic tanks and drainfields, water lines, storm drains,
culverts, ditches and utilities, together with elevational data, on the site and on adjoining
property or streets, if applicable.

The base data used to determine contours shall be clearly indicated and shall be compatible
to City datum if bench marks are not adjacent. The following intervals are required:

Contour Intervals Ground Slope
One Foot Up to 10%
Five Feet Over 10%

Exception: The City may approve slope indications for partitions by means of arrows or
other suitable symbol together with not less than four spot elevations per acre evenly
distributed for slopes of less than five percent (5%).

The location of at least one bench mark control point within the tract boundaries.

The location and direction of all on-site and off-site drainage, drainage channels, water
courses and the location of all areas subject to flooding.

Natural features such as rock outcroppings, wetlands, wooded areas and isolated
preservable trees. Lands that are wholly or partially within areas identified as wetlands
shall be clearly delineated for review and permit.

Existing uses on and adjacent to the property, including the location of all existing
structures to remain on the property after the land division.

Zoning on and adjacent to the property to be divided.

SECTION 9.225 PROPOSED PLAN INFORMATION

59

38



@

(b)

(©
(d)

O

®

(9)

(h)

0]

0)

(k)

A vicinity map clearly showing the relationship and connections of the proposed land
division to surrounding developments, streets, storm drainage, sewer, septic tank and
drainfield, water and utility services.

The location, width, name and approximate grade and curve radii of proposed street. The
relationship of proposed streets to existing streets and any projected future streets shown
on the Master Road Plan or other transportation planning document. Streets proposed for
public dedication and streets held for private use shall be clearly indicated and all
reservations or restrictions relating to such private streets shall be included in the
statements specified in Section 9.226.

The location, width, and purpose of existing and proposed easements.

The total acreage and the proposed land use for the land division including sites for special
purposes or those allocated for public use.

The location and approximate dimensions of lots or parcels and the proposed lot or parcel
numbers. Where the property division results in any lots or parcels that are larger than 2%
times the minimum lot size, the applicant shall provide a sketch plan showing how the
parcels may be re-divided in the future to provide for at least 80% of maximum density
within current minimum lot sizes, existing site constraints and requirements of this Code.

An outline of the areas proposed for partial recording of a final Plat and a time schedule
for additional Platting if staged recording is proposed.

A general layout of all public utilities and facilities to be installed including provisions for
connections and extensions beyond the proposed land division.

The proposed method of connection to all drainage channels located outside of the
proposed land division and the proposed method of flood control (retention ponds, swales,
etc.) and contamination protection (settling basins, separators, etc.).

Identification of all proposed public dedications including streets, pedestrian or bike ways,
parks or open space areas.

Identification of any requirements for future streets and easements required for extension
of public infrastructure beyond the development together with restrictions on building
within those future streets and easements as well as future setback areas required by this
Code.

Identification and layout of all special improvements. Special improvements may include,
but are not limited to, signs, lighting, benches, mail boxes, bus stops, greenways, bike or
pedestrian paths.

SECTION 9.226 ACCOMPANYING STATEMENTS

The Tentative Plan shall be accompanied by written statements from the applicant giving
essential information regarding the following matters:

60

39



@

(b)

(©
(d)

©)

®

()

Identify the adequacy and source of water supply including:

(1) Certification that water will be available to the lot line of each and every lot depicted
on the Tentative Plan for a subdivision, or

(2) Abond, contract or other assurance by the applicant that a public water supply system
will be installed by or on behalf of the applicant to each and every lot depicted on the
Tentative Plan. The amount of such bond, contract or other assurance shall be
determined by the City Council.

Identify the proposed method of sewage disposal including:

(1) Certification that a sewage disposal system will be available to the lot line of each
and every lot depicted on the Tentative Plan for a subdivision, or

(2) A bond, contract or other assurance by the applicant that a sewage disposal system
will be installed by or on behalf of the applicant to each and every lot depicted on the
Tentative Plan. The amount of such bond, contract or other assurance shall be
determined by the City.

Protective covenants, conditions and deed restrictions (CC&R'S) to be recorded, if any.

Identify all proposed public dedications including streets, pedestrian or bike ways, parks
Or open space areas.

Identify all public improvements proposed to be installed, the approximate time installation
is anticipated and the proposed method of financing. Identify required improvements that
are proposed to not be provided and the reason why they are not considered necessary for
the proposed land division.

A statement that the declarations required by ORS 92.075 on the final Plat can be achieved
by the fee owner, vendor and/or the mortgage or trust deed holder of the property.

Proposed staged subdivisions or serial partitions shall be clearly identified on the
application. A time schedule for future Platting shall also be submitted. The deciding
authority may require a specific time schedule for approval.

SECTION 9.227 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Any of the following may be required by the City, in writing to the applicant, to supplement the
Tentative Plan.

@

(b)

Approximate center line profiles with extensions for a reasonable distance beyond the
limits of the proposed land division showing the finished grade of streets and the nature
and extent of street construction.

A detailed plan of the domestic water supply lines and related water service facilities.

61

40



() A detailed plan of the sewage disposal, storm water drainage and flood control, including
profiles of proposed drainage ways.

(d) If lot areas are to be graded, a plan showing the nature of cuts and fill and information on
the character of the soil.

(e) Specifications and details of all proposed improvements.
(f)  Wetland delineation if identified as an existing condition in Sectioni9i224:H)!

SECTION 9.228 DECISION CRITERIA

A Partition Tentative Plan may be approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to a Type 11
process, oRdo-Subdrsianonhr e Doamn cacneareeeeb b cihe Clp e Coumellopsnnpt e n T aae
\-process—Approval shall be based upon compliance with the submittal requirements specified
above and the following findings.

@) That the proposed land division complies with applicable provisions of City Codes and
Ordinances, including zoning district standards.

(b) In dividing large tracts into lots or parcels which may be further divided into smaller
properties, the applicant has shown through a shadow plat indicating future division of the
property and street layout will not preclude development on adjacent tracts and will
facilitate future land divisions and ensure existing structures and infrastructure will meet
the locational requirements of this code.

(c) The proposed street plan:

A Is in conformance with City standards and with the Master Road Plan or other
transportation planning document.
B. Provides for adequate and safe traffic and pedestrian circulation both

internally and in relation to the existing City street system.
C. Will not preclude the orderly extension of streets and utilities on undeveloped
and underdeveloped portions of the subject property or on surrounding properties.

(d) Adequate public facilities and services are available to the site, or if public services and
facilities are not presently available, the applicant has demonstrated that the services and
facilities will be available prior to need, by providing at least one of the following:

A Prior written commitment of public funds by the appropriate public agency.

62

41



)

(f)

)]

B. Prior acceptance by the appropriate public agency of a written commitment
by the applicant or other party to provide private services and facilities.

C. A written commitment by the applicant of other party to provide for
offsetting all added public costs or early commitment of public funds made necessary
by development, submitted on a form acceptable to the City.

That proposed public utilities can be extended to accommodate future growth beyond the
proposed land division.

Stormwater runoff from the proposed land division will not create significant and
unreasonable negative impacts on natural drainage courses either on-site or downstream,
including, but not limited to erosion, scouring, turbidity, or transport of sediment due to
increased peak flows and velocity.

The proposed land division does not pose a significant and unreasonable risk to public

health and safety, including but not limited to fire, slope failure, flood hazard, impaired
emergency response or other impacts identified in h

63

42



SECTION 9.230 FINAL SUBDIVISION OR

PARTITION PLAT SECTION 9.231  SUBMISSION
REQUIREMENTS

Within 18 months after approval of the Tentative Plan, the land divider shall cause the land division
to be surveyed and a Final Plat prepared and submitted to the City for approval. This time period
may be extended for up to one year upon the approval of the Deciding Authority. The Final Plat
shall be in conformance with the approved tentative Plan. All public improvements required by
the tentative plan approval must be completed and accepted prior to the City’s approval of the Plat,
unless the applicant provides security to assure public improvements will be completed. If the land
divider fails to submit the Final Plat for approval within 18 months or as extended, they ke must
reapply for approval and resubmit the Tentative Plan with any revision necessary to comply with
changed conditions.

SECTION 9.232 FORM AND SCALE

The Final Plat shall be submitted in the form prescribed by ORS 92 and the county recording
standards.

SECTION 9.233 INFORMATION REQUIRED

In addition to that otherwise specified by law, the following information shall be shown on the
Final Plat.

(a) The name of the owner(s), land divider, surveyor and land division. The date, scale,
northpoint, legend and existing features such as creeks, drainage courses, highways and
railroads.

(b) Reference to Federal Geodetic Control Committee guidelines for third order class |1, points

64

43



(©

(d)

©)

®

(9)

(h)

0]

@

(k)

of existing surveys identified, related to the Plat by distances and bearings, and referenced
to a field book or map as follows:

(1) Stakes, monuments or other evidence found on the ground and used to determine
the boundaries of the land division.

(2) Adjoining corners of adjoining land divisions.

(3) Other monuments found or established in making the survey or required to be
installed by provisions of this Code.

The exact location and width of streets, rights-of-way and easements intercepting the
boundary of the tract.

Tract and lot or parcel boundary lines and street right-of-way and center lines, with
dimensions, bearings or deflection angles, radii, arcs, points of curvature and tangent
bearings. Tract boundaries and street bearings shall be shown to the nearest 30 seconds
with basis of bearings. Distances shall be shown to the nearest 0.01 feet. No ditto marks
shall be used.

The name and width of the portion of streets being dedicated, the width of any existing
right-of-way and the width on each side of the center line. For streets on curvature, curve
data shall be based on the street center line. In addition to the center-line dimensions, the
radius and center angle shall be indicated.

Easements denoted by fine dashed lines clearly identified and, if already of record, their
recorded reference. If an easement is not definitely located or recorded, there shall be a
written statement of the easement. The width of the easement, its length and bearing, and
sufficient ties to locate the easement with respect to the land division, must be shown. If
the easement is being dedicated by the Plat or map, it shall be properly referenced in the
owner's certificates of dedication.

Locations and widths of drainage channels including one hundred year flood plain or
normal high water lines for any creek or other body of water, railroad rights-of-ways,
reserve strips at the end of stub streets or along the edge of partial width streets on the
boundary of the land division.

Numbering of lots or parcels shall begin with the number "1" and numbered consecutively.
Number sequence to generally follow the same system as sections are numbered in a
township.

Lots or parcels to be dedicated for any purpose shall be distinguished from lots or parcels
intended for sale with acreage and alphabetic symbols for each parcel indicated.

Notations indicating any limitations on rights of access to or from streets and lots or other
parcels of land as established by the City.

Special building setback lines and solar easements, if any, which are to be made part of the
Deed Covenants Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R's) of the land division.

SECTION 9.234 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION WITH PLAT

65

44



Filing of separate legal documents to achieve any of the requirements of the final Plat may be
permitted by the City when it can be shown that placing such information on the final Plat is not
required to achieve the purposes of this Code. The following data may accompany the Plat.

@) Legal descriptions of the land division boundaries if available at the time of
Plat approval.

(b) A copy of any proposed deed CC&R's (Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions) applicable
to the land division.

(c) A copy of any dedication requiring separate documents.
(d) Verification that:

(1) All improvements have been installed in accordance with the requirements of these
regulations and with the action of the Deciding Authority giving conditional approval
of the Tentative Plan or,

(2) Anagreement has been executed to assure completion of required improvements
SECTION 9.235 SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

A complete and accurate survey of the land to be divided, shall be made by a registered surveyor
licensed to practice in the State of Oregon in accordance with standard practices and principles of
land surveying and as provided in this Code and state law including Oregon Revised Statutes,
Chapter 92 and Chapter 209.

SECTION 9.236 DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS

@) All lots or parcels of land shown on the final Plat intended for public use shall be offered
for dedication to the City at the time the Plat is filed. Exception: Those lots or parcels, or
common linear open spaces which are intended for the exclusive use of the owners, their
licensees, visitors, tenants or employees; and also excepted are those parcels of land
reserved for public acquisition.

(b) All streets, pedestrian ways, drainage channels, open spaces, easements and other rights-
of-way shown on the final Plat intended for public use shall be offered for dedication for
public use at the time the final Plat is filed.

(c) All rights of access to and from streets, lots and parcels of land shown on the final Plat
intended to be surrendered shall be offered for dedication at the time the final Plat is filed.

(d) The land divider shall provide and designate one-foot reserve strips across the ends of
stubbed streets adjoining undivided land or along half streets adjoining undivided land. The
reserve strip shall be included in the dedication granting to the City the right to

66

45



control access over the reserve strip to assure the continuation or completion of the street.
This reserve strip shall overlay the dedicated street right-of-way.

SECTION 9.237 CERTIFICATES ON FINAL PLAT

Certificates on the Final Subdivision or Partition Plat shall be as required in ORS,
Chapter 92. The following City of Lowell certificates are required:

(@) A certificate for execution by the City Administrator to certify that the final plat conforms
to the approved tentative plan as approved or amended.

(b) Ifany land is dedicated to the City, A certificate that the City has accepted public
dedications, for execution by the Mayor.

SECTION 9.238 DECISION CRITERIA

A final Plat of a subdivision or partition may be approved by the City Administrator, pursuant to

a Type | process, based upon compliance with the submittal requirements specified above and

the following findings:

@) The final Plat is in substantial conformance with the Tentative Plan.

(b) The Conditions of Approval attached to the Tentative Plan have been satisfied.

(c) All public improvement requirements have been completed or surety provided.

SECTION 9.239 DECISION PROCESS

(a) Upon receipt by the City, the Plat and other data shall be reviewed by the City
Administrator or designee through a Type | process to determine that the land division as

shown is substantially the same as it appeared on the approved Tentative Plan and that there
has been compliance with provisions of law and of this Code.

(b) The City may make such checks in the field as are desirable to verify that the plat is
sufficiently correct on the ground and City representatives may enter the property for this
purpose. Certifications of the County Surveyor shall be used to determine that the plat
survey is technically correct.

(c) If the City Administrator determines that the Plat conforms to the approved Tentative Plan,
including all supplemental documents, provisions for required improvements and all
conditions specified by the Deciding Authority, approval shall be indicated by the signature
of the City Administrator. The approval of the Plat does not constitute an acceptance by
the City of the dedication of any street or other easements offered on the plat until officially
accepted by the City. If such dedications have been officially accepted by the City, the
Mayor shall certify such by signing the Plat.

(d) If the City Administrator finds errors or finds that the Plat does not substantially conform
to the approved Tentative Plan, the City shall advise the land divider of the changes or
additions that must be made and shall afford the land divider an opportunity to make

67

46



corrections or to request an amendment to the approved Tentative Plan. An amendment to
the Tentative Plan must be approved by the Deciding Authority.

SECTION 9.240 FILING OF PLAT
(@) Within 60 days of City approval of the Final Plat, the applicant shall submit the Final Plat

to Lane County and to the City of Lowell for signatures of County and City officials, as
required by ORS Chapter 92.

(b) The land divider shall deliver to the City a signed and certified copy of the Plat and all
recorded documents required and approved by the City. The City shall maintain the
documents in the Record File of the Application in accordance with Section 9.205.

SECTION 9.241 REPLATTING

@) Replatting shall allow the reconfiguration of lots or parcels and public easements within a
recorded Plat in accordance with ORS 92.180 to 92.190. A replat shall conform to all of
the requirements of the City for a subdivision or partition of land including approval of a
Tentative Plan unless approved as a Property Line Adjustment as described in Section
9.211 of this Code. Upon approval by the City, the replat will act to vacate the Platted
lots or parcels and easements within the replat area, subject to ORS 92.

(b) Notice consistent with that required for approval of a Tentative Plan shall be provided by
the City. All affected utility companies or public agencies shall also be notified. Utility
companies desiring to maintain easements proposed for vacation shall notify the City
within 14 days of the mailing of the notice.

SECTION 9.242 EXPEDITED LAND DIVISIONS

When an expedited land division, for residential use only, is requested by an Applicant, the City
shall use the procedures for an expedited land divisions specified under ORS 197.365 in lieu of
the procedures described in Sections 9.220 through 9.229 if the application complies with the
conditions and standards of ORS 197.360 through 197.380. Upon request for an expedited land
division, the City Administrator shall evaluate the application against the requirements to qualify
for expedited land division contained in ORS 197.360 and provide a written administrative
decision, approving or denying expedited land division, to the applicant. The applicant may appeal
the decision under provisions of Section 9.309.

TC-30 9/05/06

68

47



SECTION 9.243 PROPOSED CHANGES IN APPROVED PLANS FOR
SUBDIVISIONS OR LAND PARTITIONS.

(a) Major Changes. Major changes in the approved tentative plat shall be considered a new
application and shall comply with the procedures for approval. Anything not listed below as a Minor
Change is considered a Major Change.

(1) Does not change the development density (i.e., dwellings units per acre).

(2) Does not change the boundaries of the proposed land division.

(3) Does not change any use, such as residential to commercial.

(4) Does not change the location or amount of land devoted to a specific land use.

(5) Does not relax dimensional standards or other specific requirements established by the
City as a condition of approval.

(b) Minor Changes. Minor changes may be approved by the City Administrator pursuant to a Type |
process.

SECTIONS 9.244 through 9.249 Reserved for Expansion.

SECTION 9.250 SITE PLAN REVIEW

The purpose of the site plan review procedures is to correlate the general code requirements with
the specific site conditions and proposed uses through a comprehensive review process to assure
that developments are in conformance with the City's applicable land use regulations.

(@) Site Plan Review Application. An application for a use or development requiring a Site
Plan Review by the Lowell Planning Commission shall be processed and submitted in accordance
with the procedures of a Type |11 land use application for proposed developed located outside of

the boundarles of the Requlatmq Plan shel#bei#e%mth%e@ttﬁegethepmmhﬂsfs%ptahﬂand

Plan%eeﬂoh—g—zm Proposed developed W|th|n the boundarles of the Requlatlnq Plan shall be

processed and reviewed utilizing a Type Il land use process. The City Administrator may also
request a Site Plan Review for any development proposal, in addition to those specifically required
by this Code, if the site or proposed buildings have unusual or special features that the City
Administrator decides may require a decision by the Planning Commission.

(b)  Decision Criteria. After an examination of the Site and prior to approval, the Planning
Commission, or City Administrator, in the case of development within the Regulating
Plan, must make the following findings:

(1) That the proposed development complies with the Zoning District standards, or in
case of proposed develop within the boundaries of the Reqgulating Plan, the
development conforms to the Building Standards Sheets as listed in SECHONSA.

(2) That the proposed development complies with applicable provisions of city codes
and ordinances.

TC-30 9/05/06

69

48



(3) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to traffic flow or to
pedestrian and vehicular safety and future street rights-of-way are protected.

(4) That proposed signs or lighting will not, by size, location or color, interfere with
traffic, limit visibility or impact on adjacent properties.

(5) That proposed utility connections are available, have the capacity to serve the
proposed development and can be extended in the future to accommodate future
growth beyond the proposed land division.

(6) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to existing or
proposed drainageways including flow disruptions, flooding, contamination or
erosion.

(7) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts, potential hazards or
nuisance characteristics .as identified in Section 2.140, Item 21 of the Application
Site Plan consistent with the standards of the Zoning District and complies with the
applicable standards of all regulatory agencies having jurisdiction.

Decision Process. The procedure for taking action on an application for a Site Plan
Review shall be as follows:

(1) Site Plan Review shall be conducted in accordance with the Type Il land use procedures
for development proposed outside of the boundaries of the Regulating Plan. Proposed
development within the boundaries of the Regulating Plan shall be conducted in accordance
with the Type Il land use procedures.

(2) The Planning Commission may approve, disapprove, or modify and approve the Site
Plan and attach any reasonable conditions to approval of a site development plan.

(4) Once approved, the site plan submitted shall become the Official Plan. Building
permits shall be issued only for plans that conform to the Official Plan and all
construction shall conform to the Official Plan or a Certificate of Occupancy may be
withheld until compliance.

(5) All required elements of the approved site plan shall be installed and maintained
indefinitely by the owner, unless approval has been received for a revision or
amendment.

TC-30 9/05/06



(6) Revisions or amendments to an approved site plan shall follow the same procedure
as for adoption of a site development plan.

SECTION 9.251 CONDITIONAL USES

A conditional use is a use of land or a structure which is normally appropriate in the district where
it is permitted, but due to the specifics of that use could cause a potential nuisance, health or safety
problem. It is the intent of this section to provide standards and procedures so that uses which are
classified as conditional can fit into a particular zone in a manner that safeguards surrounding
property, the neighborhood, and the City.

@

(b)

Conditional Use Application. Conditional Use Permit requests shall be processed in
accordance with the Type 1l land use procedures. An application for a use requiring a
Conditional Use must be filed with the City together with a site plan and other
supplementary data using forms described in the Application, Section 9.203 and the
Application Site Plan, Section 9.204.

The Planning Commission may also request a Conditional Use for any development
proposal, in addition to those specifically required by this Code, if the site or proposed use
has characteristics similar to, but different than, the uses permitted in the zone.

Uses existing prior to the effective date of this Code that are classified as a conditional use
in this Code shall conform with the requirements for a conditional use if a change in use,
lot area or an alteration is proposed.

Decision Criteria. Conditional uses listed in this Code may be permitted, altered, or
enlarged upon authorization of the Planning Commission in accordance with the following
findings:

(1) That the proposed development can comply with the Zoning District standards with
Conditions of Approval.

(2) That the proposed development complies with applicable provisions of city codes and
ordinances.

(3) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to traffic flow or to
pedestrian and vehicular safety and future street rights-of-way are protected.

(4) That proposed signs or lighting will not, by size, location or color, interfere with
traffic, limit visibility or impact on adjacent properties.

(5) That proposed utility connections are available, have the capacity to serve the
proposed development and can be extended in the future to accommodate future
growth beyond the proposed land division.

(6) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to existing or
proposed drainageways including flow disruptions, flooding, contamination or
erosion.

(7) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts, potential hazards or

TC-30 9/05/06

71

50



©

(d)

nuisance characteristics as identified in Section 9.204 (u) of the Application Site Plan
consistent with the standards of the Zoning District and complies with the applicable
standards of all regulatory agencies having jurisdiction.

Decision Conditions. In approving a conditional use application, the Planning
Commission may require additional standards and conditions which the Planning
Commission considers necessary to comply implementing codes or ordinances. These
conditions may include, but are not limited to, the following:

)
@
©)
(4)
®)
(6)

™
®)
©)

(10)

(1)
(12)

(13)

(14)

Regulating the required lot size, lot width, or yard dimensions.

Regulating the height of buildings.

Controlling the location and number of vehicle access points.

Requiring dedication of additional street right-of-way or increasing the street width.
Increasing the number of required off-street parking or off-street loading spaces.

Requiring fencing, screening, landscaping or other facilities to protect adjacent or
nearby property.

Limiting the number, size, location and lighting of signs.

Requiring ongoing maintenance of buildings and grounds.

Regulating emissions, potential hazards or nuisance characteristics caused by the
proposed use which could have a negative impact on the surrounding area or the City
as a whole.

Providing internal property improvements such as utilities, drainage facilities, streets,

curbs, gutters, walkways, parking areas, landscaping, fencing, screening, or
recreation areas in order to enhance the area and to protect adjacent or nearby

property.

Regulating time periods for the conduct of certain activities.

Setting a time limit for which the conditional use is approved.

Providing a performance bond or other security for the cost of improvements to
guarantee compliance with the standards and conditions of approval for the

conditional use approved by the Planning Commission.

Providing a contractual agreement with the City to assure that the applicant will pay
a share of the development costs for future public improvements.

Decision Process. The procedure for taking action on an application for a Conditional
Use shall be as follows:

)

A Conditional Use requires a Public Hearing “Quasijudicial-Public-Hearing™ by the
Planning Commission in conformance with the Type 111 procedures of Section 9.309.

TC-30 9/05/06

72

51



@

©)

4)

®)

(6)

The Planning Commission may approve, deny, or approve conditionally the
Conditional Use and attach any reasonable standards of development to attain
compliance with the zone and city codes and ordinances.

If an application is denied, the action must be based on reasons related to non-
compliance with Development Code or Ordinance requirements and inability to meet
criteria for approval.

Once approved, the Conditional Use shall become the Official Plan. Building permits
shall be issued only for plans which conform to the Official Plan and all construction
shall conform to the official plan or a Certificate of Occupancy may be withheld until
compliance.

All required elements of the approved Conditional Use shall be installed and
maintained indefinitely by the owner unless approval has been received for a revision
or amendment.

Revisions or amendments to an approved Conditional Use shall follow the same
procedure as that utilized for approval.

TC-30 9/05/06

73

52



SECTION 9.252 VARIANCES

Because of the impossibility of foreseeing and providing for all circumstances and conditions
which may effect individual properties or uses, the variance provision is created to allow
modification of the provisions of this Code for special and unusual circumstances without defeating
the purpose and intent of the Code.

@)

(b)

(©

Variance Application. A Variance request shall be processed in accordance with the
Type Il land use procedures. An application for a Variance shall be filed with the City
together with a site plan and other supplementary data using forms prescribed in Section
9.203

The applicant shall submit evidence that the circumstance for granting a Variance as
outlined in ltem (2) herein apply to the Variance request. The Planning Commission may
authorize variances from the requirements of this Code where it can be shown that, owing
to special and unusual circumstances related to a specific property or use, strict application
of the Code would cause an undue or unnecessary hardship. A Variance shall not be granted
to allow a use permitted in another district or zone or to allow a use not authorized within
the intended district or zone. In granting a Variance, the Planning Commission may attach
conditions which it finds necessary to protect the best interests of the surrounding property
or vicinity and otherwise achieve the purposes of this Code.

Decision Criteria. A Variance may be granted in the event that all of the following
circumstances exist:

(1) That there are circumstances or conditions affecting the property or use.

(2) That the Variance is necessary for the proper design and/or function of the proposed
development or land division.

(3) That the granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to other property in the area in which the property is situated.

(4) That the granting of the Variance will not conflict with the purpose and intent of the
district or zone, this Code, or other related ordinances of the City.

Decision Process. The procedure for taking action on an application for a Variance shall
be as follows:

(1) A Variance requires a Public Hearing “Quasijudicial-Public—Hearing" by the
Planning Commission in conformance with Type I11 procedures of the Section 9.306.

(2) The Planning Commission may approve, deny, or approve conditionally the Variance
request and attach any reasonable standards of development to attain compliance with
the zoning district and this Code as provided in Section 9.308.

(3) If an application is denied, the action must be based on reasons related to non-
compliance with Code or Ordinance requirements or with failure to meet criteria for
approval.

74

53



(4) If the application is approved, the Planning Commission may prescribe the terms and
conditions upon which a Variance may be granted and may set a time limit for

the duration of such Variance and may require guarantees in an approved form to
ensure sure-that the conditions and standards for the approved Variance will be
fulfilled.

(5) Once approved, the Variance shall become official standard. Building permits or land
divisions shall only be approved for plans that conform to the conditions and
standards of the approved Variance and all construction shall conform to the approved
Variance or a Certificate of Occupancy may be withheld until compliance.

(6) All required elements of the approved Variance shall be installed and maintained
indefinitely by the owner unless approval has been received for a revision or
amendment.

(7) Revisions or amendments to an approved Variance shall follow the same procedure
as that utilized for approval.

(8) A written record of the findings and action of the Planning Commission shall be
maintained by the City in a Record File of the Application as specified in Section
9.205. Notice of Decision shall be given in accordance with the Type Il land use
procedures. the-Applicanttogetherwith-any iti 3
%Ge—a—s—speemed—m%e@“@n—g%@g—- ifi i i O 0

SECTION 9.253 AMENDMENTS

It is recognized that this Code or the Lowell Comprehensive Plan may require amendments to
adjust to changing circumstances. An amendment may require either, a Legislative Decision (Type
1V) as defined in Section 9.303 (b) or a Quasi-judicial (Type I11) Decision as defined in Section
9.303 (€) depending upon whether the amendment applies to the Code in general or to a specific

property.

Amendments may be either Text Amendments or Map Amendments. The City utilizes a single
land use map as a Comprehensive Plan Map and a Zoning Districts Map, therefore a zone change
map amendment is an amendment to the Lowell Comprehensive Plan and the Lowell Land
Development Code.

(@) Amendment Application. An Amendment to this Code may be initiated by the City
Council, the Planning Commission or by application of a property owner. A request by a
property owner for an amendment shall be accomplished by filing an application with the
City using forms prescribed in Section 9.203.

(b) Decision Criteria. All requests for an amendment to the text or map of this Code or the
Comprehensive Plan may be permitted upon authorization by the City Council in
accordance with following findings:

(1) The proposed amendment does not conflict with the intent of the Comprehensive
Plan.

(2) There is a need for the proposed amendment to comply with changing conditions,
new laws or to correct existing deficiencies.

75

54



(3) The amendment will not have a significant adverse impact on adjacent properties.

(4) The amendment will not have a significant adverse impact on the air, water and land
resources of the City

(5) The amendment will not have a significant adverse impact on public facilities,
transportation, the economy, and on the housing needs of the City.

(6) The amendment does not conflict with the intent of Statewide Planning Goals.

(©) No application of a property owner for an amendment to the text of this Code shall be
considered by the City within a one-year period following previous denial of a similar
request, except the City Council may permit a new application, if in the opinion of the
Council, new evidence or a change of circumstance warrant it.

SECTION 9.254 ANNEXATIONS

The annexation of land to the City of Lowell shall promote orderly growth of the City and the
efficient provision of public facilities and services. The procedures and standards for annexations
are specified in ORS 222.111 to 222.180. An annexation or change in the UGB requires an
Amendment to the Lowell Comprehensive Plan in conformance with Statewide Planning Goal 14

and approval from Lane County and-the-Beundary-Commission as well as an amendment to the

Joint Agreement for Planning Coordination between Lane County and the City of Lowell.

A proposal for annexation may be initiated by the City Council on its own motion, or by a
petition to the City Council by owners of real property located in the territory to be annexed.

76

55



(@)

O]

(©

Annexation by City Council Initiation

The City Council may determine the procedures for City initiated annexations within the
limits defined by ORS 222.111 to 222.180. These procedures may include, but are not
limited to, an election within the territory to be annexed, consent of the requisite number

property owners and electors or a public hearing on the annexation. Proposed
annexations shall include the following information:

(1) A legal description of the property to be annexed and a boundary survey certified by
a registered engineer or surveyor.

(2) A map of the area to be annexed including adjacent City territory.

(3) The proposed land use zoning district(s).

(4) The availability of public facilities and services for the proposed annexation.
Annexation by Application

A request by a property owner for an annexation shall be accomplished by filing an
application with the City using forms prescribed in Section 9.203. An Annexation shall

follow the TYPE IV land use procedures. Each application for annexation shall include the
following material:

(1) Written consent to the annexation signed by the requisite number of affected property
owners, electors, or both as provided by state law.

(2) A legal description of the property to be annexed and a boundary survey certified by
a registered engineer or surveyor.

(3) A map of the area to be annexed including adjacent City territory.

(4) A statement of the expected demand on public facilities and the availability of public
facilities and services to serve the proposed annexation.

(5) A statement of the overall development intent and a conceptual land use plan
indicating the types and intensities of proposed development, transportation corridors,
watercourses, significant natural features, and adjoining development.

(6) Upon acceptance of a complete application, the City shall request a Staff Review
together with other public or private agencies which may be affected by the proposed
annexation. Upon receipt of the application, plans and accompanying narrative, Staff
shall make an evaluation and recommendation. Comments and recommendations
shall be available to the public and the Applicant. The Applicant shall be advised of
any recommended changes or conditions for approval. The City shall incorporate all
Staff comments into a report to the Planning Commission and City Council. The
report shall include an analysis of the impacts of the proposed annexation, a review
of applicable City and State policies and standards, and a recommendation as to the
appropriateness of the proposed development and the annexation itself

Decision Criteria.  All requests for annexation to the City may be permitted upon

77

56



(d)

authorization by the City Council in accordance with following findings:

()

@

®

4)

®)

(6)

The proposed annexation does not conflict with the intent of the Comprehensive or,
an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan is included with the requested annexation.

The annexation request is within the Lowell Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) or, a
UGB change is included with the requested annexation.

The annexation request complies with the procedures and standards for annexations
specified in ORS 222.111 to 222.180.

The annexation will not have a significant adverse impact on adjacent properties
within or outside of the UGB.

The annexation will not have a significant adverse impact on the air, water and land
resources of the City or surrounding areas.

The annexation will not have a significant adverse impact on public facilities,
transportation and the economy of the City.

Decision Process. The procedure for taking action on an annexation shall follow the Type

IV land use process and: reguest-may-be-one-of the-following:

()

®

@

@

rewem#theﬁappheauowrd%fer—theureqﬂeskte The Plannlng Commlssmn shaII

evaluate the proposed annexation and to determine the appropriate zoning district to
be applied upon annexation and make a recommendation to the City Council.

The Planning Commission shall #ay hold a public hearing in accordance with the
provisions of Section 9.306 for the purposes of reviewing the proposed annexation
and the proposed land use zoning district(s). Following the close of the public hearing
the Commission shall recommend the appropriate zoning district to be applied upon
annexation and forward its recommendation to the City Council.

(3) The City Council may shall hold a public hearing in accordance with the provisions of

Section 9.306 for the purposes of reviewing the proposed annexation and the
proposed land use zoning district(s). The City Council may, by ordinance containing
a legal description of the territory to be annexed, declare the territory annexed. The
zoning to be applied to the annexed territory shall be included in the adopting
ordinance or be contained in a separate ordinance that is to be adopted concurrently.

A written record of the findings and action of the City shall be maintained in a Record File
of the Application as specified in Section 9.205. Notice of Decision shall be given the
Applicant and all parties to the proceedings as specified in Section 9.308.

Approval of the annexation shall require a Notice of Decision_consistent with a Type IV

process and include be-given-the-properstate-and-county-authorities-including the Oregon
Secretary of State, the Oregon Department of Revenue, the-Oregon-U-R-Mapping-Unit, and

the County Clerk and Assessor of Lane County. Notice shall include a legal description of
the annexed property, a map of the proposed property showing the location of the annexed
property relative to the Lowell City Limits.

78

57



SECTION 9.255 VACATIONS

Where it is determined that a proposed Vacation shall not be injurious to the City or abutting
properties, it may be appropriate to vacate all or parts of a public right-of-way, easements or other
public places. This section states the procedures and criteria to permit the vacation of public lands
not needed for municipal purposes, where it is consistent with the community land use policies and
goals. Ownership of vacated territory shall revert proportionally to the adjoining properties and
become a part thereof, unless specified otherwise by the City Council.

(@)

(b)

(©

Vacation Application. An application for a Vacation shall be processed in accordance with
the Type IV land use procedures. An application for a VVacation may be initiated by the
City Council or by petition of adjoining or area landowners in accordance with ORS
271.080. A request by a property owner for a Vacation shall be accomplished by filing an
application with the City using forms prescribed in Section 9.208. Applicants shall set forth
a description of the area proposed to be vacated and shall submit a map showing the same
area and shall state the purpose and justification for the proposed vacation.

Consent of Affected Property Owners. At the time the application is submitted, the
Applicant shall submit a letter or letters of consent from affected property owners. For
purposes of this Code and in compliance with ORS 271.080, affected property owners shall
be defined as:

(1) All abutting property owners, and

(2) Owners of not less than two-thirds in area of the real property affected thereby as
defined in ORS 271.080.

Consent of the owners of the required amount of property shall be submitted in writing and
duly acknowledged by the City prior to the scheduling of a public hearing for the requested
Vacation.

Decision Criteria. A Vacation request may be approved if the review body finds that the
applicant has shown that all of the following review criteria are met:

(1) The proposed Vacation is consistent with the relevant Comprehensive Plan policies
and with any official street plan, transportation plan or public facility plan.

(2) The proposed Vacation will not adversely impact adjacent areas or the land use plan
of the City.

(3) The proposed Vacation will not have a negative effect on access between public
rights-of-way, existing or future properties, public facilities or utilities.

(4) The proposed Vacation will not have a negative effect on traffic circulation or
emergency service protection.

(5) The portion of the right-of-way that is to be vacated will be brought into compliance
with Code requirements, such as landscaping, driveway access, and reconstruction of
access for fire safety.

79

58



(6) The proposed Vacation will not have an adverse impact on economy of the area.

(7) The public interest, present and future, will be best served by approval of the proposed
Vacation.

(d) Decision Process. The procedure for taking action on a VVacation request may be one of the
following:

(1) Upon the filing of a complete application for a Vacation, the Lowell Planning

Commission shall hold a public hearing Gity-Ceuneil-shal-review-the-apphication-and
refer-the-request-to-the- Planning-Commission to evaluate the proposed Vacation and

to determine the appropriate zoning district to be applied upon the vacation and make
a recommendation to the Lowell City Council.

(2) Zoning of Vacated Right-of-Way. Except as otherwise provided within the vacation
ordinance or where the official City zoning map is not clear as to the zoning of vacated
right-of-way, the zoning of each parcel of vacated territory shall be the same as the
adjoining property to which the ownership of the vacated unit of land automatically
reverts.

(3) Vacations initiated by an applicant for a specific property within the City requires a
Type IV "Legislative Quasi-judicial Decision” by the City Council with a
recommendation by the Planning Commission, in conformance with the Type IV
OQuasijudicial-Public-Hearing procedures of _ as supplemented by the
provisions of ORS Chapter 271. State law defines the affected area and mandates
notice requirements that may be more stringent than the City’s requirements.

e

(d) The_Lowell City Council, upon recommendation of the Lowell Planning
Commission, may approve, deny or approve with standards or conditions to attain
compliance with this Code and State Statutes.

(e) Conditions of Approval. The City may attach conditions to the approval of a
Vacation request to ensure that the proposal will conform to the review criteria and
may require fair market value for the vacated property as a condition of approval.

(e) A written record of the findings and action of the City Council on the Application shall be
maintained by the City in a Record File as specified in S8ctioni9:205. Notice of Decision
shall be glven in accordance W|th the Tvpe IV procedures the—Appheam—tegether—M%h—any

: d in Section 9.308.

SECTIONS 9.256 through 9.299 Reserved for Expansion.

80

59



81

60



82

61



SECTION 9.304 NOTIFICATION

(d)

©

®

@)

(h)

State Ballot Measure 56 requires local governments to mail written individual notice to
land owners when the governing body changes the base zoning classification of property,
or adopts or amends an ordinance in a manner that limits or prohibits land uses previously
allowed in the affected zone.

The notice of review or hearing shall be mailed at least twenty (20) days prior to the date
of the review or hearing; or if two or more reviews or hearings are required, ten (10) days
before the first review or hearing. For notices that are sent by the City as a result of a new
or amendment to a state administrative rule or statute, notice shall be mailed within 30 days
of the effective date of the administrative rule or statute.

The required notice provisions of this section may be expanded to include properties
beyond 300 feet and shall include giving public notice by other means.

The failure of a person to receive the notice as provided in this section shall not invalidate
such proceedings if the City can validate by affidavit that such notice was given.

The notice provided by the City shall:

(1) Explain the nature of the application and the proposed use or uses which could be
authorized.

(2) List the applicable criteria from the Code and the Plan that apply to the application
at issue or indicate where to find criteria.

(3) Set forth the street address or other easily understood geographical reference to the
subject property.

(4) State the date, time and location of the review or public hearing.

TC-40 9/05/06

83

62



0]

0)

(5) State that failure of an issue to be raised in a review or hearing, in person or by letter,
or failure to provide sufficient detail to afford the decision maker an opportunity to
respond to the issue precludes based on that issue.

(6) Include the name and address of the City Administrator and the telephone number
where additional information may be obtained.

(7) State that a copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the
applicant and the applicable criteria are available for inspection at the Lowell City
Hall and copies will be provided at reasonable cost.

(8) State that a copy of the staff report will be available for inspection at least seven days
prior to the review or hearing.

(9) Include a general explanation of the requirements for submission of testimony and
the procedures for the conduct of reviews or public hearings by the City.

(10) The City shall provide written notice of the decision to the Applicant and all parties
to the proceeding. The notice shall briefly summarize the decision making process
and contain an explanation of appeal rights.

Wetland Notice. The City shall provide the Oregon Division of State Lands, the
Applicant and Owner with notice of applications for developments located within areas
identified as "Wetlands" on the State-wide Wetlands Inventory. No physical alteration shall
occur within defined wetland areas until a notice or permit is received from the Division.
If the Division fails to respond within thirty days of notice, City approval may be granted
with written notice to the applicant and owner that their proposal may require state or
federal permits.

DLCD Notice. The City shall notify the Department of Land Conservation and
Development of a pending adoption or amendment to the City Comprehensive Plan,
Implementing Ordinances, or any other land use ordinance or regulation. The notice shall
be provided at least 45 days prior to the first evidentiary hearing on adoption and the notice
shall contain information sufficient to inform the Department as to the effect of the
proposal. If the City determines that the statewide goals do not apply to a proposed
amendment or new regulation, notice is not required. In addition, the City may consider an
amendment or new regulation with less than 45 days notice if the City Council determines
that there are emergency circumstances requiring expedited review.

(1) The notice shall be provided at least 45 days prior to the first evidentiary hearing per
ORS197.610, OAR Chapter 660 — Division 18 and Senate Bill 543. The City may
consider an amendment or new regulation with less than 45 days notice if the City
Council determines that there are emergency circumstances requiring expedited
review.

(2) The notice shall include the text of the amendment and any other information the
local government believes is necessary to advise DLCD of the proposal. “Text”
means the specific language being added to or deleted from the acknowledged plan
or land use regulation.

84

63



(k)

(3) Submittal of proposed “map” amendments must include a map of the affected area
showing existing and proposed plan and zone designations. The map should be on 8-
1/2x11 inch paper. A legal description, tax account number, address or general
description is not adequate.

(4) Submittal of proposed amendments which involve a goal exception must include the
proposed language of the exception.

(5) [Ifthe City determines that the statewide goals do not apply to a proposed amendment
or new regulation, notice is not required.

(6) The amendment or new regulation shall be submitted after adoption as provided in
ORS 197.615 (1) and (2).

Manufactured Dwelling Park Notice. If an application would change the zone of
property, including all or part of a Manufactured Dwelling Park, the City shall provide
written notice by first class mail to each existing mailing address for tenants of the
Manufactured Dwelling Park at least 20 days prior to the date of the first hearing on the
application.

85

64



86

65



87

66



88

67



89

68



90

69



91

70



92

SECTION 9.310 REVOCATION

A decision on a land use application may be overturned, revoked or modified by the City on any
one or more of the following grounds after a public hearing on the issue:

@

(b)
©
(d)

©

A material misrepresentation or mistake of fact was made in the application or evidence
submitted, either intentionally or unintentionally.

The use for which approval was granted has ceased to exist.
Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of approval.

The use is in violation of a provision of this Code or other applicable statutes, ordinances,
or regulations.

The approval decision was overturned on appeal.

A decision on a land use application for text or map amendment, vacation or
annexation requiring implementation by ordinance that is overturned, revoked or
modified requires adoption of an ordinance repealing, modifying and/or reversing the
original implementing ordinance.

71



93

SECTIONS 9.311 through 9.399 reserved for expansion.

ARTICLE 9.4 ZONING DISTRICTS

SECTION 9.401 CLASSIFICATION OF LAND USE DISTRICTS

For the purpose of this Code the following Primary Land Use Districts are hereby established:

ABBREVIATED

PRIMARY DISTRICTS DESIGNATION
Single-family Residential R-1
Multiple-family Residential R-3
General Commercial C-1

Downtown Flex-Use 2 DF2
Downtown-Commercial—— G 2 Downtown Flex-Use 1-DF1
Downtown Townhome/Single-Family Attached DRA

Downtown Residential/Single-Family Detached DRD

Light Industrial I-1
Public Lands PL
Civic Public CP
SECTION 9.402 CLASSIFICATION OF OVERLAY DISTRICTS

@) An Overlay District may be established in combination with a Primary Land Use District.
The Overlay District shall establish additional requirements, standards and procedures for
the use and development of property in the Primary District. In cases of conflict between
the standards and requirements of the Primary District and the Overlay District, the
standards and requirements of the Overlay District shall apply.

(b) For the purposes of this Code the following Overlay Districts are hereby established:
ABBREVIATED

OVERLAY DISTRICTS DESIGNATION
Planned Development PD
SECTION 9.403 LOCATION OF ZONING DISTRICTS

The City’s Zoning Districts are also the City’s Comprehensive Plan Land Use Districts. The
boundaries for the Zoning Districts listed in this Code are indicated on the combined Lowell
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Districts Map which is hereby adopted by reference and made
a part of this Code.

SECTION 9.404 ZONING AND REGULATING PLAN MAPS

A Zoning Map adopted by Section 9:403 of this Code or an amendment thereto shall be dated with
the effective date that adopts the map or map amendment. The Regulating Plan dictates building
function within the prescribed areas and also implements a land use typology for future growth. A
certified print of the adopted map or map amendment or Regulating Plan shall be maintained in
the office of the City Administrator as long as this Code remains in effect.

72



SECTION 9.405 ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES

District or Zone boundaries shall be section lines, sub-division lines, lot lines, center line of public
rights-of-way or such lines extended.

SECTION 9.406 ZONING OF ANNEXED AREAS

Zoning of all areas annexed to the City shall be determined as a part of the Annexation approval
process contained in Section 9.254. Decisions for zoning of annexed area shall be consistent with
projected uses used to justify inclusion of the annexed property within the Urban Growth
Boundary.

SECTION 9.407 SIMILAR USE AUTHORIZATION

The Planning Commission may permit, in a particular district, a use not listed in this Code,
provided the use is of the same general type as the uses permitted by this Code. However, this
section does not authorize the inclusion in a district where it is not listed, a use specifically listed
in another district. The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council
using procedures specified in Section 9.309 of this Code.

SECTION 9.408 NONCONFORMING USE

It is the intent of the nonconforming use sections of this Code to permit pre-existing uses and
structures which do not conform to the use or dimensional standards of this Code to continue under
conditions specified herein. However, alteration or expansion of these nonconforming uses and
structures that could cause potentially adverse effects in the immediate neighborhood or in the City
as a whole, are not permitted as outlined in this section.

@) Continuation of a Nonconforming Use.

(1) Subject to the provisions of this section, a nonconforming use of a structure or a
nonconforming use, may be continued and maintained, but shall not be altered or
extended except as provided herein.

(2) The extension of a nonconforming use to a portion of a structure which was arranged
or designed for such use at the time of passage of this Code is not an extension of a
nonconforming use.

(3) Inthe manufacturing-research or commercial district, a pre-existing dwelling may be
altered or extended, provided that such alteration or extension shall not exceed the
yard, lot coverage and building height requirements specified in the nearest adjacent
Residential District.

(b) Nonconforming Structure. A structure conforming as to use but nonconforming as to
height, setback, lot coverage or similar dimensional standards, may be altered or extended
if the alteration or extension does not cause the structure to deviate from the standards of
this Code.

94

73



©

(d)

O]

®

()

Discontinuance of a Nonconforming Use.

(1) If anonconforming use involving a structure is discontinued from active use
for a period of one (1) year, further use of the property shall be for a
conforming use unless approved by the Planning Commission.

(2) If anonconforming use not involving a structure is discontinued from active
use for a period of six (6) months, further use of the property shall be for a
conforming use.

Change of a Nonconforming Use. If a nonconforming use is changed,
it shall be changed to a use conforming to the regulations of the district
in which it is located.

Destruction of a Nonconforming Use or Structure. If a nonconforming structure
or a structure containing a nonconforming use is totally or substantially destroyed
by any cause, a future structure or use on the site shall be either in accordance with
the provisions of the district in which the property is located or the property owner
may apply for a Conditional Use Permit to continue with the existing use or to
replace the structure in its present location. A residence may be replaced in any
zoning district.

Repairs and Maintenance. Any building housing a nonconforming use may be
maintained or restored to conform with the standards of the building code, including
repair or replacement of fixtures, wiring, or plumbing, provided the building is not
increased in cubic content or floor area.

Completion of Structure. Nothing contained in this Code shall require any change
in the plans, construction, alteration or designated use of a structure for which a
building permit has been lawfully issued and construction has commenced prior to
adoption of this Code, provided the structure, if nonconforming or intended for a
nonconforming use, is completed and in use within one (1) year from the time the
permit is issued.

SECTION 9.406 reserved for expansion.

SECTION 9.410 PRIMARY LAND USE DISTRICTS
SECTION 9.411 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1
@) Purpose. To provide areas suitable and desirable for low density, urban, single-

family residential use with provisions for associated residential or public service
uses.

95

74



(b)

©

(d)

Permitted Uses. In an R-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses are
permitted subject to the standards, provisions and exceptions set forth in this Code:

(1) One single-family dwelling-e-manufactured-dwelting per legal lot.

(2) Residential Care Homes for 5 or less people. as provided in ORS 197.660 -670.
(Statutory)

- Family child care home.
(4) Accessory buildings subject to the following standards:

—Accessory
buildings, except for permitted accessory dwelling units, shall not be used for

dwelling purposes.

B. No sales, except authorized garage/yard sales, shall be made from an
accessory structure unless it has been approved as a Home

Occuration under the Type Ill conditional-use ﬁrovisions of Section!

and the home occupation standards of

C. Boats, trailers, detached campers, motorized dwellings and similar recreational
equipment may be stored, but not used for human habitation.
(5) Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) subject to standards in Article 9.7

(6) Duplexes

(7) Cottage clusters, subject to standards in Article 9.7

Conditional Uses. In an R-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses may be
permitted in conformance with the conditional use provisions of Section 9.251 and the
applicable Use Standards of Article 9.7.

(1) Home occupation.

(2) Residential Care Facility for 15 or less people as provided in ORS 197.660 - 670.

(3) Group-Child Care Center for-13-orrmore-children-asprovided-in-the-applicable-

(4) Semi-public uses such as grange halls, churches, public utility facilities
(5) Light Agriculture in accordance with applicable standards of Article 9.7

(6) Bed and Breakfast.

Development Standards.

(1) Minimum lot area: 4,500 7,800 square feet.

(2) Minimum lot width: 30 66 feet-execept-for-cornerlots-which-must-have-no-less-than-

96

75



SECTION 9.412

(@)

(b)

®
4

®)

(6)

™

Minimum Lot Depth: 80 feet

Maximum Building coverage including Accessory Dwelling Units and accessory
buildings, provided that any patio structure used solely for open space and swimming
pool not structurally covered shall not be counted as a structure for ascertaining
coverage: 5035%.

Maximum building height — 2 stories, excluding basements/daylight basements, or
30 feet, whichever is lower. Accessory buildings are limited to one story, with the
exception of Accessory Dwelling Units.

Yards (all measurements are from the property line unless indicated otherwise):

A

C.

See AFtiCIeNd’5 for additional General Development Standards, AFticlerowe for
Special Development Standards and AFticlel9r7 for Use Standards that may apply
in the R-1 District.

Front Yard
1. 10 feet, except all garages, carports or other parking structures taking
access from the front of the property shall be set back at least 5 feet behind

the front facade of the prlmarv structure#e;%treetswﬁhﬁeeastr%tedﬁ

Side yard setbacks:

1. Interior side yard: 5 feet for-single-story—and 714 feet for-two-story
structures:

2. Alley side yard: 5 feet. The City may require any lot with an alley to access

off-street parking from the alley.

3 Street side yard Few%#eees—mih—eenstrueted—epplan%d—ewbs—and#e#

araeenstreetedeepelanaedr 10 feet Slde facmq qaraqes carports or other

parking structures must be flush with or behind, but not protrude beyond, the
side (facade or covered porch) of the primary structure. exceptal-parking
structures-taking-access-from-the side street shall-be set-back 20 feet.

Rear yard: 10 feet; 5 feet for accessory buildings.

MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-3

Purpose. To provide areas suitable and desirable for medium density multiple-family
residential use with provisions for associated residential or public service uses. Medium
density shall mean a maximum of 15 dwelling units per acre unless approved as a
Conditional Use.

Permitted Uses. In an R-3 District, the foIIowmg uses and their accessory uses are
permitted subject to the Type | review process:

97

76



(©

(d)

@
@
©)
4)
®)
(6)

Duplexes, apartments, and other multiple-family dwellings, including Triplexes and

Quadplexes.
One single-family dwelling-e+manufactured-dwelting per legal tax lot.

Residential Care Facility for 15 or less people as provided in ORS 197.660 — 670.

Family child care home.

Group-Child Care Center-for13-er-more-children-as-provided-in-the-applicable-

Accessory buildings subject to the following standards:

A—Acecessory-buildings-shall-not-be-used-fordwelling-purpeses—-Accessory
buildings, except for permitted accessory dwelling units, shall not be used for
dwelling purposes.

B. No sales, except authorized garage/yard sales, shall be made from an accessory
structure unless it has been approved as a Home Occupation through a Type Il
process. dnderthe-conditional-use—provisions-oFSeeti 3

C. Boats, trailers, detached campers, motorized dwellings and similar recreational
equipment may be stored, but not used for human habitation.

e e e

(7) Accessory Dwelling Units, subject to the standards as listed in Article 9.7.

(8) Single-Family Attached

(9) Cottage Clusters, subject to the standards as listed in Article 9.7.

Conditional Uses. In an R-3 District, the following uses and their accessory uses may be
permitted in conformance with the conditional use provisions of Section 9.251, and-the
applicable Use Standards of Article 9.7, and a Type Il land use process.

)

Home occupation.

(2) Semi-public uses such as grange halls, churches, public utility facilities.

{3)—Multiple-family-residential-of greater-density-than-15-units-per-acre.
o

Q
(6)

Manufactured Dwelling Parks
Bed and Breakfast

Development Standards.

@
@
®

Minimum lot area — 5,500 #806-square feet.

Minimum lot width — 50 66 feet-exceptforcornertots-which-must-have-ne-less-
: i e

Minimum Lot Depth — 80 feet

98

77



(4) Maximum Building coverage including Accessory Dwelling Units, and accessory
buildings — 50 48%, provided that any patio structure used solely for open space and
swimming pool not structurally covered shall not be counted as a structure for
ascertaining coverage. Maximum Lot Coverage shall not apply to triplexes and
quadplexes provided minimum setbacks and off-street parking standards are met.

(5) Maximum building height — 3 stories or 45 feet, whichever is lower. Accessory
buildings are limited to one story, with the exception of Accessory Dwelling Units.
For R-3 development within 50 feet of an abutting R-1 district side or rear yard, R-1
height standards apply.

(6) Yards:
A. Front Yard
1. 10 feet, except all garages, carports or other parking structures taking
access from the front of the property shall be set back at least 5 feet behind
the front facade of the primary structure.—ForStreets—with-constructed—or

B. Side yard setbacks:

1. Interior side yard: 5 feet and-714-feetfortweo-story-structures:
2. Alley side yard: 5 feet

3. Street side yard: For-Streets-with-censtructed-or-planned-curbs-and/or

are-constructed-orplanned; 10 feet. Side facing garages, carports, or other
parking structures must be flush with or behind, but not protrude beyond, the
side (facade or covered porch) of the primary structure.

C. Rear yard: 10 feet; 5 feet accessory buildings.

(7)  See AFticIeNdI5 for additional General Development Standards, AFtiCIenoi6 for
Special Development Standards and AFticleldid for Use Standards that may apply
in the R-3 District.

99

78



100

SECTION 9.413 BUILDING STANDARDS.

(@)

(b)

(©

Purpose. The purpose of this Section and ensuing Sections is to set forth the regulations

for building standards applicable to each Parcel Type that are appropriate to use within

Lowell Downtown District and are organized by development typology on the Regulating

Plan. These standards are intended to ensure that new development strengthens and

enhances the existing character and scale of the Lowell Downtown District and its

surroundings.
Applicability.

A. The requirements in this Section shall apply to all proposed development within

Lowell Downtown District, the boundaries of which are delineated on the
Regulating Plan as “Downtown District,” and must be considered in relation to the
intent and general character of the District.

. The standards and requirements applicable to a zone in the Downtown District, shall

modify and take precedence over any duplicative or conflicting provision of the
Lowell Development Code, unless otherwise explicitly permitted.

. These building standards shall not apply to the existing use of any building or land

and shall not prevent the restoration of a building damaged not more than 50 percent
of its assessed valuation by fire, explosion, natural disaster, or prevent the
continuance of the use of such building or part thereof as such use existed at the
time of such damage, but shall apply to any alteration, expansion or enlargement of
a building or alteration of any parcel.

General. Building standards are not intended to indicate or suggest any specific

architectural style.

79



SECTION 9.414 DOWNTOWN SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED (DRA)

(@) Purpose. The Downtown Single-Family Attached (DRA) District is intended to provide a

variety of homes, with a mix of sizes that are available to a wide range of incomes, within

walking distance of the Downtown core for convenient, pedestrian-friendly access to
shopping, employment, educational, and recreational activities.

(b) DRA Building Standards.

4

! Lot Coerage W STape

e
Use (se2 Notwe 1) Notes
Ground/upper fioar residential, commercial (resail, service, 1. Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, potse, or vibmation that is
7 office, trmde) perceptinle beyond the property boundaries aze prohibited
Placement 2 i bailding exmance pmst be located along the

Faguired Pedestrian Enmy Zons and oriented to the sireet.

-k 5 - 15 fi when applicable; the front-most 3. Magimum ] include: e Bruilidi
Front regaired buzlding line g L ot Coverage Includes accessory dings,
(®BL) partof the bullding (i.e. wall, froat porch) Q providad that any patio strizctare nsed solely for apen space
must be built w REL and swimming pool not stmcrarally covered shall not be
Sida safback 5 ft min. 9 counted as a siructare for measuring coverage
Rear satback 5 fi min ; 0 & mie when abutting an alley 4 Meximam building height exchudes basements and dayiight
basements. Arcessory buildings are limited to one siory.
Coverage 5. All gasages, carports, or ather parking structures mmast be
Lot area 2,000 sfmin. L" located behind or to the side of the huildings; they cannot be
Lot width 20 fr mir.; 40 ft min. for comer lots [E] ph:!ihelween :?mghgﬂ BM-ME y
T 3 5 = % rached and detached zarages orientad to
Lot depth l.SJfSu(w!.d.ﬂlm-IODE.wklchwarssless [F] eyt g o
Lot coverage 30% max; 22 Mot 3 = When oo alley exists, parages shall be mcked under
Primary sirest facade built to . : the first story and accessed from the front or side of
i 0% of BBL lenzth whi licable
REL T ensth whes pplicable (@ 1he propesy if s=t ack 2 miniunm of 20 & from the
Height front or 10 f from the side
= 6. Residantial uses entirely above the proumd floor must have a
Micium mumber of foors 2 floers balcony at feast for feet desp
Maginum manber of foors 3 foors
Ground Soor elevation 1% m min_ above sidewalk
Building heizht subject to Fire Chief approval ; see Note 4 g
Facade Transparency
Ground fipor 407% of facade area min. [L]
Upger Roors 407% of facade area min. (V]
Porch / covered stoop
Dimension §x 8 fmin. for sach primary entry
Parking
unber of spaces 00 mik. [equirement m

101

80



SECTION 9.414 DOWNTOWN RESIDENTIAL/SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED (DRD)

(@ Purpose. The Downtown Single-Family Detached Residential District (DRD) is intended to

provide units as a permitted use, within walking distance of the Downtown core for

convenient, pedestrian-friendly, access to shopping, employment, educational, and

recreational activities.

(b) DRD Building Standards.

LEGEND
e

e i)

Lot Coverags

Jr.
LTS DEwyi g

Use {z2a Mot 1)

Notes

residential, commercial (retail, semvice.

Groundfupper fioar. office, trads)

Placement

Frant sethack 10 ft pin., 30 f max. [A]
Side setback 5 fimin [E]
Feear sethack 5 ft min.; 0 ft min when abattng an alley Q
Coverage

Lot area 5,000 sf min ; 6,000 :f min_ for comer lots

Lot widih 40 fi min.; 50 fi min. for comer lots

Lot depth 60 ft min. §

50% max., 60% max. with Accessory

Lat coverape Dwelling Uit (ADUY; see Motz lm

Heizht

Mizimam mumber of floors 1 fioers ©
Maximum mumber of Soors 3 floors

Ground foor elevation 1% in min. above sidewalk §
Building height subject to Fire Chief approval ; see Mot 4
Facade Tr: oy

Ground fioor 0% of facade area min.

Upper fioors 20% of facade area min. 3
Porch ! covered stoop

Dimension %6 ft min_ for each primary entry [V}
Parking

Number of required space 1 space per umit

1

=)

™

Uses that create odor, dust, smoke, noise, or vibmtion that is
perceptinle beyond the property boundaries are prohibied.
Primary building enfrance must be located along the
Baguired Pedestrian Enry Zone and oriented to the street.
Maximuam lat coverage inckndes aceessory buildings,
provided that amy patio struchare nsed salely for open space
and swimming pool net stnammnlly covered shall mat be
counted a5 a structure fior ascertaining coverage.
Margimum building height exciudes basements and dayiight
basements. Accessory buildings are imited 1o one stony.
All gazages, carponts, or ather parking strucmres must be
located behmd or io the side of the buildings; they cannot be
placed between buildings and streets.
»  Amached and detached zarazes shall be oriented to
and accessed from an alley
When oo alley exists, parages shall be micked under
the first story 2nd accessed from the front or side of
the propesty if set back a miniewm of 20 § from the
front or 10 ft from the side
Faszidential uses enfirely above the groumd floor must have a
balcomy at least four fest deep.

102

81



SECTION 9.423 DOWNTOWN FLEX-USE 1 DISTRICT (DF1)

(@) Purpose. The Flex-Use 1 zone allows a mix of commercial and residential uses that are
encouraged to locate Downtown. Mixed-use buildings support active town centers by
allowing for a mix of users in a small footprint. Buildings along main streets have ground
floor commercial or retail uses with offices or residential units above. Ground-floor retail
store fronts have large, clear windows to encourage transparency and a sense of place along

the pedestrian realm in the Downtown core of Lowell.

(b) DF1 Building Standards.

LEGEND

Feguired 3ulding Line [REL)

Farking Lines

o
Use (se= Note 1) Notes
Ground fioor: commercial (retail, service, office, Tads) 1. Uses that create oder. dust, smoke. pois2, or vibration that is
commercial {retail, service, office, rads], pen bayond the property boundaries are probibited.
Upper fioans): residential ¢ ) 2.  Primary building entrance must be focated along the
Required Pedestian Entry Zone and oriented o the street.
FPlacement 3. Lofs are required to be large enough and developed i
Froat reguired badlding line . the froat-most part of the bulldiag (1e. 0 accommedate the building, sewaze disposal system,
(REL) wall, frant parch) must be built to the BEL requited parking, service access, and pedestrian circulation,
Sida cethack ﬂﬁ_mm_: 10 ft min when abutting .3 nm&mgfmpmnsmmmnhm_
Tone 4. One hundred percent lot coverage is allowable when
in - 1 ‘when abutting applicable minium Jeading space and setback
Bzar sefoack ‘]ﬁm :::nm G I::nimwmts are met. i
. = 5. Thereis oo building height limitation except when the
Poakiigs setbanks om RBE BOﬂ@n. - Q property abuts a residential zone, in which case the building
?u'km,glselbm:kﬁmpntﬂ mm:mﬁmmm e height i limited o the height allowed in the adjacent
fies with vo REL residential zoue resifiential zome for a distance of 50 ft.
Coverage 6.  Exterior building articulation is reguired every 40 horizontal
P— faat or less.
Lot area 0o min.; see Notes 3 and 4
Lot cow 0. - see Notes 3 and 4 Q 7. Ground floors with non-strest-facing residential uses must
il i ke it e be elevated a minimum of 18 inches above grad.
Primary srest facade bult p EBL  90%% min_ of RBL lenzth E 8. Pedestrian walkways mmst be provided to commect the
Height building primary entrance to the public fight of way.
Mz I P 7 o Off-smest parking. drives, garages, and other vehicle araas
I ol of 2 9 must be orisnted to and accessed from the alley or located
mmber of floors 3 finars behind or to the side of the building; they cannot be placed
e % 0 inmir. above sidewalk; see Mota T for bemween buildings and strests.
atnor . idemtial nse 0 10.  Access shall be designed 1w encourage pedesmian and
Floar to flaor beight 10 & min. o bicycle use and shall facilitate velicular movements with
S imi intarference or hazards for through waffic. Access
7 ] - sae Note 5 when abutting TR
Building height e (L] may be subject o the review and approval of the County
Engineer or State Deparmment of Transponation. The
Facade Tranzparency ication of additional right-of-way and construction of
Ground floor 75% of facade area min. @ streat inyprovements by the applicant may b requirad in
Whpper & A0% of facade in. order to facilitate maffic circulation.
'PF'?—‘ — — u 11. Any pround-level shopfront windows facing circulation
Parling networks must be kept visible (unshutterd) at night.
Wumber of spaces 10 min. requirement 12, Residsntial uses sxtirely above the provmd finor must have a

balcomy at least four feet deep_

103

82



SECTION 9.413 through 9.419 reserved for expansion.

SECTION 9.420 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

SECTION 9.421 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT C-1

@

(b)

(©

Purpose. The General Commercial District is intended to provide areas appropriate for the
full range of commercial activities to serve the needs of area residents and employees. The
C-1 District is well suited for areas having access from the City's major thoroughfares that
are free from conflict with non-compatible land uses.

Permitted Uses. In a C-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses are permitted
subject to the Site Plan Review provisions of Section 9.250 and the standards, provisions
and exceptions set forth in this Code, provided all operations except off-street parking and
temporary activities shall be conducted entirely within an enclosed building:

(1) Retail stores or shops.

(2) Personal or business service.

(3) Repair shops (See 3 (b) below).

(4) Eating or drinking establishments.

(5) Offices, business or professional.

(6) Financial institutions.

(7)  Indoor commercial amusement or recreation establishments.

(8) Hotels and Motels.

(9) Semi-public buildings and uses.

(10) Residential Care Facility for 15 or less people as provided in ORS 197.660 - 670.
(11) Family child care home.

(12) Child care center.

(14) Second story residences located above a ground floor commercial use in accordance
with Section 9.720 (b).

(15) Conversion of residence to a permitted commercial use in accordance with Section
9.720 (a)

Conditional Uses. In a C-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses may be
permitted in conformance with the conditional use provisions of Section 9.251 and the
applicable Use Standards of Article 9.7.

(1) Automotive, truck, RV, equipment or other repair shops which possess nuisance
characteristics or emissions potentially detrimental to Public health, safety and
general welfare of the community such as noise, vibrations, smoke, odor, fumes, dust,
heat, glare or electromagnetic interference shall not be permitted unless additional
safeguards are specified by the Planning Commission. The applicant shall accurately
specify the extent of emissions and nuisance characteristics relative to the proposed
use.

(2) Permitted uses listed in (2) above, requiring open display or storage, including but
not limited to, automobile or equipment sales.

(3) Light industrial uses identified in Section 9.421 (c) which have no emissions or

104

83



(d)

nuisance characteristics, as identified in Sectioni9:204 discernible without
instruments outside any building, contain no outdoor storage and for which no other
significant impacts to adjoining commercial and residential uses have been
identified.

Development Standards. Lots within a General Commercial District are approved by the
Planning Commission as part of the Site Plan Review procedures of ﬂ Lots are
required to be large enough and developed to accommodate the building, sewage disposal
system, required parking, service access and pedestrian circulation including persons with
disabilities.

(1) Minimum lot area: None established

(2) Yards:
A.  Front yard setbacks - none required. See SEction 915090191542 for additional
street setbacks.

B. Side yard setbacks
A. None required between commercially or industrially zoned property
B. 10 feet when abutting residentially zoned property.
C, None required for street side yard.

C. Rear yard:
1. None required between commercially or industrially zoned property.
2. 10 feet when abutting residentially zoned property.

(3) Maximum building height: There is no building height limitation except when the
property abuts a residential zone, in which case the building height is limited to the
height allowed in the adjacent residential zone for a distance of 50 feet.

(4) Lot Size: There is no minimum lot size or lot dimension.

(5) Lot Coverage and Density: There is no lot coverage or density requirements except
as provided in yard setback and on-site parking requirements.

(6) Access shall be designed to cause a minimum interference with traffic and may be
subject to the review and approval of the County Engineer or State Department of
Transportation. The dedication of additional right-of-way and construction of street
improvements by the applicant may be required in order to facilitate traffic
circulation.

(7) See AFticIED5 for additional General Development Standards, AFticle9:6
for Special Development Standards and ﬁ for Use Standards that
may apply in the C-1 District.

105

84



106

85



SECTION 9.424 DOWNTOWN FLEX-USE 2 DISTRCT (DF2)

(@) Purpose. The Downtown Flex-Use 2 zone allows a mix of commercial and residential uses

that are encouraged to locate Downtown along the commercial corridor along North Moss.

Mixed-use buildings support active town centers by allowing for a mix of uses in a small

footprint. The mix of commercial and required residential allow residents to meet their daily

shopping and employment needs, all within walking distance of the Downtown core.

(d) DF2 Building Standards

Parking Lines

LEGEND 7
------- Fegaired Building Line [RSL) - AT

Use (see Mo 1) Notes
Ground Soor commercial {Tetail, service, office, ads), 1. Uses that create odor. dust. smoke. noise, or vibration thatis
) residential perceptivla beyond the property boundaries are prohibited.
N ; commarcial (retail, service, affice. mads), 2. Primary building entance coust be located along the
Cpper floor(s): required residential Reguired Pedestrian Enmy Zons and orienred to the sireet
™ n 3. Lats ara required to be larze snouph and developed o
G EMED : ) acc the building, sewage disposal system,
Front required building line 0 - 10 4, the front-most part of the building Q required parking, service access, and pedestrian circulation
(RBL) (ie wall, front porch) must be bailt to REL incinding for parsons with disabilities.
o S ftmin ; 10 ft min when abutting [E) 4. There is oo building height limitation except when the
residential zone property abuts a residential zome, in which case the building
0 ft min.; 10 ft min when abutting height is limited to the height allowed in the adjacent
Rear setback residential zons @ residential zone for a distance of 50 fr.
Pasking setback fom BBL 30 & min, G 8 mb;nhxgmnmmwsmmﬁm%hmuml
Parking setback from parcel 6 fi min ; 30 ft min when abutting @ 6 G im;m:e"l tial usas noiset be dlavatada
Lines with zo REL residential zooe of 18 inches above zrads
Coverage 7. Pedestrian sidewalks or walkways niast be provided to
Lot area 0o min; see Mote 3 Q connect the uilding primary entrance to the public fizht of
m way.
Lot coverage 0% k. 8. Offstrestparking drives, garazes. and other vehicla areas
Py sivest Seade bt i REL 20 mum of BBL lensth Q must be orientad to and accessed from the alley or located
Height ehind or to the side of the building; they cannot be placed
=y between buildings and strests.
murbetof foary: 1 Boerd g 9. Access shall be designad to sncourage pedestian and
Mawmum mumber of foors 3 fioors bicycle use and shall facilitate vehicular movements with
= 0inmin above sidewalk; see Nate 6 for minimm interference or hazards for through maffic. Access
Ground f Leva: Eho
ot elevaiion residential use 0 may be subject to the review and approval of the Connty
Floor to foor height 10 f min. [K] Enginser or State Departmant of Transporation. The
. K 'no max. ; see Nate 4 when alutting dedication of additional right-of-way and construction of
Building keight pcinial S 0 streat improvements by the applicant may be requirad in
order to facilitate traffic circulation.
Facade Transparency 10. Any ground-level shopfront windows facing circulation
Ground fipor T0% of facade area min. @ networks must be kept visible {umshuttered) at night.
Uppes foors 20% of facade atea min. w 11. Residential uses entrrely above the ground fioor mast have 2
Parking balcony at least foar feet deep.
Mumher of spaces 0o min. requirsmant

107

86



SECTION 9.430 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS SECTION

9.431 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT I-1

(@) Purpose. The I-1, Light Industrial, District is intended to create, preserve and enhance areas
for low intensity, light manufacturing and commercial development which create no
obnoxious impact on abutting properties and are free from conflict with non-compatible
uses

(b) Permitted Uses. In an I-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses are
permitted subject to the Site Plan Review provisions of Section 9.250 and the standards,
provisions and exceptions set forth in this Code.

(1) Al manufacturing, warehousing, wholesaling, compounding, assembling,
processing, storing, researching, repair or testing uses, and associated commercial
activities, provided all operations except off-street parking and temporary activities
shall be conducted entirely within an enclosed building and provided there are no
emissions or nuisance characteristics, as identified in Section 9.204 (u), discernible
without instruments at the property line.

(2) Semi-public buildings and uses.

(3) Interim farm use.

(4) Child care center, except on properties listed on the Department of Environmental
Quality’s statewide list of contaminated properties as having known or suspected
releases of hazardous substances.

(c) Conditional Uses. In an I-1 District, the following uses and their accessory uses may be

permitted, subject to the provisions of Section 9.251.

(1) Manufacturing, warehousing, wholesaling, compounding, assembling, processing,
storing, researching, repair or testing uses, and associated Commercial activities,
having emissions or nuisance characteristics , as identified in Section 9.204 (u),
discernible without instruments at the property line, conducted in part or in full
outside a fully enclosed building or uses requiring a permit from a local, state or
federal agency.

(2) Scrap, waste, recycling or wrecking yards.

(3) All other Commercial activities.

(4) Waste or hazardous material processing, storage or disposal.

(5) A manufactured dwelling for the owner or caretaker whenever an on-site residence is
necessitated by such use.-Fhe-manufactured-dwelingshall-comply-with-the standards

(c) Continued Compliance Required.

(1) Uses permitted under paragraph (2) above or a change of use must continually meet
the standards that there be no emissions or nuisance characteristics, as identified in
Section 9.204 (u), discernible without instruments at the property line. Failure to meet
the standard will require the use to cease or require application for a conditional use
as in accordance with Section 9:251.

(2) Uses permitted under paragraph (3) above or a change of use must continually meet

108

87



all conditions for approval required to mitigate nuisance characteristics established
for a conditional use permit. Failure to meet such conditions will require the use to
cease or application for a new conditional use permit in accordance with Section

2.500.
(d) Development Standards.

(1) Lot area: There shall be no prescribed minimum lot area. Lot area shall be approved
as part of the Site Plan Review procedures of Section 9.250. Lots are required to be
large enough to accommodate the building, required parking, vehicle and pedestrian
access and circulation, including persons with disabilities

(2) Lot coverage and Density: Lot configuration shall be approved as part of the Site Plan
Review procedures of Section 9.250.

(3) Yard Setbacks:

a.  Front - 20 feet., landscaped and maintained. See Sections 9.509 to 9.512 for
additional street setbacks.

b. Interior Side — None, except for yard abutting residential uses, which require a
20 foot setback landscaped and maintained.

c. Street Side — 10 feet.

d. Rear - None, except for yard abutting residential uses, which require a 20 foot
setback landscaped and maintained.

e. All required yard setbacks must be landscaped and maintained.

(4) Maximum Building Height - 45 feet unless a greater height is approved by the
Planning Commission with conditions of approval as part of the Site Plan Review
procedures of Section 9.250.

(5) Access shall be designed to cause a minimum interference with traffic and may be
subject to the review and approval of the County. The dedication of additional right-
of-way and construction of street improvements by the applicant may be required in
order to facilitate traffic circulation.

(6) See Article 9.5 for additional General Development Standards, Article 9.6 for
Special Development Standards and Article 9.7 for Use Standards that may apply in
the 1-1 District.

SECTION 9.432 through 9.439 reserved for expansion

SECTION 9.440 OTHER LAND USE DISTRICTS

SECTION 9.441 PUBLIC LANDS DISTRICT - PL

(@) Purpose. The Public Lands District is intended to establish development standards for
public lands. Public Lands are those owned by public entities, specifically, the Federal

Government, State of Oregon, Lane County, and the City of Lowell, as well as special

districts established State law such as the Lowell Fire District and Lowell School District.

Public Lands do not include lands owned by public utilities other than governmental

entities.

(b) Permitted Uses. In the Public Lands District all uses and their accessory uses generally

associated with public functions are permitted, with the exception of uses identified below
as conditional uses, subject to the Site Plan Review provisions of Section 9.250 and the
standards, provisions and exceptions set forth in this Code, where not specifically excluded
by State and Federal law.

109

88



(c) Conditional Uses. In the Public Lands District, the following uses and their accessory uses
are not outright permitted and must be permitted in conformance with the conditional use
provisions of Section 9.251, where not specifically excluded by State and Federal law.

(1) Uses that would create traffic, noise, dust, odor, visual or other types of impacts not
consistent with adjoining land uses.

(2) Use of publicly owned property for other than public purposes through lease or rent
agreements between the public entities owning the property and non-public entities.

(d) Development Standards.

@

@

©)

®
4

®)

Minimum lot area and configuration - Lots within a Public Lands District

are approved by the Planning Commission as part of the Site Plan Review
procedures of Section 9.250. Lots are required to be large enough to
accommodate uses proposed for development, including but not limited to, the
building, sewage disposal system, required parking, service access and
pedestrian circulation including persons with disabilities.

Yards: No specific yard setbacks are established with the exception that all
development on public lands will be set back no less than 10 feet from adjoining
residentially zoned property. Requested setbacks will be evaluated as a part of the
Site Plan Review and

Maximum building height: There is no building height limitation except when the
property abuts a residential zone, in which case the building height is limited to the
height allowed in the adjacent residential zone for a distance of 50 feet.

Lot Size: There is no minimum lot size or lot dimension.

Lot Coverage and Density: There is no lot coverage or density requirements except
as provided in yard setback and on-site parking requirements.

Access shall be designed to cause a minimum interference with traffic and may be
subject to the review and approval of the County Engineer or State Department of
Transportation. The dedication of additional right-of-way and construction of street
improvements by the applicant may be required in order to facilitate traffic
circulation.

(6) See Article 9.5 for additional General Development Standards, Article

9.5 for Special Development Standards and Article 9.5 for Use Standards
that may apply in the Public Lands District.

SECTION 9.442 through 9.449 reserved for expansion.

SECTION9.432 CIVIC/PUBLIC ZONE (CP)

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to set forth requlations for building standards

applicable to areas zoned Civic/Public within the Lowell Downtown District and as seen on

the Requlating Plan. These standards are intended to ensure that new development strengthens

and enhances the existing character and scale of the Lowell Downtown District and its

110

89



surrounding.
(b) Applicability.

1. The requirements in this Section shall apply to all proposed development within Lowell
Downtown District. the boundaries of which are delineated on the Regulating Plan as

3

‘Downtown District.” and must be considered in relation to the intent and general
character of the District.

2. The standards and requirements applicable to the Civic/Public zone in the Downtown
District shall modify and take precedence over any duplicative or conflicting provision
of the Lowell Development Code, unless otherwise explicitly permitted.

3. These building standards shall not apply to the existing use of any building or land and
shall not prevent the restoration of a building damaged not more than 50 percent of its

assessed valuation by fire. explosion. natural disaster. or prevent the continuance of the
use of such building or part thereof as such use existed at the time of such damage. but

shall apply to any alteration. expansion or enlargement of a building or alteration of any
parcel.

(c) Development [Standards]

111

SECTION 9.450 OVERLAY-DISTRICTS

An Overlay-District may be established in combination with a Primary District. The Overlay-
District shall establish additional requirements, standards and procedures for the use and
development of property in the Primary District. In cases of conflict between the standards and
requirements of the Primary District and the Overlay-District, the standards and requirements of
the Overlay-District shall apply.

SECTION 9.451 Application.

The City, a property owner, or any interested person may apply for designation of an

Overlay-District in combination with any Pri District in accordance with the
application requirements of ﬂ and the amendment procedures
of Section 9:253. The Quasi-judicial hearing procedures of Section 9:306 shall be
used when the application is submitted by a owner and applies to a specific
property. The Legislative hearing procedures of shall be used when the
Overlay-District is applied by the City to a group or class of properties under similar
circumstances.

SECTIONS 9.541 through 9.599 reserved for expansion.
SECTION 9.460 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY-DISTRICT, PD

The purpose of the PD Overlay-District is to provide opportunities to create more desirable
working or living environments by the application of new development standards applied under

Commented [HHO1]: Development Standards are in the
process of being developed.




an approved plan and program that is professionally prepared. The PD Overlay-District is intended
to be used to encourage the application of new techniques and new technology to community
development that can achieve economies in land development and maintenance while providing
building groupings, open spaces and circulation systems that enhance the working or living
environment of the inhabitants. A Planned Development may be residential, commercial or
industrial or a mixed combination of land uses. Application procedures are as follows:

SECTION 9.461 PD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

(@) Minimum Site Size. A PD Overlay-District shall not be established on less than five (5)
acres unless the City finds a smaller area is suitable by virtue of its characteristics or
location.

(@) Planned Development Applications:

(1) The City or a property owner may request a PD Overlay-Zone in combination with
any Primary Zone in accordance with the application requirements of Sections
9.201 through 9.204, the amendment procedure of Section 9.253 and the
requirements of Sections 9.430 t0 9.437 contained herein.

(2) A property owner located in an existing PD Overlay-Zone may request approval of
a PD Plan in conformance with the requirements of Sections 9.421 and 9.430 to
9.437 contained herein.

(3) Application for a PD Overlay-Zone or a PD Plan is divided into three phases:

A. The Applicant shall first submit a PD Conceptual Plan containing drawings and
a written program that is presented in enough detail to clearly describe the
proposed development. An informal pre-application review by members of the
Planning Commission and City Council will be scheduled in conformance with
Sections 9.201 and 9.202 to determine if the requested PD conforms to the City's
PD requirements and is conceptually acceptable to the City. This preliminary
process is intended to save time and expense for the Applicant and the City.

B. After receiving approval in principle of the PD Conceptual Plan the applicant
shall have a PD Development Plan prepared by a professional design team that
contains drawings and a written program for a formal public hearing and decision
by the City.

C. Verification of compliance with the conditions of approval by the City
Administrator and acceptance of the Official PD Development Plan in
conformance with the approved PD Development Plan.

(b) Comprehensive Plan Compliance and Adjacent Property Protection.

(1) The development plan and program shall present an organized arrangement of
buildings, service facilities, open spaces and improvements in compliance with the
intent of the Comprehensive Plan that also protects the property rights of adjacent
property owners.

(2) Periphery yards of a PD Overlay-District shall be at least as deep as those required
by the yard regulations of the underlying District unless the City finds that equal
protection will be accorded through the specific design features of the approved plan.

112

91



©

(d)

©)

®

(9)

Lot coverage and Building Height. Lot coverage and building height shall be no greater
than for the underlying District unless the City finds that an exception is warranted in terms
of the adjacent property protection and amenities proposed in the total development.

Open Space. Open space in a PD Overlay-District means the land area to be used for scenic
or open recreational purposes within the development.

(1) Open space does not include street right-of-way, driveways, parking areas, required
sethacks, or public service easements unless these areas have some special
recreational design or purpose.

(2) Open space shall be adequate for the recreational and leisure use of the population
occupying the development and shall be designed to enhance the development.

(3) To the maximum extent possible, the plan and program shall assure that natural
features of the land are preserved and landscaping is provided.

(4) Instruments guaranteeing the maintenance of open space shall be provided with the
proposed plan. Documents dedicating development rights and provisions for
maintenance of open space shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.

Density. Greater overall density than that specified in the Primary District may be allowed
under a PD Overlay-District based on the entire development design. Generally the density
provision of the underlying District shall be used as a guideline for a deviation from the
standard density. Areas used for public street right-of-way or private roadway intended to
provide access to more than two (2) structures may be excluded when determining the
overall density of the development.

Subdivision Lot Sizes. Minimum area, width, depth and frontage requirements for
subdivision lots in a PD Overlay-District shall be the same as the basic District unless
smaller lots are approved in accordance with proposed plan and program.

Additional Standards and Controls. The City may require additional standards or
controls to protect adjacent property rights or the health, safety and welfare of the general
public in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan based upon the specific development
request. Additional standards and controls may include, but are not limited to, the
following:

(1) Increasing the required setbacks to protect adjacent properties or solar access.

(2) Controlling the location and number of vehicular access points.

(3) Establishing new streets, increasing the right-of-way or roadway width of existing
streets, requiring curbs and sidewalks, and in general, improving the traffic
circulation system.

(4) Requiring improvements for utilities or storm drainage facilities.

(5) Increasing the number of parking spaces and improving design standards for parking
areas.

(6) Limiting the number, size, location, and lighting of signs.

(7) Designating sites for open space and recreation and, in general, improving
landscaping requirements.

(8) Requiring view obscuring screening or fencing.

(9) Establishing time limits for completion of all or any portion of the project, including,
but not limited to utilities, drainage facilities, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks,

113

92



(h)

parking areas, landscaping, fencing, screening or recreation areas.

(10) Requiring contractual agreements with the City to assure development of streets,
sidewalks, drainage facilities, utilities, and other improvements to standards
acceptable to the City.

Phased Development. The applicant may elect to develop the site in successive stages as
proposed in the PD Development Plan.

(1) Each such stage shall be a substantially complete unit of development.
(2) The City may require that development be done in stages if public facilities are not
adequate to service the entire development initially.

Permitted Uses In Residential PD Overlay-Districts. The following uses and their
accessory uses may be permitted in a PD Overlay-District which has been combined with
a Residential District.

(1) Residential use of land.

(2) Related commercial uses when approved by the City.

(3) Related community service uses when approved by the City.

(4) Proposed standards or controls shall be specified in the PD Development Plan and
signed by the owners. Where applicable the requirements may be made part of future
deed CC&R's.

114

93



SECTION9.462 PD CONCEPTUAL PLAN

An applicant shall submit at least fifteen (15) copies of a conceptual drawings and a written
program to the City for review and acceptance of the proposed development in principle. An
informal review by members of the Planning Commission and City Council will be scheduled to
determine if the requested PD conforms to the City's PD requirements and is conceptually
acceptable to the City. The proposal shall address the following elements.

(@) Elements of the Plan.

)

2
©)

4
®)

(6)
(M
(8)
9)

Vicinity map showing location of streets and lots in the area within 300 feet of the
proposed development.

Existing lands uses.

Proposed land uses including housing unit densities (number of units per acre, type
of residence, and number of bedrooms by type of residence); commercial facilities
such as shopping and community facilities such as schools or parks.

Building types and approximate bulk.

Vehicular and pedestrian access, circulation, and parking pattern. Status of street
ownership.

Proposed Subdivision layout.

Parks, playgrounds, and open spaces.

Existing natural features such as trees, streams and topography.

Landscaping, screening, and fencing proposals.

(10) Proposed method of solid waste disposal.

(11) Proposed method for provisions of water supply and sewage disposal.
(12) Proposed method for the handling of surface water drainage.

(13) Proposed grading patterns.

(14) Street and open space lighting proposals.

(b) Elements of the Program.

o)
2
©)
(4)

®)

Proposed members of the Professional Design Team.

Proposed ownership pattern.

Operation and maintenance proposal, such as condominium, co-op, or Homeowners
Association.

Time table of the development, to include expected starting dates, projection of
completion time, and project phasing, if anticipated.

Method of public improvements financing, if any.

(c) Review of PD Conceptual Plan

@)

@

An informal review with the Applicant and City Officials will be scheduled to
determine if the requested PD conforms to the City's PD requirements and is
conceptually acceptable to the City.

Members of the Planning Commission and City Council shall informally review the
PD Conceptual Plan and may recommend either preliminary approval in principle,
with or without modifications, or denial. Such action shall be based upon compliance
with the intent of City's Comprehensive Plan, the intent of City

115

94



development standards and the extent of deviation from City standards proposed in
the PD.

(3) Approval in principle of the PD Conceptual Plan shall be limited to the preliminary
acceptability of the land uses proposed and their interrelationships and shall not be
construed to endorse the precise location of uses nor engineering feasibility. The City
may require the submission of additional information for the PD Development Plan
review.

(4) The City shall review and may recommend expansion, additions, or modifications in
the proposed design team for the preparation of the PD Development Plan.

(5) The City shall determine the extent of any environmental assessment to be included
with the PD Development Plan.

SECTION 9.463 PD DEVELOPMENT PLAN

@

(b)

©

(d)

After receiving approval in principle of the PD Conceptual Plan, the Applicant shall have
a PD Development Plan prepared by a professional design team in such design-related
fields as Architecture, Landscape Architecture, Urban Planning, and Civil Engineering.

An applicant for a PD Overlay-District shall also petition for an amendment to the zoning
map as specified in Section 9.253. Fifteen (15) copies of the PD Development Plan shall
be submitted to the Planning Commission and City Council at least 30 days prior to the
date of public hearing.

Upon receipt of the PD Development Plan, the Planning Commission and City Council
shall hold separate public hearings or a single joint public hearing in accordance with the
provisions of Section 9:306. At the public hearing the applicant shall present the PD
Development Plan.

Plan Elements. In addition to the Application Site Plan required in Section 9.204, the PD
Development Plan shall contain the following elements:

(1) A complete development plan in conformance with the approved conceptual plan.

(2) Existing and proposed contour map of the site to a scale commensurate with the size
of the development.

(3) Location, widths, and names of all existing or platted streets or other public ways,
railroad and utility rights-of-way, parks, or other public open spaces and land uses
within 300 feet of the development.

(4) Existing sewers, water mains, and other underground facilities within and adjacent to
the development and their certified capacities.

(5) Proposed location and capacity of sewers or other disposal facilities, water mains and
other underground utilities.

(6) Proposed system for the handling of storm drainage.

(7) A Subdivision Tentative Plan in conformance with Section 9.220, if the property is
proposed to be subdivided.

(8) A land use plan indicating the uses planned for the development.

(9) Areas proposed to be dedicated or reserved for interior circulation, public parks,
playgrounds, school sites, public buildings, or other uses dedicated or reserved to the
public, if any.

116

95



(10)
(11
(12)
(13)

(14)
(15)

(16)

1

(18)

Open space that is to be maintained and controlled by the owners of the property and
the proposed uses thereof.

A traffic flow map showing the circulation pattern within and adjacent to the
proposed development.

Location and dimensions of bikeways, pedestrian walkways, malls, trails, or
easements.

Location, arrangement, number and dimensions of automobile garages and parking
spaces, width of aisles, bays, and angle of parking.

Location, arrangement, and dimensions of truck loading and unloading spaces, if any.
Preliminary architectural plans and elevations of typical buildings and structures,
indicating the general height, bulk, appearance and number of dwelling units.

A preliminary tree planting and landscaping plan. All existing trees over six (6)
inches in diameter and groves of trees shall be shown. Trees to be removed by
development shall be so marked.

The approximate location, height, materials of all walls, fences, and screen plantings.
Elevation drawings of typical walls and fences shall be included.

The stages, if any, of development construction. Such stages shall be clearly marked
on the PD Development Plan.

(e) Program Elements.

(1) Narrative statement of the basic purposes of the planned development.

(2) An environmental assessment if requested by the City during review of the PD
Conceptual Plan.

(3) Tables showing the total number of acres and the percentage of the total area which
is designated for each type of use including each dwelling type, off-street parking,
streets, parks, playgrounds, schools, and open spaces as shown on the proposed
development plan.

(4) Tables showing the overall density of the proposed residential development and
showing density by dwelling types and any proposals for the limitation of density.

(5) Drafts of appropriate restrictive covenants and drafts of documents providing for the
maintenance of any common open space, or required dedications or reservations of
public open spaces and of any dedications of development rights.

(6) A timetable indicting when utility and drainage facilities intended to serve the
development are to be installed. If the development is to be constructed in stages, the
timetable shall reflect this.

SECTION 9.464 DECISION AND FINDINGS

@) Planning Commission Decision. The Planning Commission, after a public hearing in
accordance with the provisions of Section 9.306, may recommend approval, denial or
approval with conditions of the PD Development Plan and the PD Overlay-District.

(b) City Council Decision. The City Council, after a public hearing in accordance with the

provisions of Section 9.306 and after receiving the recommendation from the Planning
Commission on the PD Development Plan shall either approve the application, deny the
application or approve the application with conditions.

117

96



(c) A single joint public hearing by the Planning Commission and City Council may be utilized
in conformance with Section 9.306 (c).

(d) PD Development Elements. Approval of the PD Development Plan includes approval of
all attached elements including the PD Overlay-District, a Subdivision Tentative Plan and
all Conditions of Approval.

(e) Decision Criteria. The recommendation of the Planning Commission and decision by the
City Council shall be based upon the following findings:

(1) That the proposed development is in conformance with the intent of the City's
Comprehensive Plan.

(2) That exceptions from the standards of the underlying District are warranted by the
design and amenities incorporated in the proposed PD Development Plan.

(3) That the proposed development is consistent with the purpose and intent of the
Primary District and that adjacent properties are protected from potential adverse
affects resulting from the proposed development by appropriate controls or
development standards.

(4) That the proposed development, or a unit thereof, can be substantially completed
within two (2) years of final approval.

(5) That the streets are adequate to support the anticipated traffic and that the
development will not overload the streets outside the PD Overlay-District.

(6) That the proposed utilities and drainage facilities are adequate for the population
densities and type of development proposed and will not create drainage or pollution
problems outside the PD Overlay-District.

(7) That the timing of installation of utility and drainage facilities will be closely
coordinated with development construction and will not create a hardship to residents
either within or outside the PD Overlay-District.

(8) That the density in the proposed development will not result in any substantial
negative impact on any public facility or utility.

SECTION 9.465 OFFICIAL PD DEVELOPMENT PLAN

@) Following approval of the PD Overlay-District by the City Council, the applicant shall
make changes in the PD Development Plan to comply with the Conditions of Approval and
submit it to the City Administrator for verification of compliance with the PD Development
Plan and Conditions of Approval applied by the City.

(b) If the PD Development Plan is found to be in compliance with the approval conditions, it
shall be so certified by the City Administrator and placed in the Record File of the
Application as the Official PD Development Plan along with all documents relating to
dedications, improvements, agreements, restrictions, and associations.

(c) The Platting procedures set forth in Section 9.210 shall be followed and included in the

Record File if the property is to be divided or streets are to be dedicated unless private
street exceptions have been approved by the City Council.

118

97



(d)

O]

®

()

All public site dedications, development rights to open spaces or other dedications for the
entire site or approved staged portion shall be certified and placed in the Record File prior
to the issuance of any building permit.

Final copies of all approved articles governing operation and maintenance shall be placed
in the Record File prior to the issuance of any building permit.

The PD Overlay-District shall be adopted by City Ordinance. The area shall henceforth be
shown on the official zoning map as a PD Overlay-District in addition to the Primary
District. All building permits shall be issued only in conformance with the Official PD
Development Plan recorded in the Record File.

All requirements of Article 7, Improvement Requirements, shall apply to public
improvements required by the approved PD Development Plan unless waivers have been
approved by the City Council as a part of the PD Development Plan approval process.

SECTION 9.466 PROPOSED CHANGES IN APPROVED PLANS

@

(b)

Major Changes. Major changes in the Official Development Plan after it has been adopted
shall be considered a new petition and shall comply with the procedures for adoption.

Minor Changes. Minor changes in an approved Official Development Plan may be
approved by the City Administrator, provided that such changes:

(1) Do not change the character of the development or the population density.

(2) Do not change the boundaries of the PD Overlay-District.

(3) Do not change any use, such as residential to commercial.

(4) Do not change the location or amount of land devoted to a specific land use.

(5) Do not relax dimensional standards or other specific requirements established by
the City as a condition of approval.

SECTION 9.467 EXPIRATION

@)

(b)

©

If substantial construction or development has not taken place within two (2) years from
the date of final approval and acceptance of the Official Development Plan, the City
Administrator shall review the status with the owner and make a report of the findings to
the Planning Commission and City Council.

Upon abandonment of a particular Planned Development, or if its development has not
been substantially completed within the time specified in the Official Development Plan,
the City may schedule public hearings to remove the PD Overlay- District unless a request
to extend the time limit is approved.

The procedure for removal of a PD Overlay District is essentially the same as for adoption.
The proposed removal of the PD Overlay-District shall be reviewed at a public hearing of
the Planning Commission to determine whether or not its continuation in whole or in part
is in the public interest. If the PD Overlay-District is found not to be in the public interest,
the Planning Commission shall recommend to the City Council that

119

98



the PD Overlay-District of the property be removed. The City Council shall then hold a
public hearing on the revocation of the PD Overlay-District and shall either maintain the
District, revoke the development plan approval, or grant a time extension if it appears
justifiable. If the PD Overlay District is repealed, further use of the property and future
structures thereon shall be in accordance with the existing Primary District

SECTIONS 9.468 through 9.499 reserved for expansion.

ARTICLE 9.5 GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

SECTION 9.502 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

In addition to the development standards specified for each zoning district, there are many
standards that apply in more than one district. The following Sections specify development
standards applicable within any zoning district in the City of Lowell.

SECTION 9.503 PLAN CONFORMANCE

All developments within the City shall conform to any approved development plan adopted by the
City. Developments located within an area that has an approved plan shall comply with the design
and construction standards of that approved plan in addition to those contained in this Code. In
cases of conflict, the approved plan shall control.

SECTION 9.504 HEIGHT STANDARDS

Building height standards are specified in each Zoning District.

SECTION 9.505 BUILDING HEIGHT EXCEPTIONS

Vertical projections such as chimneys, spires, domes, elevator shaft housings, towers aerials,
flagpoles, and similar objects not used for human occupancy shall not exceed the building height
limitations of this Code by more than ten (10) feet.

SECTION 9.506 BUILDING PROJECTION EXCEPTIONS

Architectural features such as cornices, eaves, canopies, sunshades, gutters, chimneys and flues
shall not project more than 30 inches into a required yard.

TC-70 9/05/06

120

99



SECTION 9.507 LOT SIZE

Lot size standards are specified in each Zoning District. Area required for panhandle
and easement access shall not be included in the minimum lot size calculations for any
lot.

SECTION 9.508 LOT SIZE EXCEPTIONS

If a lot as recorded in the office of the County Assessor at the time of passage of this Code, has an
area or dimension which does not comply with the lot size requirements of the district in which
the property is located, the property may be occupied by a use permitted in the district subject to
the other requirements of the district. If there is an area deficiency, residential use shall be limited
to a single-family dwelling or to the number of dwelling units consistent with the lot-area-per-
dwelling-unit requirement of the district.

SECTION 9.509 YARD SETBACKS
Yard setback standards are specified in each Zoning District.
SECTION 9.510 YARD SETBACK EXCEPTIONS

@) No building shall be erected on a lot which abuts a street having only a portion of its
required right-of-way (ROW) dedicated, unless, the yard setbacks are increased to
accommodate the required ROW plus the required yard setback.

(b) The Planning Commission may require additional setbacks, street right-of-way dedications
and street improvements for development projects which are required to be submitted for
review and approval.

(c) The Planning Commission may reduce the required yard setbacks for special and unusual
site conditions in conformance with Section 9.252, Variances where compliance with the
setback provisions of this Code would create an undue or unnecessary hardship.

SECTION 9.511 DRAINAGEWAY SETBACKS

(@) The shore of Dexter Reservoir and any year-round flowing streams shall have a minimum
sethack of 25 feet from the top of each bank. Additional setbacks may be required for
riparian areas and wetlands existing along the shore of Dexter Reservoir and such streams.
Alteration of these areas by grading or placement of structures or impervious surfaces is
prohibited unless approved by the City in accordance with the procedures of city
ordinances and state law. For purposes of drainageway setbacks, a fence is not considered
a structure, and may be permitted within the drainageway setback. Fencing standards still
apply as listed in Section 9.528(c)

(b)  All other drainageways and watercourses identified as significant by the City shall have a
setback of 15 feet from the center of the drainageway. Additional setbacks may be required
for identified wetlands. Alteration of these areas by grading or placement of structures or
impervious surfaces is prohibited unless approved by the City in accordance with the
procedures of city ordinances and state law. For purposes of drainageway setbacks, a fence
is not considered a structure, and may be permitted within the drainageway setback.

121

100



Fencing standards still apply as listed in Section 9.528(c)

SECTION 9.512 COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL SETBACKS

In Commercial or Industrial districts where an interior yard is not required and a structure is not
located at the property line, it shall be set back at least five (5) feet from the property line to
accommodate access to the building.

SECTION 9.513 PARKING

For each new structure or use, each structure or use increased in area and each change in the use
of an existing structure there shall be provided and maintained off-street parking areas in
conformance with the provisions of this section.

(a) Design and Improvement Requirements for Parking Lots:

@)

@

©)

All parking areas and driveway approaches shall be surfaced with a minimum of two
inches asphaltic concrete or four inches Portland Cement Concrete over approved
base unless other methods are approved by the City. Under specified conditions the
City may defer paving and permit gravel parking areas as a temporary use.

For Commercial and Industrial uses, service drives and parking spaces on surfaced
parking lots shall be clearly and permanently marked. Handicapped Parking must
comply with the Oregon Structural Specialty Code.

Parking areas for other than single-family and two-family dwellings shall be served
by a service driveway and turnaround so that no backing movements or other
maneuvering shall occur within a street other than an alley. Design-for-parking-lots

i i i in-Fi o5& Two-way
driveways shall have a minimum width of 20 feet and a maximum width of 30 feet.
One-way driveways shall have a minimum width of 12 feet and a maximum width of
16 feet.

®)

(6)

U]

The outer boundary and all landscaped islands of a parking area shall be contained
by a 6" high curb for protection of landscaping, pedestrian walkways and to contain
rainwater runoff. No motor vehicle shall project over the property line.

All parking areas, except those in conjunction with a single family or two-family
dwelling, shall have adequate drainage to dispose of the run-off generated by the
impervious surface area of the parking area. On-site collection of drainage water shall
not allow sheet flow of water onto sidewalks, public right-of-ways or abutting
property and shall detain out-flow velocities to that of undeveloped land. On-site
drainage must be approved by the City.

Service driveways to off-street parking areas shall be designed and constructed to
facilitate the flow of traffic, provide maximum safety of traffic access and egress, and
maximum safety of pedestrian and vehicular traffic on the site. The number of service
driveways shall be limited to the minimum that will allow the property to

122

101



(b)

(©

(d)

©)

®

)

(h)

accommodate and service the traffic anticipated. Service driveways connected to
County roads must be approved and permitted by Lane County Public Works

(8) All off-street parking areas within or abutting residential districts or uses shall be
provided with a sight-obscuring fence, wall or hedge as approved by the City to
minimize disturbances to adjacent residents.

Location Standards for Parking Lots:

(1) Required off-street parking shall be provided either on, or within 800 feet of the
development site unless a Variance is approved by the City. Off-street parking within
the Downtown Flex Use 1 and 2 Zones shall be consistent with the Parking Zone as
seen on the Regulating Plan and Building Standards sheets in SECHIORXX. orin-the

(2) Off-street parking areas may be located in a required yard required setback provided
a 5-foot-wide landscaped buffer and screening, as in Section 9.528 (d), is maintained
at the property line. Driveways may be used for off-street parking for single-family
and-two-family dwellings, triplexes, and quadplexes enby-

Required parking spaces shall be available for the parking of operable motor vehicles for
residents, customers, patrons and employees only and shall not be used for storage of
vehicles, trucks, or materials used in the business, or for repair or servicing.

Provisions for and maintenance of off-street parking spaces are continuing obligations of
the property owner. No building permit or other approvals shall be issued until plans are
presented that show the complete parking layout. The subsequent use of property for which
approval is granted shall be conditional upon the unqualified continuance and availability
of the amount of parking space required by this Code.

Should the owner or occupant of a lot or building change the use of the property to a use
which increases the off-street parking requirements, it shall be unlawful and a violation of
this Code to begin to maintain such altered use until the required increase in off-street
parking is provided.

In the event several uses occupy a single structure or property, the total requirements for
off-street parking shall be the sum of the requirements of the several uses computed
separately.

Owners of two or more uses, structures or properties may agree to use the same parking
spaces jointly provided the off-street parking is the sum of the requirements of the several
uses. If the hours of operation do not overlap, the parking requirement shall be for the
highest use. An agreement shall be submitted and approved by the Planning Commission
for the cooperative use of the parking facilities.

A plan, drawn to scale, indicating how the off-street parking requirements are to be
fulfilled, shall accompany all requests for City approval or a Building Permit.

123

102



@) Parking lots shall be provided with landscaping as provided in Section 9.528 (d) and other
suitable devices in order to divide the parking lot into sub-units to provide for pedestrian
safety, traffic control, and to improve the appearance of the parking lot.

) Off-street parking spaces shall be required as defined in Section 9:514. Fractional space
requirements shall be counted as a whole space. When square feet are utilized to determine
the required parking spaces, the area measured shall be the gross floor area of the building
primary to the use but shall exclude any area within a building used for off- street parking,
loading, or service functions not primary to the use. When the requirements are based on
the number of employees, the number counted shall be those working on the premises
during the largest shift at peak season.

SECTION 9.514 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Section 9.514 Off_Street Parking Requirements

Dwelling. single-family

Dwelling. two-family (duplex) or multiple

family

One for each dwelling unit on a single lot.
One for each dwelling unit.

Townhome/Single-Family Attached No minimum off-street parking required.
(DRA District)

Flex 1 and Flex 2 No minimum off-street parking required.
Residential / Single-Family Detached One space for each unit.

(DRD District)

Hotel, motels, motor hotels, etc. 0.75 spaces for each guest room.
Accessory dwelling unit (ADU) No minimum off-street parking required.

One space per cottage unit.

One additional guest parking space provided for
every four cottages, round up to the next whole
number, up to a maximum of six guest parking
Cottage clusters spaces.

Off-street parking requirement may be waived
or reduced by the City Administrator, or

designee. if sufficient on-street parking is

available within 800 feet of ﬁroEﬁ.

Hospitals On.e for each bed; where ﬁactimlled. highest full
e unit. plus 2 for each nurses’ station.

One space for every 75 square feet of main
assembly area.

Exempt from minimums. To be determined
Libraires, museums, art galleries based on actual need.-One-spaee-foreach-300-

Churches. clubs and lodges

. Onc space for each six beds for the aged. group
Nursing homes. homes for the aged.
care homes, asylums. etc.

Pre-School through Middle-School Exempt from minimums. To be determined
based on actual nced_One space perelassroom: |

124

103



High Schools

Retail establishments. except as otherwise
specified in this Code.

Exempt from minimums. To be determined
based on actual needs—Based-en-aetual-needs-

One space for each 400 square feet of retail
floor area. except one per 1.000 square feet for
bulk retail (e.g.. auto sales. nurseries. lumber
and construction materials, furniture,

appliances. and similar sales.)

Barber and beauty shops

One space for each 200 square feet of floor area.

Health clubs. Gyms. Continuous

entertainment (e.g.. bowling alleys)

One space for every 300 square feet of floor
area.

Office buildings. businesses, and

professional offices. including medical.
dental and banking institutions.

Spectator type auditoriums. assembly

One space for every 500 square feet of floor
area.

One space per six seats.

halls. theaters. stadiums. places of public
assembly, etc.

Participating skating rinks, dance halls. etc.

One space for each 300 square feet of floor area.

Establishments for the sale and
consumptions on the premise of food and

Storage warehouse, manufacturing
establishment. wholesale establishments.
rail or trucking freight terminal.

beveraie.

Any use not specifically listed in this section or when to be determined based on actual
needs, shall have a parking requirement determined by the City Administrator or their
designee. based a parking demand analysis technical memorandum. Such memorandum shall
be prepared by qualified persons or agency with expertise or technical knowledge in the
matter of parking analysis at the applicant’s or developer’s expense.

One space for each 200 square feet of floor area.

One space per employee.

125

104



126

105



ise-such-as-auto—
(3) Banks-and-Offices One-space-per-400-s/ft—of floorarea
“4)  Medicaland-dental One-space-per-300-sift—offloor
elpie DRSS RR S s R s
Chasenns
establishment access-area
fo——pdustenl
(1) Storage warehouse, manu— One space per employee
P ol
per-700-square-feet of patron serving-area
Unspeeitied-Uses ARy tise-Rotspec ieally-listed .
it s section- aII_ ave-a-parking
i i i 1
the _Ia #g-Co FHSSHO based-on-the
GGm-p&Fabl—e—H-SeS—“—Sted—}n—t—h{-S—SeeﬂGn—- i j i O
SECTION 9.515 TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS

Until such time as a formal Transportation System Plan is completed and adopted by the City of
Lowell which addresses and conforms with the State of Oregon Transportation Planning Rule, the
development standards for transportation contained in Sections 9.515 through 9.519 shall apply.

(@) The Lowell Master Road Plan shall be a guide in determining the location of required right-
of-way dedications. The Planning Commission may require other right-of-way dedications when
needed to provide for public access and construction of public utilities for proposed new
developments

(b) Standards for Development of Transportation infrastructure within the City of Lowell are
contained in the adopted Standards for Public. The standards contained in Sections 9.515 through
9.519 are in lieu of or in addition to those standards. Where a conflict arises, the standards
contained in this code apply.

SECTION 9.516 ACCESS
(a) Every property shall abut a street other than an alley for a minimum of _continuous and usable

width of 16 feet, of which 12 foot must be paved, except where the City has approved an access
to multiple lots sharing the same access in which case the total paving width must be at least 16

127

106



feet. No more than two properties may utilize the same access unless more are approved with the
tentative plan.

(b) The following access alternatives to Panhandle properties may be approved by the City:

(1) Approval of a single access road easement to serve proposed parcels. The City may
require a provision for conversion to a dedicated public road right-of-way at some
future date, in which case the easement shall have the same width as a required right-
of-way.

(2) Approval of a road right-of-way without providing the road improvements until the

irrevocable Waiver of Remonstrance to be recorded with the property.

(3) Approval of a private road. This approach should only be used for isolated short
streets serving a limited number of sites and where future City street alignments will
not be needed.

(c) For the portion of a panhandle tract used to access the main portion of the tract, the City may
require such road improvements and design as necessary to provide safe and adequate access
to the main portion of t the tract.

(1) Panhandle lots shall be paved up until at least the crest of the panhandle. The crest of
the panhandle is defined as the area in which the lot width increases and opens up into
the main portion of the lot.

(d) Lots or parcels that take access off of a private road easement shall have a legal right
appurtenant to use that easement. A legal right to use the easement may be evidenced by:

(1) An express grant or reservation of an easement in a document recorded with the
County Recorder.

(2) A decree or judgement issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.

(3) An order from a court of competent jurisdiction that establishes a statutory way of
necessity of gateway road; or

(4) An express easement set forth in an approved and recorded subdivision or partition.

(e) Driveway and road approaches on City streets shall be located where they do not create undue
interference or hazard to the free movement of highway and pedestrian traffic. Locations on
sharp curves, steep grades, areas of restricted sight distance or at points that interfere with the
placement and proper functioning of signs, lighting, guardrail or other traffic control devices
shall not be permitted.

(1) Driveway approaches or aprons abutting paved city rights-of-way, shall be paved.

128

107



SECTION 9.517 STREETS

@

Urban public street improvements including curbs, gutters and storm drainage
are required for all land divisions and property development in the City of
Lowell. Urban street improvements may be deferred by the City if there is not
existing sidewalk or storm drain system to which connection can be made,
conditional upon the responsible party agreeing to an irrevocable waiver of
remonstrance to a future assessment at the time of construction of a sidewalk
which is otherwise required to be constructed.

(b) The location and grade of streets shall be considered in their relation to

(©

(d)

©)

®

(9)

existing and planned streets, topographical conditions, public convenience and
safety, and to the proposed use of land to be served by the streets. The street
system shall assure an adequate traffic circulation system with intersection angles,
grades, tangents and curves appropriate for the traffic to be carried considering the
terrain. The arrangement of streets shall either:

(1) Provide for the continuation or appropriate extension of existing principal streets in
the surrounding area; or

(2) Conform to a plan for the neighborhood approved or adopted by the City to meet a
particular situation where topographical or other conditions make continuance or
conformance to existing streets impractical.

Minimum right-of-way and roadway widths. Right-of-way widths and the paved width of
streets and sidewalks shall be as prescribed in the City’s most current Standards for Public
Improvements. Right-of-way widths may be reduced to that needed only for construction of
streets and sidewalks if a minimum of a five foot utility easement is dedicated on both sides
of the right-of-way.

Where conditions, particularly topography or the size and shape of the tract make strict
adherence to the standards difficult, narrower developed streets may be approved by
elimination of parking on one or both sides of the street and/or elimination of sidewalks on
one side of the street.

Where topographical conditions necessitate cuts or fills for proper grading of streets,
additional right-of-ways or slope easements may be required.

Reserve Strips: A reserve strip is a 1 foot strip of land at the end of a right-of-way extending
the full width of the right-of-way used to control access to the street. Reserve strips will
not be approved unless necessary for the protection of the public welfare or of substantial
property rights. The control of the land comprising such strips shall be placed within the
jurisdiction of the City by deed under conditions approved by the City. In addition, a
barricade shall be constructed at the end of the street by the land divider which shall not be
removed until authorized by the City. The cost shall be included in the street construction
costs by the land divider.

Alignment: As far as is practicable, streets shall be in alignment with existing streets by
continuations of the center lines thereof. Staggered street alignment resulting in "T"

129

108



(h)

0]

@

(k)

0]

(m)

W)

(0)

(p)

(a)

intersections shall, wherever practical, leave a minimum distance of 260 feet between the
center lines of streets having approximately the same direction.

Future Extensions of Streets: Where necessary to give access to or permit a satisfactory
future division of adjoining land, streets shall be extended to the boundary of the
subdivisions or partition, or development of property, and the resulting dead-end streets
may be approved with a turn- around instead of a cul-de-sac. Reserve strips and street plugs
may be required to preserve the objectives of street extensions.

Intersection Angles: Streets shall be laid out to intersect at angles as near to right angles as
practical except where topography require a lesser angle, but in no case shall the acute
angle be less than 60 degrees unless there is a special intersection design.

Existing Streets: Whenever existing streets adjacent to or within a tract are of inadequate
width, additional right-of-way shall be provided at the time of approval of the land division
or land use approval.

Half Street: Half streets, while generally not acceptable, may be approved where essential
to the reasonable development of the subdivision or partition when in conformity with the
other requirements of these regulations and when the Planning Commission finds it will be
practical to require the dedication of the other half when the adjoining property is divided.
Whenever a half street is adjacent to a tract to be divided, the other half of the street shall
be provided within such tract. Reserve strips and street plugs may be required to preserve
the objectives of half streets._ Half street improvements shall include, at minimum, a
sidewalk, curb, and gutter.

Cul-de-sacs: A cul-de-sac should have a maximum length of 500 feet but may be longer
where unusual circumstances exist. A cul-de-sac shall terminate with a circular or
hammerhead turn-around.

Street Names: Except for extensions of existing streets, no street name shall be used which
will duplicate or be confused with the name of an existing street. Street names and numbers
shall conform to the established pattern in the City and shall be subject to the approval of
the City.

Street Name Signs: Street name signs shall be installed at all street intersections to City
standards.

Street Lights: Street lights shall be installed to City standards and shall be served from an
underground utility.

Traffic Signs/Signals: Where a proposed intersection will result in the need for street
signals to serve the increased traffic generated by the proposed development, they shall be
provided by the developer or land divider and the costs shall be born by the developer or
land divider unless an equitable means of cost distribution is approved by the City.

Private Streets: Private streets are permitted within Planned Developments, Manufactured
Home Parks, singularly owned developments of sufficient size to warrant interior
circulation on private streets or on small developments where integration into the public
road system is impractical. Design standards shall be the same as those required for

130

109



public streets unless approved otherwise by the City. The City shall require verification
of legal requirements for the continued maintenance of private streets.

(n Mail Boxes: Provisions for mail boxes shall be provided in all residential developments
where mail service is provided. Mail box structures shall be placed as recommended by the

Post Office having jurisdiction and shall be noted on the plan.

(s) Clear Vision Areas: In all districts a clear vision area shall be maintained at the corners of
all property located at the intersection of two streets or a street-alley. A clear vision area

shall also be maintained at all driveways intersecting a street. See Figure 9.5-2

(1) All properties shall maintain a clear triangular area at street intersections, alley- street
intersections and driveway-street intersections for safety vision purposes. The two
sides of the triangular area shall be 15 feet in length along the edge of roadway at all
street intersections and 10 feet in length at all alley-street intersections and driveway-
street intersections. Where streets intersect at less than 30 degrees, the triangular sides
shall be increased to 25 feet in length. The third side of the triangle shall be a line
connecting the two exterior sides.

(2) A clear vision area shall contain no plantings, fences, walls, structures, or temporary
or permanent obstruction exceeding 3 feet in height, measured from the top of the
curb, or, where no curb exists, from the established street center line grade. Trees
exceeding this height may be located in this area, provided all branches or foliage
are removed to a height of 8 feet above grade.

SECTION 9.518 SIDEWALKS

Public sidewalk improvements are required for all land divisions and property development in the
City of Lowell. Sidewalks may be deferred by the City where future road or utility improvements
will occur and on property in the rural fringe of the City where urban construction standards have
not yet occurred. The property owner is obligated to provide the sidewalk when requested by the
City or is obligated to pay their fair share if sidewalks are installed by the City at a later date. An
irrevocable Waiver of Remonstrance shall be recorded with the property to guarantee compliance
with this requirement.

@

(b)

(©

(d)

Sidewalks shall be constructed within the street right-of-way. Sidewalk easements shall
only be accepted where the City determines that full right-of-way acquisition is impractical.

Sidewalks shall connect to and align with existing sidewalks. Sidewalks may transition to
another alignment as part of the approval process.

The City may approve alternate sidewalk alignments and widths to accommodate
obstructions that cannot be altered.

Sidewalks in residential areas shall be a minimum of five (5) feet in width and shall be
installed adjacent to the curb unless a planter strip of at least four (4) feet in width is
approved adjacent to the curb where sufficient right-of-way is available.

131

110



(e) Sidewalks adjacent to Major Collector or Arterial Streets are required and shall be a
minimum of five (5) feet in width separated by a planter strip of five (5) feet in width
adjacent to the curb. Sidewalks may be approved adjacent to the curb where direct access
is required. Sidewalks adjacent to the curb shall be a minimum of seven (7) feet in width
or a minimum of ten (10) feet in width adjacent to Commercial properties. Planter openings
adjacent to the curb are encouraged within the ten (10) foot wide walks.

(f) Planter strips and the remaining right-of-way shall be landscaped and incorporated as part
of the front yard of adjacent property.

(9) Mid-block Sidewalks. The City may require mid-block sidewalks for long blocks or to
provide access to schools, parks shopping centers, public transportation stops or other
community services. Mid-block sidewalks shall be raised and shall be 6 feet in width.

(h) Internal pedestrian circulation shall be provided within new office parks and commercial
developments by clustering buildings and construction of accessways.

SECTION 9.519 BIKEWAYS

Bikeways are required along Arterial and Major Collector streets. Currently the only Bikeway
requirements are those required by the County as a part of the County owned Major Collector
streets within the City. Future requirements for Bikeways may be addressed at such time that a
Transportation System Plan (TTSP) is completed for the City., but until specific Bikeway
requirements are adopted, travel lanes of all streets that do not require Bikeways are approved for
joint use with bicycles.

SECTION 9.520 STORM DRAINAGE

Until completion of a Storm Drainage Master Plan for the City of Lowell, Section IV, of the
Standards for Public Improvements and the following shall apply. In the event of a conflict, the
following takes precedence.

(@)  General Provisions. It is the obligation of the property owner to provide proper drainage
and protect all runoff and drainage ways from disruption or contamination. On-site and off-
site drainage improvements may be required. Property owners shall provide proper
drainage and shall not direct drainage across another property except as a part of an
approved drainage plan. Paving, roof drains and catch basin outflows may require detention
ponds or cells and discharge permits. Maintaining proper drainage is a continuing
obligation of the property owner. The City will approve a development request only where
adequate provisions for storm and flood water run-off have been made as determined by
the City. The storm water drainage system must be separate and independent of any
sanitary sewerage system. Inlets should be provided so surface water is not carried across
any intersection or allowed to flood any street. Surface water drainage patterns and
proposed storm drainage must be shown on every development plan submitted for
approval. All proposed drainage systems must be approved by the City as part of the review
and approval process.

TC-80 9/05/06

132

111



(b)

(©

(d)

O

®

(9)

Urban level inlets, catch basins, and drainage pipe improvements are required for all land
divisions and property development in the City of Lowell. Urban storm drainage systems
may be deferred by the City in lieu of a rural system of culverts and open drainageways.

Natural Drainageways. Open natural drainageways of sufficient width and capacity to
provide for flow and maintenance are permitted and encouraged. For the purposes of this
Section, an open natural drainageway is defined as a natural path which has the specific
function of transmitting natural stream water or storm water run-off from a point of higher
elevation to a point of lower elevation. Significant natural drainageways shall be protected
as a linear open space feature wherever possible and shall be protected from pollutants and
sediments. A 15 foot setback is required from the centerline of any significant drainageway.

Easements. Where a land division is traversed by a water course, drainageway, channel or
stream, there shall be provided a public storm water easement or drainage right-of-way
conforming substantially with the lines of such water course and such further width as the
City determines will be adequate for conveyance and maintenance. Improvements to
existing drainageways may be required of the property owner. The property owner is also
responsible for the continuing maintenance and protection of natural drainageways.

Accommodation of Upstream Drainage. A culvert or other drainage facility shall be large
enough to accommodate potential run-off from its entire upstream drainage area, whether
inside or outside of the development. The City must review and approve the necessary size
of the facility, based on sound engineering principles and assuming conditions of maximum
potential watershed development permitted by the Comprehensive Plan.

Effect on Downstream Drainage. Where it is anticipated by the City that the additional run-
off resulting from the development will overload an existing drainage facility, the City may
deny approval of the development unless mitigation measures have been approved.
Drainage Management Practices. Developments within the City must employ drainage
management practices approved by the City. The City may limit the amount and rate of
surface water run-off into receiving streams or drainage facilities by requiring the use of
one or more of the following practices:

(1) Temporary ponding or detention of water to control rapid runoff;

(2) Permanent storage basins;

(3) Minimization of impervious surfaces;

(4) Emphasis on natural drainageways;

(5) Prevention of water flowing from the development in an uncontrolled fashion;

133

112



(h)

(6) Stabilization of natural drainageways as necessary below drainage and culvert
discharge points for a distance sufficient to convey the discharge without channel
erosion;

(7) Runoff from impervious surfaces must be collected and transported to a natural
drainage facility with sufficient capacity to accept the discharge; and

(8) Other practices and facilities designed to transport storm water and improve water
quality.

NPDES Permit Required. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit must be obtained from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for
construction activities (including clearing, grading, and excavation) that disturb one or
more acres of land.

SECTION 9.521 WATER

@

(b)

(©

(d)

O

All new development must connect to the public water system unless specifically
approved otherwise as a part of a development approval for parcels exceeding 5 acres in
size after division for which the public water system is located further than 300 feet from
any property line.  All water line extensions, required fire hydrants, and related
appurtenances shall be installed and paid for by the developer unless the City has
approved otherwise as a part of the tentative plan decision process.

All public water system improvements shall comply with Section II of the City’s Standard
for Public Improvements, dated September 1994. The City may modify those
requirements upon a recommendation by the City Engineer in the event of special
circumstances.

Water Line Extensions. Water distribution lines must be extended along the full length of
the property's frontage along the right-of-way or to a point identified by the City
Administrator as necessary to accommodate likely system expansion. Water line
extensions may be required through the interior of properties, within dedicated public
utility easements, when necessary to provide for service to other properties or to provide
system looping for fire flows. All public water system line extensions shall have a
minimum 6 inch diameter unless a smaller size is recommended by the City Engineer and
approved by the City. The City Engineer may also require a larger size if needed to extend
transmission capacity or for fire hydrant flow where looping is not available.

Water Plan Approval. All proposed plans for extension and installation of the public water

system must be approved by the City as part of the tentative plan review and approval
process.

Restriction of Development. The Planning Commission or City Council may limit or deny
development approvals where a deficiency exists in the water system or portion thereof
which will not be corrected as a part of the proposed development improvements.

134

113



SECTION 9.522 SANITARY SEWER

@

All new development must extend and connect to the public sewer system unless
specifically approved otherwise as a part of a development approval for parcels exceeding
5 acres in size after division for which the public sewer system is located further than 300
feet from any property line. All sewer line extensions, manholes, required lift stations and
related appurtenances shall be installed and paid for by the developer unless the City has
approved otherwise as a part of the tentative plan decision process.

(b) All public sewer system improvements shall comply with Section III of the City’s
Standards for Public Improvements, dated September 1994. The City may modify those
requirements upon a recommendation by the City Engineer in the event of special
circumstances.

(c) Sewer Line Extensions. Sewer collection lines must be extended along the full length of
the property's frontage along the right-of-way or to a point identified by the City
Administrator as necessary to accommodate likely system expansion.

(d) Sewer Plan Approval. All proposed sewer plans and systems must be approved by the City
as part of the tentative plan review and approval process.

(e) Restriction of Development. The City may limit or deny development approvals where a
deficiency exists in the sewer system or portion thereof which will not be corrected as a
part of the development improvements.

SECTION 9.523 UTILITIES

@) It is the policy of the City to place all utilities underground except as otherwise exempted
below. Developers shall make all necessary arrangements with serving utility companies
for installation of such utilities.

(b) Exceptions. The City may permit overhead utilities as a condition of approval where the
Applicant can demonstrate one of the following conditions:

(1) Underground utility locations are not feasible.

(2) Temporary installations.

(3) Major transmission facilities located within right-of-ways or easement

(4) Surface mounted structures, substations or facilities requiring above ground
locations by the serving utility.

SECTION 9.524 EASEMENTS

(a) Easements granting limited use of property for any defined purpose may be approved for
any lot or parcel.

(b) Access easements may be approved by the City as provided in Section 9.516. The Planning

Commission or City Council may require wider access easements if special circumstances
exist.

135

114



©

(d)

Utility easements shall be provided for sewers, water mains and public or private utilities
necessary to provide full service to all developments. Land dividers shall show on the
Tentative Plan and on the final Plat all easements and shall provide all dedications,
covenants, conditions or restrictions with the Supplemental Data submitted for review.
Minimum interior utility easements shall be 10 feet wide centered on lot or parcel lines
where feasible. A wider easement may be required if multiple utilities will be utilizing the
same easement or if topography dictates otherwise. An exterior utility easement adjacent
to the public right-of-way will be required if at least five feet of unimproved public right-
of-way is not available.

Water Courses. If a tract is traversed by a water course such as a drainage way, channel or
stream, there shall be provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way containing
the top of bank, vegetative fringe, and such further width as will be adequate for protection
and maintenance purposes. Culverts or other drainage facilities shall be sized to
accommodate storm and flood run-off from the entire upstream drainage area at full build
out and shall be verified and approved by the City.

SECTION 9.525 BLOCKS

@

(b)

(©

(d)

General: The length, width, and shape of blocks shall be designed with regard to providing
adequate building sites for the use contemplated; consideration of needs for convenient
access, circulation, control, and safety of street traffic including pedestrian and bicyclist,
and recognition of limitations and opportunities of topography.

Size: A block shall have sufficient depth to provide for two tiers of building sites. Unless
topography, development obstructions, or the location of adjoining streets justifies an
exception, block sizes shall not exceed 400 feet unless alternative pedestrian and bicycle
access ways are provided.

Large Lot or Parcel Block Configurations: In dividing tracts into large rural lots or parcels
which at some future time are likely to be re-divided, the Planning Commission may
require that the blocks or sites be of such size and shape to provide for extension and
opening of streets at intervals which will permit a subsequent division of any tract into lots
or parcels of smaller urban size.

Traffic Circulation: Blocks shall be laid out to provide safe, convenient, and direct vehicle,
bicycle and pedestrian access to nearby residential areas, neighborhood activity centers,
commercial areas, and industrial areas; and to provide safe convenient and direct traffic
circulation.

SECTION 9.526 BUILDING SITES

Size and shape: The size, width, shape and orientation of building sites shall be appropriate for
the location and use contemplated, and shall comply with the standards of the Zoning District
and the other standards of Article 9.5 specified herein.

136

115



(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

Depth and width of properties reserved or laid out for commercial and industrial purposes
shall be adequate to provide for the off-street service and parking facilities required by the
type of use and development contemplated.

Existing lots or parcels smaller than City standards may be maintained as a conforming use
within the district. Damaged buildings or structures may be restored to their previous use.
Destroyed buildings may be replaced in conformance with this Code.

Large Lots or Parcels:

(1) Large lots or parcels which may be further divided into smaller lots in the future shall
be of such size and shape that will accommodate the efficient provision of future streets and
lots or parcels of smaller sizes. The land division request may be denied if the proposed lots
or parcels do not provide for efficient future divisions and streets.

(2) Large lot or parcel plans must show by dash lines future potential divisions to
minimum Code standards prior to approval. Building locations must be within the proposed
minimum property lines and setback standards specified herein to facilitate an orderly
division and use of the property in the future. Large lot or parcel divisions shall also show
future urban street alignments and easements in addition to future urban lot lines on the
Tentative Plan.

Through Lots and Parcels: Through lots and parcels shall be avoided except where they are
essential to the intended use.

Lot and Parcel Side Lines: The lines of lots and parcels, as far as is practicable, shall run at
right angles to the street upon which they face, except that on curved streets they shall be
radial to the curve.

(f)  Building Lines: If special building setback lines are to be established in a land division, they
shall be shown on the subdivision or partition Tentative Plan and on the Final Plat.
SECTION 9.527 GRADING

General grading shall conform to Lowell Ordinance 227, Section 2, Excavation and Grading
Building Code, and the following standards unless engineered and approved by the City.

(@)
(b)
©

(d)
(€)

Cut slopes shall not exceed one and one-half feet horizontally to one foot vertically.
Fill slopes shall not exceed two feet horizontally to one foot vertically.

The type and characteristics of imported fill soils shall be the same or compatible with the
existing soils on the site.

Fills for streets and building sites shall be engineered and approved by the City.

All sites shall be graded to direct storm water to City storm sewers or to natural drainage
ways.

137

116



SECTION 9.528 LANDSCAPING

All yard setbacks and parking areas shall be landscaped in accordance with the following
requirements:

@)

(b)

©

General Provisions.

)

@

©)

Landscaping shall primarily consist of ground cover, trees, shrubs or other living
plants with sufficient irrigation to properly maintain all vegetation. Decorative design
elements such as fountains, pools, benches, sculptures, planters, fences and similar
elements may be placed within the area.

Exceptions: Undeveloped properties or the undeveloped portion of large properties
exceeding 4,000 square feet in area are exempt from the landscape requirements
specified herein provided the lot or area is maintained so weeds and wild vegetation
does not adversely affect adjacent developed properties. Removal of noxious weeds
and vegetation will be enforced through the City's Nuisance Ordinance.

Provisions for landscaping, screening and maintenance are a continuing obligation of
the property owner. All required landscaped areas shall be cleared of unwanted
vegetation and weeds at least once a year prior to July. Dead landscape plantings shall
be replaced by April of the following year.

Landscape plans for proposed new industrial, commercial or residential
developments shall be included with the site plans submitted to the City for approval.
Trees exceeding 10 inches in diameter, plantings and special site features shall be
shown on all submitted plans and shall clearly indicate items proposed to be removed
and those intended to be preserved.

Yard Setbacks and Open Space.

@)

@

All required street facing exterior yard setbacks in each land use district and the entire
open space of all commercial, and multiple-family dwelling sites exclusive of walks,
drives, parking areas and buildings shall be landscaped and permanently maintained.

Commercial and industrial developments abutting residential properties shall have
their yard setbacks landscaped and/or fenced to protect the abutting residential
properties.

Fences:

)

@

Residential fences, hedges and walls may be located within yard setbacks. Height is
limited to 6 feet in required side, rear or interior yards, 3 feet in any required front
yard or 4 feet if the top 1 foot of the fence is is 75% open, and 3 feet in height in a
Vision Clearance Area. Commercial or industrial properties may have 8 foot high
fences except in a street facing front yard setback.

Materials. Residential fences and walls shall not be constructed of or contain any
material which would do bodily harm such as electric, barbed or razor wire, broken
glass, spikes, or any other hazardous or dangerous materials. Commercial or
industrial properties may have barbed wire at the top of fences over 6 feet in height

138

117



(3) Sight-obscuring fences, walls or landscaping may be required to screen objectionable
activities as part of the City's review and approval process. Sight obscuring means
75% opaque when viewed from any angel at a point 25 feet away. Vegetative
materials must be evergreen species that meet this standard year-round within 3 years
of planting.

(4) Maintenance. Fences shall be structurally maintained in a safe condition of repair and
shall not lean over an adjoining property or sidewalk, have missing sections or slats,
or broken supports.

(d) Parking Areas:

(1) Parking lots shall be screened from abutting residential districts by a combination of
fences, walls, and landscaping adequate to screen lights, provide privacy and
separation for the abutting residential districts.

(2) Parking lots shall have curbed landscaped islands and trees at the ends of parking
rows to facilitate movement of traffic and to break large areas of parking surface. The
minimum dimension of the landscaped area excluding the curbs shall be 3 feet and
the landscaping shall be protected from vehicular damage by wheel guards.

(3) Parking lots containing more than 20 parking spaces shall have a minimum of 5
percent of the area devoted to vehicular circulation and parking areas in landscaping
and trees. Landscaping shall be evenly distributed throughout the parking lot and long
rows of parking spaces shall be interrupted by landscaped islands. The 5 percent
landscaping shall be within or abutting the parking area and shall be in addition to the
required landscaped yard setbacks.

(e) Service Facilities:

Garbage collection areas and service facilities located outside the building shall be screened from
public view and landscaped.

SECTION 9.529 EXTERIOR LIGHTING

Exterior lighting should be provided in parking lots and may be provided elsewhere. All exterior
lighting shall be designed and installed to the following standards:

(a) Uplighting is prohibited. Externally lit signs, displays, building and aesthetic lighting must be
lit from the top and shine downward. The only exception to this requirement is for lighting of a
flag pole. The lighting must be shielded to prevent direct glare and/or light trespass. The lighting
must also be contained to the target area.
(b) All exterior lights shall be designed, located, installed and directed in such a manner as to
prevent glare across the property lines.
(c) All exterior building lighting for security or aesthetics will be full cut-off or shielded type,
not allowing any upward distribution of light.
(d) For purposes of this subsection:

(1) “Glare” means light that causes annoyance, discomfort, or loss of visual
performance and ability.

(2) “Uplighting” means any light source that distributes illumination above a 90 degree
horizontal plane.

139

118



140

(e) Pre-existing non-conforming lighting may be required to be brought into compliance upon a
determination by the City Administrator that such non-conforming lighting is a nuisance.

SECTION 9.530 SIGNS
@) General Sign Provisions:

@) No sign shall, by its light, brilliance, type, design, or character, create a public or
private nuisance. The use of flashing or rotating lights is prohibited.

) Each sign or outdoor advertising display shall be located on the same site as the
use it identifies or advertises or have Conditional Use approval from the City.

?3) No sign shall be constructed or erected such that the vision clearance area or other
areas necessary for a safe sight distance by the traveling public would be inhibited
or impaired.

(b) Perimeter Street Signs:

One sign oriented toward off-site traffic may be provided on-site at each public access point

from a city, county or state road. Such signs shall comply with the following requirements:

(@) Shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in area;

(b) Shall not exceed four (4) feet in height;

(c) Shall use materials and design elements which are complimentary to those used in
development.

(d) May be internally illuminated. When a sign is internally illuminated, including
awnings and canopies, the sign copy shall be lighter than the sign background. The
background shall use a predominance of deep-toned colors or shall be opaque when
the light source is on.

3) Building Signs:

The sign area, location on the building, number of signs, and size of the copy used
shall be determined in consideration of the following factors:

(1) The relationship of the building to the road on site circulation.

(2) The use and location of ground-mounted signs identifying the premises.

(3) The amount of signing for the use which can be seen from a given direction.

(4) The size and design of the building elevation on which the sign would be placed.
(d) Residential Signs and Name Plates:
One name plate not exceeding one 1.5 square foot in area, placed flat against the

building for each dwelling or Home Occupation as defined in this ordinance. One non
illuminated temporary sign not exceeding five (5) square feet in area for the lease,

119



rental or sale of the building or premises on which it is located.

SECTIONS 9.531 through 9.599 reserved for expansion.

ARTICLE 9.6 SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

SECTION 9.601 SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, GENERAL.

This article establishes special development standards unique to land with specific

development constraints. Standards are established for the following development

constraints:

@) Wetlands Development, Section 9.610

(b) Flood Hazard Development, Section 9.620

(c) Hillside Development, Section 9.630

SECTIONS 9.602 through 9.609 reserved for expansion.

SECTION 9.610 WETLANDS DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.

Wetlands are defined as those areas that are inundated or saturated often enough to support a

prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in standing water or saturated soil. Wetlands include

swamps, bogs, marshes and similar areas.

@) Regulation. Development within wetlands is prohibited unless replacement or
enhancement mitigation is accepted by the regulatory agencies. The Oregon Division of
State Lands (DSL) is the coordinating agency for wetland permits. The US Army Corp of
Engineers (Corps) is the federal regulatory agency administering Section 404 of the
National Clean Waters Act. There are also other state and federal coordinating agencies
including DLCD.

(b) Notice. ORS 227.350 specifies that cities shall provide notice of proposed wetlands
development to the Division of State Lands (DSL). The City shall provide notice to the
DSL, the applicant and the owner of record, within 5 working days of the acceptance of
any complete application for the following activities that are wholly or partially within
areas identified as wetlands on the State-wide Inventory of Wetlands or have been
identified in any known wetlands study as possibly containing wetlands.
(1) Subdivisions;

(2) Building permits for new structures;

(3) Other development permits and approvals that allow physical alteration to the land
involving excavation and grading, including permits for removal or fill, or both;

(4) Conditional use permits and variances that involve physical alterations to the land
or construction of new structures; and

TC-90 9/05/06

141

120



©

(d)

O]

®

(9)

(h)

(i)

(5) Planned unit development approvals.

The provisions of Section 9.610 (b) do not apply if a permit from DSL has been issued
for the proposed activity.

Approval of any activity described in Section 9.610 (b) shall include one of the following
notice statements:

(1) Issuance of a permit under ORS 196.600 to 196.905 by DSL is required for the
project before any physical alteration takes place within the wetlands;

(2) Notice from DSL that no permit is required; or

(3) Notice from DSL that no permit is required until specific proposals to remove, fill or
alter the wetlands are submitted.

If DSL fails to respond to any notice provided under Subsection (2) of this section within
30 days of notice, the City approval may be issued with written notice to the applicant and
the owner of record that the proposed action may require state or federal permits.

The City may issue local approval for parcels identified as having potential wetlands on
the State-wide Wetlands Inventory upon providing to the applicant and the owner of record
of the affected parcel a written notice of the possible presence of wetlands and the potential
need for state and federal permits. The City will provide DSL with a copy of the notification
together with a map showing the property location.

Notice of activities authorized within an approved wetland conservation plan shall be
provided to the division within five days following local approval.

Failure by the City to provide notice as required in this section will not invalidate City
approval.

Development Standards:

(1) No building permits shall be issued within designated wetlands unless a permit has
been acquired from DSL and any other regulatory agency having jurisdiction or
documentation is provided indicating that no permit is required.

(2) The City of Lowell shall not provide water and sewer service to any new structures
or development which would encroach upon or adversely affect any designated
wetlands within the Lowell City Limits or Urban Growth Boundary until the
requirements of any permit are met. In the event that that water and sewer service are
required before permit conditions such as mitigation, are accepted by the permitting
agency, such service will only be provided on the condition that if permit conditions
are not met, service will be terminated.

TC-90 9/05/06

142

121



143

SECTION 9.620 FLOOD HAZARD DEVELOPMENT

The City of Lowell’s only Floodplain area is along the shore of Dexter Reservoir and development

in that area is restricted and controlled by the US Army Corps of Engineers.

SECTION 9.621 STATUTORY AUTHORITY, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE, AND

@

(b)

©

(d)

METHODS

STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION

The State of Oregon has in ORS 197.175 delegated the responsibility to local governmental
units to adopt floodplain management regulations designed to promote the public health,
safety, and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the City of Lowell does ordain as
follows:

EINDINGS OF FACT

1) The flood hazard areas of the City of Lowell are subject to periodic inundation
which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption
of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for
flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely
affect the public health, safety, and general welfare.

2 These flood losses may be caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in special
flood hazard areas which increase flood heights and velocities, and when
inadequately anchored, cause damage in other areas. Uses that are inadequately
floodproofed, elevated, or otherwise protected from flood damage also contribute to
flood loss.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this code to promote public health, safety, and general welfare, and to
minimize public and private losses due to flooding in flood hazard areas by provisions
designed to:

1) Protect human life and health;

(2) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;

3) Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and
generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;

4 Minimize prolonged business interruptions;

(5) Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains;
electric, telephone and sewer lines; and streets and bridges located in special flood
hazard areas;

(6) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of
flood hazard areas so as to minimize blight areas caused by flooding;

@) Notify potential buyers that the property is in a special flood hazard area

(8) Notify those who occupy special flood hazard areas that they assume responsibility
for their actions

9) Participate in and maintain eligibility for flood insurance and disaster relief.

METHODS OF REDUCING FLOOD LOSSES

In order to accomplish its purposes, this code includes methods and provisions for:

TC-90 9/05/06

122



144

(1) Restricting or prohibiting development which is dangerous to health, safety, and
property due to water or erosion hazards, or which result in damaging increases in
erosion or in flood heights or velocities;

(2) Requiring that development vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve
such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

3) Controlling the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural
protective barriers, which help accommodate or channel flood waters;

4 Controlling filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase
flood damage;

(5) Preventing or regulating the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally
divert flood waters or may increase flood hazards in other areas.

SECTION 9.622 FLOOD HAZARD DEFINITIONS

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this code shall be interpreted so
as to give them the meaning they have in common usage.

Appeal: A request for a review of the interpretation of any provision of this code or a
request for a variance.

Area of shallow flooding: A designated Zone AO, AH, AR/AO or AR/AH on a
community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a one percent or greater annual
chance of flooding to an average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel
does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flow may be
evident. Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow.

Area of special flood hazard: The land in the floodplain within a community subject to a
1 percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. It is shown on the Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) as Zone A, AO, AH, A1-30, AE, A99, AR. “Special flood

hazard area” is synonymous in meaning and definition with the phrase “area of special
flood hazard”.

Base flood: The flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any
given year.

Base flood elevation (BFE): The elevation to which floodwater is anticipated to rise
during the base flood.

Basement: Any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all
sides.

Building: See "Structure."

Development: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including
but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving,
excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.

Flood or Flooding:

(a) A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry
land areas from:
(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters.

TC-90 9/05/06

123



145

(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any
source.

(3) Mudslides (i.e., mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined
in paragraph (a)(2) of this definition and are akin to a river of liquid and flowing
mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a
current of water and deposited along the path of the current.

(b) The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a
result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding
anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a
natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of
nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and
unforeseeable event which results in flooding as defined in paragraph (a)(1) of this
definition.

Flood elevation study: See “Flood Insurance Study”.

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): The official map of a community, on which the
Federal Insurance Administrator has delineated both the special hazard areas and the risk
premium zones applicable to the community. A FIRM that has been made available
digitally is called a Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM).

Flood Insurance Study (FIS): An examination, evaluation and determination of flood
hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination,
evaluation and determination of mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or flood-related erosion
hazards.

Flood proofing: Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage to real estate or
improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures, and their contents.

Floodway: The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that
must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the
water surface elevation more than a designated height. Also referred to as "Regulatory
Floodway."

Functionally dependent use: A use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is
located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking
facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or
passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities, and does not include long term
storage or related manufacturing facilities.

Highest adjacent grade: The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

Historic structure: Any structure that is:

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by
the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior
as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to
the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

TC-90 9/05/06

124



146

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or
4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either:
a. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or
b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.
Lowest floor: The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building
access or storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest
floor, provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of
the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this code.

Manufactured dwelling: A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built
on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation
when attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured dwelling" does not include
a "recreational vehicle" and is synonymous with “manufactured home”.

Manufactured dwelling park or subdivision: A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land
divided into two or more manufactured dwelling lots for rent or sale.

Mean sea level (MSL): For purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which Base Flood
Elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.

New construction: For floodplain management purposes, “new construction” means
structures for which the “start of construction” commenced on or after the effective date of

a floodplain management regulation adopted by the City of Lowell and includes any
subsequent improvements to such structures.

Recreational vehicle: A vehicle which is:

1. Built on a single chassis;

2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

Special flood hazard area: See “Area of special flood hazard” for this definition.

Start of construction: Includes substantial improvement and means the date the building
permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction,
rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days from the
date of the permit. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent
construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation
of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the
placement of a manufactured dwelling on a foundation. Permanent construction does not
include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it include the
installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement,
footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the
installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as
dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual

TC-90 9/05/06

125



147

start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural
part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the

building.

Structure: For floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed building, including a
gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured
dwelling.

Substantial damage: Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of

restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of
the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Substantial improvement: Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market
value of the structure before the "start of construction™ of the improvement. This term
includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair
work performed. The term does not, however, include either:

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local
code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living
conditions; or

2. Any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a "historic structure.”

Variance: A grant of relief by the City of Lowell from the terms of a flood plain

management regulation.

Violation: The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the
community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development
without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance
required in this code is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is
provided.

SECTION 9.623 GENERAL PROVISIONS

@

(b)

LANDS TO WHICH THIS CODE APPLIES

This code shall apply to all special flood hazard areas within the jurisdiction of the City of
Lowell.

BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS

The special flood hazard areas identified by the Federal Insurance Administrator in a
scientific and engineering report entitled “The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for “Lane
County, Oregon and Incorporated Areas” dated June 5, 2020, with accompanying Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 41039C1695 F, effective on June 2, 1999, and any
revision thereto, are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this code. The
FIS and FIRM panels are on file at Lowell City Hall.

TC-90 9/05/06

126



©

(d)

©)

®

148

COORDINATION WITH STATE OF OREGON SPECIALTY CODES

Pursuant to the requirement established in ORS 455 that the City of Lowell administers and
enforces the State of Oregon Specialty Codes, the City of Lowell does hereby acknowledge
that the Oregon Specialty Codes contain certain provisions that apply to the design and
construction of buildings and structures located in special flood hazard areas. Therefore,
this code is intended to be administered and enforced in conjunction with the Oregon

Specialty Codes.

COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE

COMPLIANCE

All development within special flood hazard areas is subject to the terms of this
code and required to comply with its provisions and all other applicable regulations.

PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE

No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted, or
altered without full compliance with the terms of this code and other applicable
regulations. Violations of the provisions of this code by failure to comply with any
of its requirements (including violations of conditions and safequards established in
connection with conditions) shall constitute a nuisance. See Land Use Development
Code section 9.108 for specific information on enforcement of this code, including
remedies, procedures and penalties. Nothing contained herein shall prevent the City
of Lowell from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy

any violation.

ABROGATION AND SEVERABILITY

(1) ABROGATION

This code is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements,
covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this code and another code,
easement, covenant, or deed restriction conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the
more stringent restrictions shall prevail.

(2) SEVERABILITY

This code and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to be severable. If any
section clause, sentence, or phrase of the code is held to be invalid or
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no
way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this code.

INTERPRETATION

In the interpretation and application of this code, all provisions shall be:

Q) Considered as minimum requirements;
2) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
(3) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes.

TC-90 9/05/06

127



(©)

SECTION 9.624

149

WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

(1) WARNING

The degree of flood protection required by this code is considered reasonable for

requlatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations.

Larger floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased

by man-made or natural causes. This code does not imply that land outside the areas

of special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from

flooding or flood damages.

(2) DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

This code shall not create liability on the part of the City of Lowell, any officer or

employee thereof, or the Federal Insurance Administrator for any flood damages

that result from reliance on this code, or any administrative decision lawfully made

hereunder.

ADMINISTRATION

@

(b)

DESIGNATION OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

The City Administrator and their designee is hereby appointed to administer, implement,

and enforce this code by granting or denying development permits in accordance with its

provisions. The Floodplain Administrator may delegate authority to implement these

provisions.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

Duties of the floodplain administrator, or their designee, shall include, but not be limited to:

(1) PERMIT REVIEW

Review all development permits to determine that:

A
B.

C.

The permit requirements of this code have been satisfied;

All other required local, state, and federal permits have been obtained and
approved.

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is
located in a floodway. If located in the floodway assure that the floodway
provisions of this code in section 9.625 (b) (4) are met; and

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is
located in an area where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available either
through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) or from another authoritative
source. |If BFE data is not available then ensure compliance with the
provisions of sections 9.625 (a) (7); and

Provide to building officials the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) applicable to
any building requiring a development permit.

TC-90 9/05/06

128



O]

150

Review all development permit applications to determine if the proposed
development qualifies as a substantial improvement as defined in section
9.622.

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development
activity is a watercourse alteration. If a watercourse alteration is proposed,
ensure compliance with the provisions in section 9.625 (a) (1).

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development
activity includes the placement of fill or excavation.

INFORMATION TO BE OBTAINED AND MAINTAINED

The following information shall be obtained and maintained and shall be made

available for public inspection as needed:

A.

Obtain, record, and maintain the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea
level) of the lowest floor (including basements) and all attendant utilities of
all new or substantially improved structures where Base Flood Elevation
(BFE) data is provided through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS), Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), or obtained in accordance with section 9.625
(a) (7).

Obtain and record the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the natural
grade of the building site for a structure prior to the start of construction and
the placement of any fill and ensure that the requirements of sections 9.625
(b) (4) and 9.624 (b) (1)(B) are adhered to.

Upon placement of the lowest floor of a structure (including basement) but
prior to further vertical construction, obtain documentation, prepared and
sealed by a professional licensed surveyor or engineer, certifying the
elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including
basement).

Where base flood elevation data are utilized, obtain As-built certification of
the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including
basement) prepared and sealed by a professional licensed surveyor or
engineer, prior to the final inspection.

Maintain all Elevation Certificates (EC) submitted to the community;
Obtain, record, and maintain the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to
which the structure and all attendant utilities were floodproofed for all new
or substantially improved floodproofed structures where allowed under this
code and where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided through the
FIS, FIRM, or obtained in accordance with section 9.625 (a) (7).

Maintain all floodproofing certificates required under this code;

Record and maintain all variance actions, including justification for their
issuance;

Obtain and maintain all hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed as
required under section 9.625 (b) (4).

Record and maintain all Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage
calculations and determinations as required under section 9.624 (b) (4).
Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this
code.

TC-90 9/05/06

129



151

3 REQUIREMENT TO NOTIFY OTHER ENTITIES AND SUBMIT NEW

TECHNICAL DATA

A.

COMMUNITY BOUNDARY ALTERATIONS

The Floodplain Administrator shall notify the Federal Insurance
Administrator in writing whenever the boundaries of the community have
been modified by annexation or the community has otherwise assumed
authority or no longer has authority to adopt and enforce floodplain
management regulations for a particular area, to ensure that all Flood Hazard
Boundary Maps (FHBM) and Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) accurately
represent the community’s boundaries. Include within such notification a
copy of a map of the community suitable for reproduction, clearly
delineating the new corporate limits or new area for which the community
has assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory authority.

WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS

Notify adjacent communities, the Department of Land Conservation and
Development, and other appropriate state and federal agencies, prior to any
alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such
notification to the Federal Insurance Administration. This notification shall
be provided by the applicant to the Federal Insurance Administration as a
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) along with either:

1. A proposed maintenance plan to assure the flood carrying capacity
within the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse is
maintained; or

2. Certification by a registered professional engineer that the project has
been designed to retain its flood carrying capacity without periodic
maintenance.

The applicant shall be required to submit a Conditional Letter of Map

Revision (CLOMR) when required under section 9.624 (b) (3)(C). Ensure

compliance with all applicable requirements in sections 9.624 (b) (3)(C) and

9.625 (a) (1).

REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT NEW TECHNICAL DATA

A community’s base flood elevations may increase or decrease resulting
from physical changes affecting flooding conditions. As soon as practicable,
but not later than six months after the date such information becomes
available, a community shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator of
the changes by submitting technical or scientific data in accordance with
Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 65.3. The
community may require the applicant to submit such data and review fees
required for compliance with this section through the applicable FEMA
Letter of Map Change (LOMC) process.

The Floodplain Administrator shall require a Conditional Letter of Map
Revision prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for:
TC-90 9/05/06

130



4)

152

1. Proposed floodway encroachments that increase the base flood
elevation; and
2. Proposed development which increases the base flood elevation by

more than one foot in areas where FEMA has provided base flood
elevations but no floodway.
An applicant shall notify FEMA within six (6) months of project completion
when an applicant has obtained a Conditional Letter of Map Revision
(CLOMR) from FEMA.

This notification to FEMA shall be provided as a Letter of Map Revision

(LOMR).

SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE
ASSESSMENTS AND DETERMINATIONS

Conduct Substantial Improvement (SI) (as defined in section 9.622) reviews for all
structural development proposal applications and maintain a record of Sl
calculations within permit files in accordance with section 9.624 (b) (2). Conduct
Substantial Damage (SD) (as defined in section 9.622) assessments when structures
are damaged due to a natural hazard event or other causes. Make SD determinations
whenever structures within the special flood hazard area (as established in section
9.623 (b)) are damaged to the extent that the cost of restoring the structure to its
before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of
the structure before the damage occurred.

() ESTABLISHMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

@)

@

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIRED

A development permit shall be obtained before construction or development begins
within any area horizontally within the special flood hazard area established in
section 9.623 (b). The development permit shall be required for all structures,
including manufactured dwellings, and for all other development, as defined in
section 9.622, including fill and other development activities.

A. Floodplain Development Permit Fee Established

1. The City, by resolution, has established fees for application and
issuance of a Flood Hazard Development permit.
2. If any development activity occurs prior to issuing a permit under

this section, the fee for approval of the permit, after the fact, will be
five (5) times the normal cost of the permit as established by
resolution. If a permit is not subsequently issued, the property owner
is responsible, in addition to the permit fee, for all costs to remove
the development. If not approved, the development must be removed
within 90 days of the date of notice of disapproval.

APPLICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

Application for a development permit may be made on forms furnished by the
Floodplain Administrator and may include, but not be limited to, plans in duplicate

TC-90 9/05/06

131



153

drawn to scale showing the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area

in question; existing or proposed structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage

facilities, and the location of the foregoing. Specifically the following information is

required:

A

G.

In riverine flood zones, the proposed elevation (in relation to mean sea
level), of the lowest floor (including basement) and all attendant utilities of
all new and substantially improved structures; in accordance with the
requirements of section 9.624 (b) (2).

Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential
structure will be floodproofed.

Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect licensed in the
State of Oregon that the floodproofing methods proposed for any non-
residential structure meet the floodproofing criteria for non-residential
structures in section 9.625 (b) (3)(C).

Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or
relocated.

Base Flood Elevation data for subdivision proposals or other development
when required per sections 9.624 (b) (1) and 9.625 (a) (6).

Substantial improvement calculation for any improvement, addition,
reconstruction, renovation, or rehabilitation of an existing structure.

The amount and location of any fill or excavation activities proposed.

(d VARIANCE PROCEDURE

)

The issuance of a variance is for floodplain management purposes only. Flood

insurance premium rates are determined by federal statute according to actuarial risk

and will not be modified by the granting of a variance.

CONDITIONS FOR VARIANCES

A

Generally, variances may be issued for new construction and substantial
improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size
contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed
below the base flood level, in conformance with the provisions of sections
9.624 (d) (1C and 1E), and 9.624 (d) (2). As the lot size increases beyond
one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing a variance
increases.

Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the
minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.
Variances shall not be issued within any floodway if any increase in flood
levels during the base flood discharge would result.

Variances shall only be issued upon:

1. A showing of good and sufficient cause;

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in
exceptional hardship to the applicant;

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in

increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,

TC-90 9/05/06

132



O]

154

extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing laws or codes.

E. Variances may be issued by a community for new construction and
substantial improvements and for other development necessary for the
conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that the criteria of section
9.624 (d) (1B-D) are met, and the structure or other development is protected
by methods that minimize flood damages during the base flood and create no
additional threats to public safety.

VARIANCE NOTIFICATION

Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the
issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the Base Flood Elevation will
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance and that such construction
below the base flood elevation increases risks to life and property. Such notification
and a record of all variance actions, including justification for their issuance shall be
maintained in accordance with section 9.624 (b) (2).

SECTION 9.625 PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION

€] GENERAL STANDARDS

In all special flood hazard areas, the following standards shall be adhered to:

@)

@

®)

(4)

ALTERATION OF WATERCOURSES

Require that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of
said watercourse is maintained. Require that maintenance is provided within the
altered or relocated portion of said watercourse to ensure that the flood carrying
capacity is not diminished. Require compliance with sections 9.624 (b) (3)(B) and

9.624 (b) (3)(C).

ANCHORING

A. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting
from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.

B. All manufactured dwellings shall be anchored per section 9.625 (b) (3)(D).

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND METHODS

A. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with
materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.
B. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed

using methods and practices that minimize flood damage.
UTILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

A. WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SEWER, AND ON-SITE WASTE
DISPOSAL SYSTEMS

1. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system.
TC-90 9/05/06

133



®)

(6)

)

155

2. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems
and discharge from the systems into flood waters.

3. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment
to them or contamination from them during flooding consistent with
the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.

B. ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND OTHER
EQUIPMENT

Electrical, heating, ventilating, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and
other equipment and service facilities shall be elevated to at or above one (1)
foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), or two (2) feet above highest
adjacent grade where BFE is not available, or shall be designed and installed
to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components and
to resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and stresses, including the
effects of buoyancy, during conditions of flooding. In addition, electrical,
heating, ventilating, air conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and other
equipment and service facilities shall, if replaced as part of a substantial
improvement, meet all the requirements of this section.

TANKS

A. Underground tanks shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and
lateral movement under conditions of the base flood.

B. Above-ground tanks shall be installed one (1) foot above the Base Flood

Elevation (BFE), or two (2) feet above highest adjacent grade where BFE is
not available, or shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral
movement under conditions of the base flood.

SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS & OTHER PROPOSED DEVELOPMENTS

A. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments
(including proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions)
greater than 50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, shall include within
such proposals, Base Flood Elevation data.

B. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments
(including proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions)
shall:

1. Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

2. Have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and
water systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood
damage.

3. Have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood
hazards.

USE OF OTHER BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA

When Base Flood Elevation data has not been provided in accordance with section
9.623 (b) the local floodplain administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably

utilize any Base Flood Elevation data available from a federal, state, or other source,
TC-90 9/05/06

134



®)

©)

156

in order to administer section 9.625. All new subdivision proposals and other
proposed new developments (including proposals for manufactured dwelling parks
and subdivisions) must meet the requirements of section 9.625 (a) (6).

Base Flood Elevations shall be determined for development proposals that are 5
acres or more in size or are 50 lots or more, whichever is lesser in any A zone that
does not have an established base flood elevation. Development proposals located
within an unnumbered A Zone shall be reasonably safe from flooding. The test of
reasonableness is a local judgement and includes use of historical data, high water
marks, FEMA provided Base Level Engineering data, and photographs of past
flooding, etc. where available.

Residential structures and non-residential structures within an unnumbered A Zone
that are not dry floodproofed must be elevated such that the lowest floor is a
minimum elevation of two feet above highest adjacent grade. Failure to elevate at
least two feet above grade in these zones may result in higher insurance rates.

STRUCTURES LOCATED IN MULTIPLE OR PARTIAL FLOOD ZONES

In coordination with the State of Oregon Specialty Codes:

A. When a structure is located in multiple flood zones on the community’s
Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) the provisions for the more restrictive
flood zone shall apply.

B. When a structure is partially located in a special flood hazard area, the entire
structure shall meet the requirements for new construction and substantial

improvements.
NEW DEVELOPMENT

A. New development, including the construction of dwelling units and other
structures, is not allowed on undeveloped properties within special flood
hazard areas established in Section 9.623(b), unless no practicable site
outside the special flood hazard area is available. For purposes of this
section, a property, on which the area outside the SFHA is less than 2,500
square feet and a 35X35-foot square cannot fit within the area unincumbered
by the SFHA is presumed to have no practical, non-floodplain site available.
A finding based on this standard is an administrative action by the
Floodplain Manager and does not require approval by the City Council. The
burden of proof that such sites are not available, as described herein, rests
with an applicant.

B. Exception to (A) above: New development of recreational facilities and
commercial facilities along the shores of Dexter Reservoir under the control
of the US Army Corps of Engineers for which a permit has been issued by
the Corps, may be permitted conditional upon such development meeting the
requirements of this section.

C. Additional development and redevelopment of currently developed lots
within the floodplain is permitted conditional upon such development
meeting the requirements of this code.

TC-90 9/05/06

135



(b)

157

SPECIFIC STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE (INCLUDING ALL NON-COASTAL)
ELOOD ZONES

These specific standards shall apply to all new construction and substantial improvements
in addition to the General Standards contained in section 9.625 (a) of this code.

(1) FLOOD OPENINGS

All new construction and substantial improvements with fully enclosed areas below
the lowest floor (excluding basements) are subject to the following requirements.
Enclosed areas below the Base Flood Elevation, including crawl spaces shall:

A. Be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by
allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters;
B. Be used solely for parking, storage, or building access;
C. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or
exceed all of the following minimum criteria:
1. A minimum of two openings,
2. The total net area of non-engineered openings shall be not less than
one (1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area, where the
enclosed area is measured on the exterior of the enclosure walls,

3. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above
grade.
4, Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other

coverings or devices provided that they shall allow the automatic
flow of floodwater into and out of the enclosed areas and shall be
accounted for in the determination of the net open area.

5. All additional higher standards for flood openings in the State of
Oregon Residential Specialty Codes Section R322.2.2 shall be
complied with when applicable.

(2) GARAGES

A. Attached garages may be constructed with the garage floor slab below the
Base Flood Elevation (BFE) in riverine flood zones, if the following
reguirements are met:

1. If located within a floodway the proposed garage must comply with
the requirements of section 9.625 (bh) (4).

2. The floors are at or above grade on not less than one side;

3. The garage is used solely for parking, building access, and/or
storage;

4, The garage is constructed with flood openings in compliance with

section 9.625 (b) (1) to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior
walls by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

5. The portions of the garage constructed below the BFE are
constructed with materials resistant to flood damage;
6. The garage is constructed in compliance with the standards in section
9.625 (a); and
TC-90 9/05/06

136



©)

7. The garage is constructed with electrical, and other service facilities
located and installed so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of the base
flood.

B. Detached garages must be constructed in compliance with the standards for
appurtenant structures in section 9.625 (b) (3)(F) or non-residential
structures in section 9.625 (b) (3)(C) depending on the square footage of the

garage.

FOR RIVERINE (NON-COASTAL) SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS
WITH BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS

In addition to the general standards listed in section 9.625 (a) the following specific

standards shall apply in Riverine (non-coastal) special flood hazard areas with Base

Flood Elevations (BFE): Zones A1-A30, AH, and AE.

A BEFORE REGULATORY FLOODWAY

In areas where a requlatory floodway has not been designated, no new construction,

substantial improvement, or other development (including fill) shall be permitted
within Zones A1-30 and AE on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM), unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed
development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development,
will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one foot at

any point within the community.

B. RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

1. New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvement of any

residential structure shall have the lowest floor, including basement,

elevated to at or above one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation
BFE).
2. Enclosed areas below the lowest floor shall comply with the flood
opening requirements in section 9.625 (b) (1).

C. NON-RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

1. New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvement of any

commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have
the lowest floor, including basement elevated to at or above one (1)
foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). Or, together with
attendant utility and sanitary facilities:

i. Be floodproofed so that below the base flood level the structure is

watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of

water;

ii. Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy.

iii. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that

the design and methods of construction are in accordance with
accepted standards of practice for meeting provisions of this

TC-90 9/05/06

158

137



section based on their development and/or review of the structural

design, specifications and plans. Such certifications shall be
provided to the Floodplain Administrator as set forth section
9.624 (b) (2)..
Non-residential structures that are elevated, not floodproofed, shall
comply with the standards for enclosed areas below the lowest floor
in section 9.625 (b) (1).
Applicants floodproofing non-residential buildings shall be notified
that flood insurance premiums will be based on rates that are one (1)
foot below the floodproofed level (e.q. a building floodproofed to the

base flood level will be rated as one (1) foot below.

Additional Recommended Language Provided in Appendix B

D. MANUFACTURED DWELLINGS

1.

Manufactured dwellings to be placed (new or replacement) or
substantially improved that are supported on solid foundation walls
shall be constructed with flood openings that comply with section
9.625 (b) (1);

The bottom of the longitudinal chassis frame beam shall be at or
above Base Flood Elevation;

Manufactured dwellings to be placed (new or replacement) or
substantially improved shall be anchored to prevent flotation,
collapse, and lateral movement during the base flood. Anchoring
methods may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or
frame ties to ground anchors (Reference FEMA’s “Manufactured
Home Installation in Flood Hazard Areas” guidebook for additional
techniques), and;

Electrical crossover connections shall be a minimum of twelve (12)
inches above Base Flood Elevation (BFE).

E. RECREATIONAL VEHICLES

Recreational vehicles placed on sites are required to:

1.
2.

Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, and
Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or jacking

system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities
and security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or
Meet the requirements of section 9.625 (b) (3)(D), including the
anchoring and elevation requirements for manufactured dwellings.

F. APPURTENANT (ACCESSORY) STRUCTURES

Relief from elevation or floodproofing requirements for residential and

nonresidential structures in Riverine (Non-Coastal) flood zones may be

granted for appurtenant structures that meet the following requirements:

TC-90 9/05/06

159

138



4)

160

Appurtenant structures located partially or entirely within the
floodway must comply with requirements for development within a
floodway found in section 9.625 (b) (4).

Appurtenant structures must only be used for parking, access, and/or
storage and shall not be used for human habitation;

In compliance with State of Oregon Specialty Codes, appurtenant
structures on properties that are zoned residential are limited to one
story structures less than 200 square feet, or 400 square feet if the
property is greater than two (2) acres in area and the proposed
appurtenant structure will be located a minimum of 20 feet from all
property lines. Appurtenant structures on properties that are zoned as
non-residential are limited in size to 120 square feet.

The portions of the appurtenant structure located below the Base
Flood Elevation must be built using flood resistant materials;

The appurtenant structure must be adequately anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting
from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of
buoyancy, during conditions of the base flood.

The appurtenant structure must be designed and constructed to
equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls and comply with
the requirements for flood openings in section 9.625 (b) (1);
Appurtenant structures shall be located and constructed to have low
damage potential;

Appurtenant structures shall not be used to store toxic material, oil,
or gasoline, or any priority persistent pollutant identified by the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality unless confined in a
tank installed incompliance with section 9.625 (a) (5).

Appurtenant structures shall be constructed with electrical,
mechanical, and other service facilities located and installed so as to
prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components
during conditions of the base flood.

Additional Optional Language Provided in Appendix B

FLOODWAYS

Located within the special flood hazard areas established in section 9.623 (b) are

areas designated as floodways. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area

due to the velocity of the floodwaters which carry debris, potential projectiles, and

erosion potential, the following provisions apply:

A.

Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial

improvements, and other development within the adopted regulatory

floodway unless:

Certification by a registered professional civil engineer is provided
demonstrating through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed
in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed
encroachment shall not result in any increase in flood levels within

TC-90 9/05/06

139



®)

161

the community during the occurrence of the base flood discharge;
Or,

A community may permit encroachments within the adopted
requlatory floodway that would result in an increase in base flood
elevations, provided that a Conditional Letter of Map Revision
(CLOMR) is applied for and approved by the Federal Insurance
Administrator, and the requirements for such revision as established
under VVolume 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, section 65.12
are fulfilled.

B. If the requirements of section 9.625 (b) (4) are satisfied, all new

construction, substantial improvements, and other development shall comply

with all other applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of section 9.625.

STANDARDS FOR SHALLOW FLOODING AREAS

Shallow flooding areas appear on FIRMs as AO zones with depth designations or as

AH zones with Base Flood Elevations. For AO zones the base flood depths range

from one (1) to three (3) feet above ground where a clearly defined channel does not

exist, or where the path of flooding is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be

evident. Such flooding is usually characterized as sheet flow. For both AO and AH

zones, adequate drainage paths are required around structures on slopes to guide

floodwaters around and away from proposed structures.

A. STANDARDS FOR AH ZONES

Development within AH Zones must comply with the standards in sections

9.625 (a), 9.625 (b), and 9.625 (b) (5).

B. STANDARDS FOR AO ZONES

In AO zones, the following provisions apply in addition to the requirements

in sections 9.625 (a) and 9.625 (b) (5):

1.

New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvement of
residential structures and manufactured dwellings within AO zones
shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated above the
highest grade adjacent to the building, at minimum to or above the
depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM)
(at least two (2) feet if no depth number is specified). For
manufactured dwellings the lowest floor is considered to be the
bottom of the longitudinal chassis frame beam.

New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvements of

nonresidential structures within AO zones shall either:

i. Have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above the
highest adjacent grade of the building site, at minimum to or
above the depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate
Maps (FIRMS) (at least two (2) feet if no depth number is

specified); or

TC-90 9/05/06

140



162

ii. Together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be
completely floodproofed to or above the depth number specified
on the FIRM or a minimum of two (2) feet above the highest
adjacent grade if no depth number is specified, so that any space
below that level is watertight with walls substantially
impermeable to the passage of water and with structural
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. If this method is
used, compliance shall be certified by a registered professional
engineer or architect as stated in section 9.625 (b) (3)(C).

Recreational vehicles placed on sites within AO Zones on the

community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) shall either:

i. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, and

ii. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or
jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect
type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently
attached additions; or

iii. Meet the elevation requirements of section 9.625 (b) (5)(B)(1),
and the anchoring and other requirements for manufactured
dwellings of section 9.625 (b) (3D).

In AO zones, new and substantially improved appurtenant structures

must comply with the standards in section 9.625 (b) (3F).

In AO zones, enclosed areas beneath elevated structures shall comply

with the requirements in section 9.625 (b) (1).

TC-90 9/05/06

141



163

142



164

143



165

144



166

145



167

146



168

147



169

148



170

149



SECTIONS 9.625 through 9.629 reserved for expansion.

SECTION 9.630 HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT

The purpose of this Section is to provide standards governing development of hillside land within
the City to alleviate harmful and damaging effects of on-site erosion, sedimentation, runoff, access
issues and to regulate the effects of excavation and grading on hillsides.

SECTION9.631  SCOPE.

This Section shall apply to all areas of the City where the slope of the land is 15 percent or greater.
In all areas of the City, concurrent with application for a building permit, excavation or fill permit
or land division, the applicant shall provide elevation data adequate to determine slope
characteristics of the property or portions thereof being developed. If the City determines that the
property does have areas of 15 percent slope or greater, then the proposed development shall, in
addition to other applicable City ordinances, rules and regulations, also be reviewed for
compliance with the requirements of Sections 9.630 through 9.635.

SECTION 9.632 HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

(a) General grading. Any grading performed within the boundaries of a hillside
development shall be kept to a minimum and shall take into account the
environmental characteristics of that property, including but not limited to prominent
geological features, existing streambeds, drainage ways, and vegetative cover.

(b) Slope stability. Potential slope instability problems such as slip planes, clay layers and dome-
shaped bedrock shall be identified. Mitigation measures sufficient to render these areas safe for
structures and infrastructure development shall be applied.

171

150



(c) Building sites. Building sites shall be designed to minimize the need to alter the natural grade
during construction of individual buildings. Mass pad grading or continuous terracing of building
sites is not allowed. Lot development plans must demonstrate that the lot is large enough to safely
accommodate both the planned structure(s) and the needed cuts and/or fills.

(d) Retaining walls. Especially on cutbanks, retaining structures are preferred in lieu of larger
excavations to minimize the amount of disturbed area. Retaining walls over 4 feet high shall be
engineered. Smaller walls shall be constructed in conformance with the soils and geology report
recommendations and the engineer’s plans. Designs for retaining structures shall give
consideration to aesthetics and shall use mitigations such as terracing and/or landscaping plants to
reduce the structures’ apparent height and mass.

(e) Cut and Fill Standards.

(1) All cut and fill slopes generally must not exceed a two (horizontal) to one (vertical)
ratio. Slopes which are steeper (i.e. 1:1/2 or 1:1) may be conditionally approved by the City
upon certification, by a qualified engineer that the slope will remain stable under
foreseeable conditions. The certification must delineate any specific stabilization measures
deemed necessary by the engineer.

(2) Cuts and fills shall be designed to avoid movement or episodic erosion during heavy
rains or earthquakes, mechanical overloading of underlying soils and undercutting of
adjacent areas. Fills shall be benched as required to provide a proper bond with the existing
terrain.

(3) Unless proven otherwise by specific soils information to the contrary, cuts shall be
presumed to be incapable of revegetation without special treatments, such as importation
and retention of topsoil. Plans must be submitted for all cuts in excess of 2 feet deep,
showing either a covering for the cut, such as stonework, or a revegetation plan that does
not rely on the ability of the exposed subsoil to support plant growth.

(f) Revegetation. Earthwork shall be designed so that all disturbed areas will be restored to have
at least 6” of topsoil. Revegetation of projects exposing soil shall be aggressively pursued so that
bare ground will not be unnecessarily exposed to the weather between November 1 and May

30. Construction schedules shall be drawn up to limit the period of time that soil is exposed and
unprotected. The existing vegetative ground cover should not be destroyed, removed, or disturbed
more than 15 days prior to grading or construction of required improvements. Soil exposed during
the removal or significant disturbance of ground cover vegetation shall be built upon (i.e. covered
with gravel, a slab, foundation or other construction), landscaped (i.e. seeded or planted with
ground cover) or otherwise protected within 15 days of grading or other pre- development activity.
Provided, however, that these restrictions do not apply during the months of June, July, August
and September.

() Modification of Public Street Standards. Street width, grade and alignment, right-of-way
width, and sidewalks in hillside areas shall be designed to minimize changes to existing topography
and provide adequate access to adjacent properties. Cuts and fills in excess of four feet deep shall
be considered significant and should be avoided where feasible. Modifications to established
standards, if necessary to meet these requirements, shall be made as provided below.

172

151



173

Q) Street grades may exceed the maximum grade standards of the Lowell Standards
for Public Improvements where topographical conditions make it impractical to meet those
standards, subject to the following conditions:
A Driveways and intersections shall not be permitted where street grades
exceed 15 percent.
B. Street grades of over 15 percent shall not be permitted for a distance of
more than 200 feet in any 600 foot long section of street.
C. Street grades shall not exceed 20 percent for any distance.

2) Requirements specified in the Lowell Standards for Public Improvements for
public right-of-way width, pavement width, and/or installation of sidewalk may
be modified where topographical conditions make it impractical to meet those
standards, subject to the following conditions:

A Reduction in public right-of-way width may be made if the
proposed right-of-way is large enough to accommodate the street and
sidewalk(s), and 5-foot public utility easement is provided on each side

of the right-of-way and slope easement is provided where required.

B. Reduction in pavement width to 21 feet may be made for access lanes
with less than 250 vehicle trips per day, that are not dead-end, and that
will be no parking on one side. For not more than one 200 foot section of
street per block, any road may be reduced to 20 feet if the road is not
dead-end, will be no parking on both sides along the narrowed portion,
and if at least one parking space is provided for each lot taking driveway
access from the narrowed portion; said parking shall be within 200 feet of
the driveway access. On all other roadways, the City Council may allow
the above described pavement width reductions only after consultation
with the City Engineer and the local fire official, and upon a finding that
the proposed width will provide adequate parking and emergency vehicle
access. All no parking areas shall be signed and curbs shall be painted
yellow.

C. All sidewalks shall be a minimum of 5 feet wide. All streets shall
have vertical curbs adjacent to sidewalks. For short distances, street-side
sidewalks may be relocated to an off-street location that will provide
equivalent service, conditional upon right-of-way being available or public
access easements being provided. Sidewalks may be approved for only one
side of the street for access lanes with less than 250 vehicle trips per day.
On all other roadways, the City Council may allow sidewalks on only

one side upon a finding that a single sidewalk will provide adequate pedestrian
safety.

(3) The City may require modification of street improvement construction
standards for any portion of proposed street improvements being constructed in  areas
of special concern identified in the Soils and Geology Report.

(h)  Storm Drainage. In addition to City-wide storm drainage system development

standards contained in Section 9.520, hillside storm drainage systems shall be
designed to:

152



(1) Protect cuts, fills, roadways, retaining walls and structures from saturation, slope
failure and settling.

(2) To anticipate and mitigate the rapid movement of debris into catch basins, and
storm water flows bypassing catch basins.

(3) Ensure-tasure that concentrated storm water is disposed of in a controlled manner
does not create significant erosion or adverse effects on downhill properties.

(i) Preservation of Trees and Existing Vegetation. Construction shall be done in a manner that
avoids unnecessary disruption to vegetation and trees. Temporary protective fencing shall be
established around all trees designated for protection prior to the commencement of grading or
other soil disturbance. Grade changes and trenching shall not be made within 5 feet of the dripline
of such trees without written concurrence from an arborist that such changes will not cause
permanent damage to the tree.

SECTION 9.633 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS FOR LAND DIVISIONS.

When land division application is submitted in which all or a portion of the development contain
slopes which are 15% or greater, the following additional reports and plans shall be submitted:

(@) Surveyor’s Report. A scale drawing of the property prepared by a licensed surveyor,
showing existing topography at two-foot contour intervals, watercourses both permanent and
intermittent, and natural physical features such as rock outcroppings, springs and wetlands. Also
show the location and dimensions of any existing buildings or structures on the property where the
work is to be performed, the location of existing buildings or structures on land of adjacent owners
that are within 100 feet of the property.

(b) Soils and Geology Report. This report shall be prepared by a suitably experienced and
qualified licensed engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer, and shall include the following
for each proposed lot and for public right-of-way areas proposed for development which have
slopes greater than 15%:

1) Data regarding the subsurface condition of the whole site such as the nature, depth
and strength of existing soils, depth to bedrock, location of soft soils, hard stratum, potential slip
planes, geological weak zones, clay seams or layers, unconsolidated deposits, and previous grading
activities. The report shall also address existing water tables, springs, watercourses and drainage
patterns, seismic considerations, and any offsite geologic features or conditions that could impact
or be impacted by onsite development. Locations of exploratory boreholes shall take into
consideration the terrain and geology of the site instead of following a general grid pattern.

2) Conclusions and recommendations regarding the stability of underlying slopes
and of proposed cuts and fills, any remedial or preventative actions that are required, any
limitations upon the use of the site, grading procedures, requirements for vegetation preservation
and revegetation, special coverings or treatments for areas that cannot be readily revegetated,
erosion control methods, drainage systems, setbacks from slopes or other geologic features,
foundation and building design, and backfills.

174

153



(c) Engineer’s Plans. Detailed plans shall be prepared for all proposed public improvements
by a suitably qualified licensed civil engineer. Detailed plans for private development on each
parcel may also be provided and if provided, will be accepted as required building permit
submittals. These plans shall be based upon the findings of the required soils and geology report,
and shall include the following information:

(1) Infrastructure Plan. A scale drawing plan showing the location and approximate grade
of all proposed streets, walkways and alleys, and the location of proposed easements, lots,
common areas, parks, open space and other land proposed for dedication to the City. Also
indicate the location of utilities such as sewer and water lines.

(2) Grading Plan. A scale drawing grading plan of the property, showing existing and
proposed finished grades at two-foot contour intervals, retaining walls or other slope
stabilization measures, cuts and fills, and all other proposed changes to the natural
grade. Include cross-sectional diagrams of typical cuts and fills, drawn to scale and
indicating depth, extent and approximate volume, and indicating whether and to what
extent there will be a net increase or loss of soil.

(3) Drainage Plan. Detailed plans and locations of all proposed surface and subsurface
drainage devices, catch basins, area drains, dewatering provisions, drainage channels,
dams, sediment basins, storage reservoirs, and other protective devices together with a
map showing drainage areas, the complete drainage network, including outfall lines and
natural drainageways which may be affected by the proposed development, and the
estimated run-off of the area(s) served by the drains.

(4) Erosion Control Plan. Descriptions and/or drawings of proposed changes to soils and/or
existing vegetation on the site; specific methods proposed to restore disturbed
topsoil, minimize the identified potential erosion problems, and  revegetate areas which
will be stripped of existing vegetation; and a schedule showing when each stage of the
project will be started and completed, including the total area of soil surface which is to be
disturbed during each stage and the  length of time soils will be left exposed.

(5) Affidavit. The authoring engineer shall include a statement that the plans are consistent
with the soils and geology report required by this Section, and with the standards of Section
9.632.

(d) One copy of each individual lot survey, geotechnical report and development engineering plans
submitted and approved with the tentative plan shall be filed with the City at the time of submission
of the final plat and one copy shall be provided to the purchaser of the individual lot.

SECTION 9.634 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS FOR BUILDING PERMITS.

The requirements of this shall section apply to all submissions for building permits and for
excavation and grading permits applied for separately from a building permit.

(a) Surveyor’s Report. A scale drawing of the property prepared by a licensed surveyor,
showing existing topography at two-foot contour intervals, watercourses both permanent and
intermittent, and natural physical features such as rock outcroppings, springs and wetlands. This
information is in addition to required development site plan submittal requirements.

(b) Soils and Geology Report. This report shall be prepared by a suitably experienced and

175

154



qualified licensed engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer, and shall include the following
for areas to be developed having 15% or greater:

Q) Data regarding the subsurface condition of the site such as the nature, depth
and strength of existing soils, depth to bedrock, location of soft soils, hard stratum, potential slip
planes, geological weak zones, clay seams or layers,unconsolidated deposits, and previous
grading activities. The report shall also address existing water tables, springs, watercourses and
drainage patterns, seismic considerations, and any offsite geologic features or conditions that
could impact or be impacted by onsite development.

2 Conclusions and recommendations regarding the stability of underlying  slopes
and of proposed cuts and fills, any remedial or preventative actions that are required, any
limitations upon the use of the site, grading procedures, requirements for vegetation preservation
and revegetation, special coverings or treatments for areas that cannot be readily revegetated,
erosion control methods, drainage systems, setbacks from slopes or other geologic features,
foundation and building design, and backfills.

(c) Blueprints. Detailed plans shall be prepared for all proposed development on the lot. These
plans shall become part of the working drawings dept on the jobsite, shall be based upon the
findings of the required soils and geology report, and shall include the following information, in
addition to the requirements of the relevant building codes and other City regulations:

(1) Grading Plan. A grading plan of the property, drawn to scale, showing existing and
proposed finished grades at two-foot contour intervals, retaining walls or other slope
stabilization measures, cuts and fills, and all other proposed changes to the natural grade.
Include cross-sectional diagrams of typical cuts and fills, drawn to scale and indicating
depth, extent and approximate volume, and indicating whether and to what extent there
will be a net increase or loss of soil.

(2) Drainage Plan. Detailed plans for collecting on-site drainage including the locations of
all proposed surface and subsurface drainage devices, roof drains, foundation drains, catch
basins and area drains showing clearly where and how they discharge into the public storm
drainage system shall be provided. The direction of surface stormwater flows shall be
indicated with arrows.

(3) Erosion Control Plan. Descriptions and/or drawings of proposed changesto  soils
and/or existing vegetation on the site; specific methods proposed to restore disturbed
topsoil, minimize the identified potential erosion problems, and revegetate areas which
will be stripped of existing vegetation; and a schedule showing when each stage of the
project will be started and completed, including the total area of soil surface which is to
be disturbed during each stage and the length of time soils will be left exposed.

(4) Elevations. Elevation views of all four sides of proposed structures shall be prepared
which clearly show existing and proposed grades, across the entire length of the
structure all the way to the property lines on each side.

(5) Trees. Location of any trees to be retained and the location of protective fencing to be
installed prior to construction shall be shown.

(6) Special Inspections. If any special soils or foundation inspections are required, this
shall be noted on the plans.

176

155



(7) Affidavit. The authoring engineer shall include a statement that the plans are consistent
with the soils and geology report required by this Section, with standards of Section 9.632
and with any conditions of approval for the underlying development.

SECTION 9.635 APPROVAL PROCESS AND AUTHORITY.

(d) Land Divisions. For land divisions, review and approval under this Section shall be
undertaken as a part of the land division development approval process in accordance with
Sections 2.320 through 2.340..

(b) Building Permits. Submissions for Building Permits subject to requirements of Section 9.634
shall be reviewed by the City and approved by the City Administrator.

(c) Excavation and Fill Permits. Submissions for excavations or fills of greater than 50 cubic yards
on property subject to hillside development standards and requiring submissions in accordance
with Section 9.634 will be reviewed by the City and approved by the City Administrator.

SECTION 9.636 FEES AUTHORIZED.

The City Council, by Resolution, may establish a fee for review and approval of hillside
development applications.

(a) For land divisions, the fee shall be per lot for every lot containing any slopes which are 15%
or greater and shall be in addition to the land division application fee.

(b) For building and excavation and fill permits requiring review and approval by the City, a flat
fee shall be established that is in addition to the established building permit fee schedule.

(c) Fees shall be set no higher than the cost for paid and contracted staff to review and approve
the submittals and reasonable overhead.

SECTIONS 9.637 through 9.699 reserved for expansion.

ARTICLE 9.7 USE STANDARDS

SECTION 9.701 USE STANDARDS

In addition to the Development Standards specified in Articles 9.5 and 9.6, there are also uses that
may occur in more than one district. The following Sections specify development standards

applicable to specialized uses within the City of Lowell.

SECTION 9.702 HOME OCCUPATION STANDARDS

A Home Occupation is a Conditional Use Type Il process in all zoning districts outside of the

boundaries of the Regulating Plan fer—any—singlefamiby—home and must comply with the

Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251 and the following additional standards:

@) The home occupation shall be secondary to the main use of the dwelling as a residence.

(b) All aspects of the home occupation shall be contained and conducted within a completely
enclosed building.

177

156



(©

(d)

(©)

®

()

(h)

0]

The home occupation shall be limited to either a pre-existing garage or accessory
structure, or not over 25% of the living area of the dwelling. If located within an

accessory structure or a garage, the home occupation shall not utilize over 500 square feet
of floor area.

No structural alteration, except the provision of an additional entrance, shall be permitted
to accommodate the home occupation. Such structural alteration shall not detract from the
outward appearance of the property as a residential use.

No persons other than those residing within the dwelling shall be engaged in the home
occupation unless approved by the Planning Commission.

No window display or sample commodities displayed outside the dwelling shall be
allowed.

No materials or mechanical equipment shall be used which are detrimental to the residential
use of the dwelling or any nearby dwellings because of vibration, noise, dust, smoke, odor,
interference with radio or television reception, or any other factor.

No parking of customer vehicles in a manner or frequency that would cause disturbance or
inconvenience to nearby residents or that would necessitate the provision of additional off-
street parking shall be allowed.

No signs shall be permitted except for a single name plate not to exceed 1.5 square feet in
area.

SECTION 9.703 BED AND BREAKFAST STANDARDS.

A Bed and Breakfast is a Conditional Use for any single-family home and must comply
with the Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251 and the following additional
standards:

@

(b)

(©

That all residences used for Bed and Breakfasts be either business-owner occupied or the
business-owner must reside adjacent to the Bed and Breakfast. The business-owner shall
be required to reside on or immediately adjacent to the property to the property occupied
by the Bed and Breakfast, and occupancy shall be determined as the Bed and Breakfast or
adjacent dwelling location being the primary residence of the owner during the operation
of the Bed and Breakfast. “Business-owner” shall be defined as a person or persons who
own the property and Bed and Breakfast outright; or who have entered into a lease
agreement with the property owner(s) allowing for the operation of the Bed and Breakfast.
Such lease agreement to specifically state that the property owner is not involved in the
day-to-day operation or financial management of the Bed and Breakfast, and that the
business-owner is wholly responsible for all operations associated with the Bed and
Breakfast, and has actual ownership of the business.

That no more than three (3) units (sleeping rooms) are provided on a daily basis or weekly
period, not to exceed 14 consecutive days, for the use of travelers or transients for a charge
or fee. Provision of a morning meal is customary as implied by this title.

That only one ground or wall sign, constructed of a non-plastic material, non-interior
illuminated of 6 square feet maximum size be allowed. Any exterior illumination of

178

157



(d)

©)
®

()

(h)

0]

signage shall be installed such that it does not directly illuminate any residential
structures adjacent or nearby the Bed and Breakfast.

That each Bed and Breakfast until shall have one off-street parking space , and the owner
occupant shall have two parking spaces. Off- street parking must comply with safety
regulations in paragraph (i) of this section.

That the primary resident on site be at least 21 years old.

The primary residence may be altered or adapted for Bed and Breakfast use, including
expansion of floor area. Additional structures may be allowed to accommodate additional
units, but must be in conformance with all setbacks and lot coverage of the underlying
zone.

Transfer of business ownership of a Bed and Breakfast shall be subject to all requirements
of this Section, and subject to Conditional Use Permit approval and conformance with the
criteria of this Section. All Bed and Breakfasts receiving their initial approvals prior to the
effective date of adoption of this code section shall be considered as approved, conforming
uses, with all previous approvals, conditions and requirements remaining in effect upon the
change of business ownership. Any further modifications beyond the existing approvals
shall be in conformance with all requirements of this Section.

An annual inspection by the Lane County Health Department shall be conducted as
required by the laws of Lane County or the State of Oregon.

Off-street parking, ingress and egress must meet the minimum requirements of the
Lowell Fire District.

SECTION 9.704 RESIDENTIAL CARE HOME STANDARDS

A Residential Care Homes for 5 or less people and Group Child Care Homes for 12 or less children
are a Permitted Use in a dwelling located within any residential district with the following
additional standards:

@)

(b)

©

Outdoor areas shall be provided in accordance with State Standards for each type of use.
The outdoor area shall be adequately fenced in order to provide for the safety and privacy
of those at the facility.

The Care Home shall be readily accessible for people with disabilities and fire or other
emergency access.

The Care Home shall meet all applicable state licensing requirements. Proof that these
requirements are met shall be provided.

179

158



180

SECTION 9.705 RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY STANDARDS

A Residential Care Facility other than a private residence for more than 12 children or

for more than 5 adults is a Permitted Use in the Multi-family Residential District, R-3 and may be
allowed in accordance with the Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251 in the Single- family
Residential R-1 District with the following additional standards:

(a) Access shall be from a designated arterial or collector street.

(b) Requirements for front, rear, side and street side yards, for Care Facilities shall comply
with the District standards in which the facility is located.

(c) Additional landscaping, privacy fencing, buffers or other screening devices may be
required to screen or protect the facility or adjacent properties.

(d) Outdoor areas shall be provided in accordance with State Standards for each type of use.
The outdoor area shall be adequately fenced in order to provide for the safety and privacy
of those at the facility.

(e) The Care Home shall be readily accessible for people with disabilities and fire or other
emergency access.

() The Care Home shall meet all applicable state licensing requirements. Proof that these
requirements are met shall be provided.

SECTION 9.706 MULTIPLE-FAMILY STANDARDS

Medium density multiple-family housing is allowed in the R-3 residential district up to 15 units
per acre and high density Multiple-family housing may be allowed in accordance with the
Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251.

@) Access shall be from a designated arterial or collector street.

(b) Requirements for front, rear, side and street side yards, for high density shall comply with
the R-3 District standards.

(c) On-site bicycle storage facilities, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways shall be provided for
developments exceeding six dwelling units.

(d) The City may require conditions of approval when deemed necessary for the mitigation
of potential adverse impacts on a neighborhood or adjacent areas:

(e) The City may regulate the type of dwelling units for high density multiple-family to
mitigate potential adverse impacts on a neighborhood or adjacent areas.

) Additional landscaping or screening on the property boundary may be required to

mitigate potential adverse impacts on adjacent properties.

SECTHON-threugh-9-709-reserved-for-expansion:

159



181

SECTION 9.707 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU) STANDARDS

Accessory dwellings, where allowed, are subject to review and approval through a Type | procedure,

pursuant to SEEHONOIP08. and shall conform to all of the following standards:

(a) Number of units.

(1) A maximum of two ADUs are allowed per legal single-family dwelling. The ADUs
may either be:

2) In a detached building, in a portion of a detached accessory building (e.g. above a
garage or workshop); or

(3)  Anattached or interior unit to the primary dwelling (e.g., an addition or the conversion
of an existing floor).

(b) Floor area.
(1) A detached ADU shall not exceed 900 square feet, or 85 percent of the primary dwelling’s
floor area, whichever is smaller; and

(2) An attached or interior ADU shall not exceed 900 square feet of floor area, or 85 percent
of the primary dwelling’s floor area, whichever is smaller. Except, an ADU that results from
the conversion of a level of floor (e.g., basement, attic, or upper story) of the primary dwelling
may occupy the entire level of the floor, even if the floor area of the ADU exceeds 900 square
feet.

(c) Other Development Standards. ADUs shall meet all other development standards (e.g., height,
setbacks, lot coverage, etc.) for buildings in the zoning district, except that:

(1) Conversion of an existing legal non-conforming structure to an ADU is allowed, provided
that the conversion does not increase the non-conformity;

(2) No off-street parking is required for an ADU;

(3) In all zoning districts where ADUs are permitted, properties with two ADUs are allowed
an additional 20 percent greater lot coverage; and

(4) ADUs are not included in density calculations.

160



182

SECTION 9.708 COTTAGE CLUSTER STANDARDS

Cottage cluster developments, where permitted, are subject to review and approval through a Type
I procedure pursuant to SECHONOI208. and shall conform to the following standards:

(a) Cottage cluster housing development and design standards.

(1)  Table ¥ Development Standards.

Cottage Size The gross floor area of each cottage shall
not exceed 1,200 square feet

At least 50% of the cottages in each cluster
shall have a gross floor area less than 1,200

square feet.

“Gross floor area” does not include: a)
interior space with a ceiling height of six
feet or less; b) basements; c) architectural
projections, such as bay windows,
fireplaces, or utility closets, that are less
than 24 inches deep and six feet wide; d)
attached, unenclosed porches; and e)

garages or carports.

The footprint may not exceed 1,000 square
feet.

Density
A cluster shall consist of no more than ten
and no fewer than four units.

Cottage cluster developments are exempt
from density calculations.

Setbacks Setbacks shall conform to the setback
standards for the underlying zoning district.

Cottages shall be no more than 30 feet from
the common open space, measured from the
facade of the cottage to the nearest
delineation of the common open space.

Distance between structures shall be a
minimum of five feet.

Maximum Height 25 feet

Maximum Lot Coverage Maximum_for all structures in cottage
developments shall not exceed 60%

161



183

Design Standards.
(1) Each cottage shall have a primary entry oriented to a common open space.

(2) Off-Street Parking Requirements.

A. One off-street parking space shall be required for each cottage.
B. One additional guest parking space shall be provided for every four cottages. rounded

up to the next whole number. up to a maximum of six guest parking spaces.
C. The off-street parking requirements may be waived or reduced. by the City

Administrator or designee. if sufficient on-street parking is available within 800 feet of
the property.

(3) Parking Design.

A. Cottage cluster projects with fewer than 16 cottages are itted parking clusters
of not more than five contigious spaces.
B. Cottage cluster projects with 16 cottages or more are permitted parking clusters of

not more than eight contigious spaces.

C. Parking clusters must be from other spaces at least four feet of
landscaping.
[Commumd [HHO2]: This graphic will be updated.
e
GROUPED T
PARKING T T
T THET
i A COTTAGES
SHARED OPEN SPACE |l
V5 T
INTERNAL PEDESTRIAN (RS WLE
CIRCULATION g TR Sl l
4 P

D. Parking areas shall be accessed onl a private driveway or public alley.

162



184

E. Carports or garages are permitted, but not required.

1. Individual attached garages, up to 200 square feet shall be exempted from the
calculation of maximum lot coverage.

2. Individual detached garages must not exceed 400 square feet in floor area.
3. A carport is not considered a garage. See definitions SECHOMPX.

F. Screening of parking areas and parking structures shall be accomplished by
landscaping, fencing, or walls at least three feet in height from common courtyards
and public streets.

(4) Walkways.
A. A system of interior walkways shall connect each cottage to at least one other
cottage and to the parking area.

(5) Community Assets.

A. Common open space. Each cluster of cottages shall have at least 150 square feet of
open space per cottage. The common open space must be a single, contigious piece.

1. The common open space shall be developed with a mix of landscaping, lawn
area, pedestrian paths or paved courtyard area, and may also include
recreational amenities. Impervious elements of the common courtyard shall not
exceed 75% of the total common open space area.

2. Pedestrian paths must be included in the common open space. Paths that are
contiguous to a common open space shall count toward the common open
space’s minimum dimension and area. Parking areas, required setbacks, and
driveways do not qualify as part of the common open space.

B. Community Building. A single-story community building, of no more than 1,200
square feet, is permitted so long as it is incidental in use to the dwelling units. A
community building converted from an existing building may be larger than 1,200
feet.

SECTION 9.709 FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME STANDARDS

The following shall apply to family child care homes, as defined in _ Family child care

homes:

(a) Are residential uses according to ORS 329A.440 and shall not be regulated as home occupations;

(b) Shall not be prohibited by the governing documents of planned communities or condominiums,
in accordance with the requirements of ORS 94.779 and ORS 100.023; and

(c) Shall not be subject to any condition that is more restrictive than conditions imposed on other
residential dwellings in the same zone.

SECTION 9.710 MANUFACTURED DWELLING STANDARDS

163



185

164



Removal. If a manufactured dwelling is removed, the owner shall immediately disconnect and
cap all sewer, water and utility services. The owner of the property shall within (6) months of
said removal, make application for and replace said manufactured dwelling with an approved
manufactured dwelling, or remove the foundation and all protrusions above the slab or ground
level. Should the property owner fail to comply, the city may contract for removal and
disconnection, and collect the costs thereof from the property owner or place a lien against the
real property for the unpaid amount.

186

165



187

166



SECTION 9.714 TEMPORARY MANUFACTURED DWELLING USE

@)

(b)

Application: Applicants for a temporary use permit shall make written application for a
Site Plan Review on the City's Application Form. The City Administrator or designee
Planning-Cemmission may grant approval for a Temporary Manufactured Dwelling use
subject to the procedures of & The Applicant shall provide a statement of
intended use and the estimated length of time for the temporary use on the application form
and shall submit the site plan information specified in &

Approved Uses: A temporary Manufactured dwelling use may be granted for the
following uses:

(1) A manufactured dwelling as a temporary accessory dwelling to a residence for
designated members of the immediate family. The temporary use shall be subject to
a Periodic Review by the City Administrator or designee Planning-Commission. The
manufactured dwelling and all accessory elements shall be removed within 60 days
of non occupancy by the designated family members.

(2) Temporary on-site residence for owners whose dwelling is under construction or a
dwelling that has been destroyed.

(3) Caretaker residence for a commercial or industrial facility.

(4) Temporary offices accessible to the general public for use during construction or
remodeling.

(5) Temporary building space for public and semi-public agencies.

(6) Other temporary uses may be considered by the Planning Commission under the

188

167



©)

(d

©)

(f)

Conditional Use procedures specified in Section 9.251.

Conditions of Use: The Temporary Use Permlt may be limited to a specified time period
A in accordance

W|th the followmg provisions:

(1) Compliance with the State of Oregon Manufactured Dwelling Installation Standards.

(2) Manufactured dwellings shall not be included or sold as a part of any property on
which it is located.

(3) Manufactured dwellings shall not be expanded or attached to a permanent structure.

(4) Manufactured dwellings shall have an approved perimeter enclosure permitted by the
State of Oregon.

(5) Manufactured dwellings shall have approved connections to utility systems and the
owners shall be allowed to hook to an existing residential sewer service lateral.

(6) Use shall be limited to the function as set forth in the application for the temporary
permit.

(9) The manufactured dwelling shall comply with residential setback requirements and
shall be sited so as to have the least possible impact on adjacent properties or
adjoining streets.

Renewal: The permit as issued shall not exceed the designated approval period. The City
shall notify holders of a permit at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of expiration.
Applicants for renewal of a temporary use permit shall reapply and submit the same
information as required for the original permit.

Right of Revocation: The City shall have the right to revoke any Temporary Use Permit
granted under this section with thirty (30) days notice, if upon inspection, the use is found
to be in noncompliance with the application for which the permit is issued.

Removal: If the Manufactured Dwelling is required to be removed from the site, the owner
of the property shall remove the foundation and all additions to the Manufactured Dwelling
and permanently disconnect and secure all utilities. The City may perform the work and
place a lien against the property for the cost, after 60 days from the date on

which the Manufactured Dwelling is required to be moved from the site. This condition
shall not apply in the event that another approved Manufactured Dwelling is placed on the
original foundation within 60 days of the removal of the original unit.

SECTION 9.715 MANUFACTURED DWELLING PARKS

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), Chapter 446 and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR), Chapter
918, and Chapter 10 of the OMDS specify the standards and regulations for Manufactured
Dwelling Parks in the State of Oregon. This Section contains additional supporting standards for
all Manufactured Dwelling Parks located within the City of Lowell as permitted in Chapter 10 of
the OMDS. In cases of conflict, the state standards of Chapter 10 shall govern.

@)

(b)

Where Permitted: Slass—“A~erB~“Manufactured Dwellings and prefabricated structures
are permitted in all Manufactured Dwelling Parks. Manufactured dwelling parks are
permitted in the City's R-3 Residential District, in accordance with the standards of Section
9.716 and 9.717 and the provisions for Conditional Use approval, Sections 9.251.

Minimum Site Area: An area that provides space for four or more manufactured dwellings

189

168



together with all conditions and standards required by Chapter 10 of the OMDS and the
standards contained in this Section.

(c) Density: Maximum density of the park shall not exceed 10 units per gross acre.

(d) Access: Manufactured Dwelling Park access shall occur from a public Collector or Arterial
street.

(e) Permitted Uses: Manufactured Dwelling Parks may contain manufactured dwellings,
prefabricated structures, and accessory structures, community laundry, and recreation
facilities and other common buildings for use by park residents only, and one residence
other than a manufactured dwelling for the use of a caretaker or a manager responsible for
maintaining or operating the park.

)] Conditions: Upon granting site plan approval for a manufactured dwelling park, the
Planning Commission may require conditions of approval including but not limited to any
of the following where such are deemed necessary for the mitigation of adverse impacts on
an adjacent area:

(2) Additional landscaping or screening on the park boundary.
(3) Increased sethacks from park boundaries.
SECTION 9.716 IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS

Park standards shall conform to The Oregon Manufactured Dwelling and Park Specialty Code
(OMDS) within the Park boundary and shall conform to City Standards when abutting public

streets.

@)

(b)

©

Streets: Public streets located within the Park and the first 100 feet of Park streets
connecting to a public street shall conform to City standards.

Perimeter Setbacks: Distance of a manufactured home or accessory structure from an
exterior park boundary or public right of way shall be 20 feet.

Landscaping: All common areas within a manufactured dwelling park; exclusive of
required buffer areas, buildings, and roadways; shall be landscaped and maintained in
accordance with the following minimum standards per each 1,000 square feet of open area:
(1) One tree at least six feet in height.

(2) Five shrubs or accent plants.

(3) The remaining area containing walkways and attractive ground cover at least 50%
of which must be living ground cover within one year of planting.

(4) All manufactured dwelling spaces shall be similarly landscaped within six months of
manufactured dwelling placement. Such landscaping shall be the responsibility of the
park owner.

190

169



(d)

O]

Perimeter Property Screening: The entire perimeter of the manufactured dwelling park
shall be screened except for driveways and the Clear Vision Area. The following minimum
standards shall apply:

(1) At least one staggered row of trees:
A. Deciduous trees - 10 feet high, spaced 30 feet apart
B. Evergreen trees - 5 feet high, spaced 15 feet apart.

(2) Atleast five 5-gallon shrubs or ten 1-gallon shrubs per 1,000 square feet of area.

(3) One row of evergreen hedge at least four feet in height within two years of planting,
or;
A six-foot high fence or masonry wall providing a uniform sight-obscuring screen,
or;
An earth berm combined with a fence or evergreen hedge which forms a sight
obscuring screen at least six feet in height. Plantings shall obtain the required height
within two years of installation.

(4) The remaining area shall contain an attractive ground cover.

Utilities: All manufactured dwelling parks must provide each lot or space with storm
drainage, municipal sanitary sewer, municipal water, electric and communication cables,
including telephone and television cables. All utilities shall be located underground and
there shall be no exposed radio or TV antenna. Easements shall be dedicated where
necessary to provide service to all utilities. Utilities shall be connected in accordance with
state requirements and the manufacturer's specifications.

191

170



SECTION 9.717 DESIGN AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

@

(b)

Professional Design Team: The applicant for a proposed Manufactured Dwelling Park
shall certify in writing that the services of a registered architect, landscape architect or
registered engineer licensed by the State of Oregon have been utilized in the design and
development of the project.

Site Plans Required: The Conditional Use Application for a new or expansion of an
existing Manufactured Dwelling Park shall be accompanied by 10 copies of the site plan
of the proposed park containing the following information in addition to that required in
Section 9.204 for Application Site Plans. The plot plan shall show the general layout of the
entire Park and shall be drawn to a scale not smaller than one inch representing 40 feet.
The drawing shall include all of the following information:

@)

@

©)

4)

®)

(6)

@
®)
©)

(10)

(1)

(12)

Name and type of Park, address, owner, Design Team members, scale, date and north
point of plan.

A vicinity plan showing streets and properties within 500 feet of the development
site.

Plot plan of park boundaries and the location, dimensions and number of
Manufactured Dwelling spaces. Number each space and demonstrate that planned
spaces can reasonably accommodate the proposed Manufactured Dwelling types.
Location and dimensions of existing and proposed structures, together with the usage
and approximate location of all entrances, heights, and gross floor areas. Heights shall
not exceed the maximums specified for the zoning District.

Location and dimensions of roads, accessways, parking, loading facilities, garbage
receptacles and walkways.

Extent, location, arrangement, and proposed improvements of all open space,
landscaping, fences and walls.

Location of lighting fixtures for park spaces and grounds.
Location and area of recreation spaces and buildings in square feet.

Locations where park water, sewer, drainage and utility systems connect to City
systems including easement locations.

Location of existing and proposed fire and irrigation hydrants.
Enlarged plot plan of a typical Manufactured Dwelling space, showing location of
the stand, patio, storage space, accessory structures, parking, sidewalk, utility

connections, and landscaping.

Avrchitectural drawings and sketches demonstrating the planning and character of the
proposed development.

192

171



(13) A construction time schedule and development phasing plan.

(14) Detailed plans required. Prior to application for a building permit to construct an
approved Park or to expand an existing Park, the applicant shall submit five copies
of the following detailed plans:

A legal survey.

Plans of new structures.

Water, sewer and utility systems.

Utility easements.

Road, sidewalk, and patio construction.

Drainage system, including existing and proposed finished grades.

Recreational improvements including swimming pool plans approved by the

Oregon State Board of Health.

H. Landscaping and irrigation plans.

EMMUOm»

SECTIONS 9.718 through 9.719 reserved for expansion.

SECTION9.720  RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES IN COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

@

(b)

Existing Houses: In the C-1 commercial districts pre-existing residential structures may
be occupied by commercial uses permitted in the commercial district provided the structure
meets minimum building and safety standards as provided in the Building Code and
provided further that the City approves a development plan for vehicular access and
parking, signing, and exterior lighting in accordance with the Site Plan Review provisions
of Section 9.250.

Second Story Residences: Single-family or Multi-family housing may be permitted above
or behind a commercial business in the C-1 and-C-2 Districts in accordance with the
Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251 and the standards contained herein. Setback
and siting standards of the single-family or multi-family District shall apply when located
behind the commercial business.

(1) On-site Parking shall be provided for both the commercial and residential uses in
accordance with Section 9.514.

(2) There are no yard setbacks or open space required for second story residences.

SECTION9.721 PUBLIC & SEMI-PUBLIC STANDARDS

Public and Semi-public uses represent a wide range of "Civic" use types that include utilities,
public safety, maintenance, governmental, recreational, educational, cultural, religious, and civic
assembly uses or facilities. Public and semi-public uses shall comply with the following additional
standards in addition to the standards of the land use district in which the public use is located:

193

172



(a) Public and Semi-public uses in residential districts may be permitted in accordance with
the Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251 and the standards contained herein.

(b) Public and Semi-public uses in commercial or industrial districts may be permitted in
accordance with the Site Plan Review provisions of Section 9.250 and the standards
contained herein.

(c) Requirements for front, rear, side and street side yards, for public uses shall not be less than
that specified for the Primary or Overlay District unless specifically approved as part of
the conditional use or site plan review procedures. Yard setbacks may be increased by one
(1) foot for each foot by which the structure height exceeds that specified for the district.

(d) Additional landscaping, fencing, buffers or other screening devices may be required to
screen or protect adjacent properties or the street.

(e) Off-street parking for the specified use shall comply with Section 9.514.

) In a residential district, all equipment and material storage shall be within an enclosed
building unless it is deemed necessary and approvable in accordance with the Conditional
Use provisions of Section 9.251.

(9) Exterior lighting shall be directed away from abutting residential properties in conformance
with Section 9.529.

(h) Offices and workshops should be located in the commercial or industrial districts whenever
possible and should not be permitted in a residential district unless it is deemed necessary
and approvable in accordance with the Conditional Use provisions of Section 9.251.

(i) Public utility facilities including treatment, maintenance and storage areas should not be
permitted in a residential or commercial district unless it is deemed necessary and
approvable in accordance with the Conditional Use or Site Plan Review provisions of
Section 9.251 or Section 9.250.

()] The minimum lot size requirement may be waived on finding that the waiver will not result
in noise or other detrimental impacts to adjacent or nearby property.

SECTION 9.722 AGRICULTURAL USE STANDARDS

Limited agricultural use of property in the City is allowed under the following conditions and

standards:

(a) The raising of crops in the general field of horticulture including berry, brush, tree, flower

and vegetables for on-site home consumption is allowed on any lot within the city, as long
as such crops are controlled and don’t become a nuisance to neighboring properties.

194

173



(b)

(©

(d)

195

The raising of crops in the general field of horticulture including berry, brush, tree, flower
and vegetables for sale is a Home Occupation Conditional Use in all residential districts.

The raising of pigs and roosters is not permitted within Lowell. The raising of other farm
animals in the general field of animal is permitted within the Residential or Industrial
Districts under the following conditions:

(1) Fencing must be designed and constructed to confine all animals within the property
line.

(2) A Setback of 100 feet from any off-site residence is required for all farm animal
housing, feeding and watering facilities. Exception: fowl, rabbits and similarly sized
animal require no additional setbacks.

(3) Proper sanitation shall be maintained in conformance with applicable health
standards for all farm animals. Proper sanitation includes:
A. Not allowing animal waste to accumulate.
B. Not allowing animal waste to contaminate groundwater or drainageways.
C. Taking the necessary steps to ensure tasure odors resulting from farm animals is
not detectable beyond the property line.
D. Storing all farm animal food in metal or other rodent proof containers.

(4) Minimum area requirements include:

A. Minimum property area of 3 acres. Exception: fowl, rabbits and
similarly sized animal require no additional lot area.

B. Minimum area per large size animal (Similar to cows or horses) over six months
of age — one per every two acres.

C. Minimum area per medium size animal (Similar to sheep, goats or llamas) over
six months of age — one per every one half acre.

D. No more than 10 fowl, rabbits or similarly sized animals may be maintained on
each 20,000 sf of property or portion thereof.

(5) Itis the responsibility of the applicant for a Conditional Use Permit to clearly
demonstrate that proper health and sanitation standards will be maintained
and that potential nuisance factors such as noise, smell and unsightly
conditions are mitigated.

(6) Property owners wishing to maintain animals on smaller lots or exceed the
maximum number of animals permitted may have those standards modified
as a Conditional Use in accordance with Section 9.251.”

It is the continuing responsibility of the owner to properly contain or restrain all animals
or fowl and to maintain proper sanitation at all times, and further provided that such raising
activities are not part of nor conducted in conjunction with any live stock sales yard,
slaughter house, or animal by-product business.

174



O

The above standards are the minimum standards applicable to property located within the
City of Lowell, additional site area or other standards may be required to comply with
Health and Sanitation Standards.

SECTIONS 9.723 through 9.799 reserved for expansion.

ARTICLE9.8 IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENTS AND

STANDARDS SECTION 9.801 IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES

In addition to other requirements, public improvements and connections to public facilities
installed by a developer or land divider shall conform to the requirements of this Code and all
design standards and construction specifications of the City, and shall be installed in accordance
with the following procedure. As used in this section, the terms developer and land divider includes
the property owner. In the event that the persons making application for a land division or
development are not the owner of record, a signed and notarized authorization must be provided
by the owner, authorizing the applicant to act in his behalf.

@

(b)

©

(d)

©)

®

Improvement work shall not be commenced until plans and specifications have been
reviewed and approved by the City. To the extent necessary for evaluation of an
Application, the plans may be required before approval of a Site Plan or land division
Tentative Plan.

Improvement work shall not commence until after the City is notified, and if work is
discontinued for more than 72 hours, for any reason other than inclement weather, it shall
not be resumed until after the City is notified.

Improvements shall be constructed under the inspection of the City. The City may require
changes in the design and construction in the public interest, or if unusual conditions arise
during construction to warrant the change.

Underground utilities, sanitary sewers and storm drains installed in streets shall be
constructed prior to the surfacing, or resurfacing, of the streets. Stubs for service
connections for underground utilities and sanitary sewers shall be located to prevent the
necessity for disturbing the street improvements when service connections are made.

"As-built" drawings and specifications of the installed public improvements shall be filed
with the City upon completion of the improvements.

The City, by Resolution, shall establish a fee, as a percentage of construction costs for all
off-site and on-site public improvements, for costs to the City associated with the design
review, inspection and administration for construction of public improvements required
under this Code. If after City design approval, design changes are made which require
significant staff time for additional review, the City may require reimbursement of such
costs.

196

175



SECTION 9.802 SPECIFICATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENTS

Design and construction standards have been adopted by the City of Lowell although they may not
address each situation. The developer or land divider shall prepare and submit to the City for
review and approval, plans and specifications in compliance with this Code and other applicable
City ordinances. Where specific City standards are lacking, the plans and specifications shall
comply with the intent of this Code based upon engineering standards appropriate for the
improvements proposed. Specifications shall be prepared for the design and construction of all
required public improvements and such other public facilities the developer installs.

SECTION 9.803 REQUIRED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Those standards and requirements for public improvements contained in Article 9.5, which are
determined by the City to be applicable are required to be constructed unless specifically exempted
or deferred as a part of the application approval and identified as such in the City’s Notice of
Decision. The City will not issue a building permit until all required improvements have been
constructed and accepted by the City or appropriate security for construction is provided in
accordance with Section 9.806.

SECTION 9.804 PUBLIC USE DEDICATIONS

(a) Within or adjacent to a residential development, a parcel of land may be required to be set
aside and dedicated to the public by the developer for park use in conformance with the
Lowell Park Master Plan. If land is dedicated for park space, a Park SDC credit and/or
reimbursement will be provided to the development if the dedication qualifies as meeting
Park Capital Improvement Plan needs.

(b) If the City or other public agency indicates it desires to acquire a portion of a proposed land
division for a public purpose not already dedicated as a condition of approval, or if the City
has been advised of such interest by a school district or other public agency, and there is
reasonable assurance that steps will be taken to acquire the land, then the City may require
that those portions of a land division be reserved for public acquisition

SECTION 9.805 IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT

Before City final approval of a development, site plan or land division, the developer or land
divider shall file with the City an agreement between developer or land divider and the City,
specifying the period within which required improvements and repairs shall be completed and
providing that, if the work is not completed within the period specified, the City may complete the
work and recover the full cost and expense, together with court costs and attorney fees necessary
to collect said amounts from the developer or land divider. The agreement shall also provide for
reimbursement of the City's cost of inspection in accordance with Section 9.801 (f).

SECTION 9.806 SECURITY

(a) The developer or land divider shall file with the agreement, to assure full and faithful
performance thereof, one of the following:
(1) A surety or performance bond executed by a surety company authorized to transact
business in the State of Oregon in a form approved by the City Attorney; or

197

176



(b)

(©

(2) A personal bond co-signed by at least one additional person together with evidence
of financial responsibility and resources of those signing the bond sufficient to
provide reasonable assurance of ability to proceed in accordance with the agreement
to the satisfaction of the City Council; or

(3) A cash or negotiable security deposit.

Such assurance of full and faithful performance shall be for a sum approved by the City as
sufficient to cover the cost of the improvements and repairs, including related engineering
and incidental expenses, and to cover the cost of City inspections and other costs.

Prior to acceptance of required public improvements, the developer or land divider
shall file one of the above listed assurances with the City, in an amount  equal to 20% of
actual construction costs, as a warranty towards defects in materials and workmanship
identified for a period of no less than one year after
City acceptance of the public improvements. The City may agree to a longer
warranty period in lieu of the above required assurances.

SECTION 9.807 NONCOMPLIANCE PROVISIONS

@)

(b)

©

If the developer or land divider fails to carry out provisions of the agreement, the City shall
provide written notice to the developer or land divider and the surety specifying the details
of noncompliance. Unless the City allows more time for compliance because of
circumstances beyond the developer or land divider's control, within 30 days after receiving
the notice, the developer or land divider or the surety shall commence compliance and
proceed diligently to comply with the agreement.

If the developer or land divider or the surety does not begin compliance within the 30 days

or the additional time allowed by the City, or compliance is not completed within the time

specified in granting the land division approval, the City may take the following action:

(1) Notify the developer or land divider and the surety of the developer or land divider's
failure to perform as required by this Code and the agreement.

(2) Demand payment from the developer or land divider or the developer or land divider's
surety for the unfulfilled obligation.

(3) Enter upon the site and carry out the obligation in accordance with the provisions of
the approval and agreement.

(4) If the security for the obligation is a performance bond, notify the surety that
reimbursement for City expenses for fulfillment of the obligation is due and payable
to the City. If the security is a deposit of cash or other assets, appropriate as much of
the deposit as is necessary to recoup City expenses.

(5) Void all approvals granted in reliance on the agreement.

If the bond or other required security is not sufficient to compensate the City for expenses
incurred to fulfill the obligation, the amount due to the City for the obligation is a lien in
favor of the City upon the entire contiguous real property of the owner of the land subject
to the obligation.

198

177



(d) The lien attaches upon the filing with the City Recorder of notice of the claim for the
amount due for the fulfillment of the obligation. The notice shall demand the amount due,
allege the insufficiency of the bond or other security to compensate the City fully for the
expense of the fulfillment of the obligation, and allege the developer or land divider's
failure to fulfill the required obligation.

(e) The lien may be foreclosed in the manner prescribed by law for foreclosing other liens on
real property.

()] The remedies set forth for non-compliance are cumulative. In addition to the remedies set
forth above, non-compliance by the developer or his surety with any term of a performance
guarantee shall entitle the City to pursue any civil remedy permitted by law.

SECTION 9.808 DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS

The City of Lowell has adopted the public improvement design and construction standards for
public improvements contained in the current editions of the following:

(a) City of Lowell Standards for Public Improvements.

(b) City of Lowell Public Works Construction Standards, consisting of:
(1) Vol. I, Technical Specifications for Public Works Construction, and
(2) Vol. 11, Standard Details.

SECTION 9.809 MODIFICATIONS PERMITTED

The City Administrator is authorized to approve modifications to the adopted design and
construction standards of the City of Lowell. Any modification that is made under this
authorization must be upon the recommendation or in consultation with the City Engineer. Such
modifications may be initiated by the City Engineer or be made upon written request from a
developer or contractor designing and/or constructing public improvements within the City of
Lowell. Such modifications may be improved on a one-time basis only. Permanent modifications
require the further approval of the City Council.

@) One-time Modifications: The City Administrator may approve one-time modifications for
a particular public improvement upon written request if, after consultation with the City
Engineer, it is determined that the requested modification would not adversely impact
safety, life span and/or maintenance and repair requirements of the improvement.

(b) Permanent Modifications: If a particular construction standard or specification requirement
is no longer appropriate as established in the adopted construction standards, the City
Engineer and/or the City Administrator may recommend a permanent modification to the
standard. Permanent modifications will be adopted by Resolution by the City Council and
become a part of the City’s adopted design and construction standards.

SECTION 9.8529.810 APPLICABILITY OF LANE COUNTY STANDARDS

For public improvements that are constructed within the public rights-of-way owned and
controlled by Lane County, coordination is required with Lane County Public Works Department

199

178



and the required Lane County permits must be obtained. In the event of a conflict between the City
of Lowell's adopted design and construction standards with those of Lane County, Lane County
standards will take precedence unless jointly agreed upon otherwise by the Lane County Public
Works Department and the City Engineer for the City of Lowell.

SECTION 9.110 through 9.189 Reserved for
Expansion SECTION 9.190 DEFINITIONS

(a) Rules of Construction.  The following rules of construction shall apply unless
inconsistent with the plain meaning of the context of this Code:

(1) Tense: Words used in the present tense include the future tense.

(2) Number: Words used in the singular include the plural, and words used in the plural
include the singular.

(3) Shall and May: The word "shall" is mandatory; the word "may" is permissive.

(4) Gender: The gender may include the feminine, masculine and neuter which can
mean any of those forms.

(5) Headings: If there is any conflict or inconsistency between the heading of an article,
section or paragraph of this Code and the context thereof, the said heading shall not
be deemed to affect the scope, meaning or intent of such context.

(b) Definitions. The words and phrases used in this Code shall have the following meaning:

ABUT: Contiguous to or immediately joined. For example, two lots with a common property line
are considered to be abutting.

ACCESS: The way or means by which pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicles shall have safe,
adequate and usable ingress and egress to property.

ACCESS MANAGEMENT: Regulation of access to streets, roads, and highways from abutting
property, public and private roads and driveways.

ACCESSWAY: A right-of-way or easement, not located within a street right-of-way, that
provides a space for pedestrian and / or bicycle passage.

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU): Means an interior, attached, converted, or detached
residential structure that is used in connection with, or that is accessory to, a single-family

dwelling.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE OR ACCESSORY USE: A structure or use incidental,
appropriate and subordinate to the main use of property and located on the same lot as the main
use.

ADVERSE IMPACT: An impact that is detrimental to or contrary to the desired effect or so
opposed as to cause harmful interference. A negative effect that is detrimental to the public welfare
or injurious to people, property or the community environment.

ALLEY: A public way which affords only a secondary means of access to

200

179



property.

ALTERATION: Any change, addition or modification in construction or occupancy.

BASEMENT: A story partly or wholly underground. A basement shall be counted as a story for
purposes of height measurement where more than one-half of its height is above the average level
of the adjoining ground.

BED and BREAKFAST: A dwelling where travelers are lodged for sleeping and dining purposes
under the provisions of local or state law governing such facilities.

BIKEWAY:: The general term for the four basic types of bikeways:

(@) Bikes lanes are paved 5 to 6-foot wide designated lanes adjacent to (vehicle) travel lanes.

(b) Shoulder Bikeways are where bicyclists travel within the roadway's paved shoulder.
Typically, shoulder bikeways are four to six feet in width.

(c) Shared Roadways are roadways where bicyclists and motor vehicles share the travel lane.

(d) Multi-Use Paths are separated from vehicular traffic. They are two-way pathways about
10 feet wide used by pedestrians, bicyclists and joggers.

BOARDING AND/OR ROOMING HOUSE: A building where lodging, with or without meals,
is provided for compensation, but shall not include Homes for the Aged, Nursing Homes or Group
Care Homes.

BUILDING: Any structure used or intended for supporting or sheltering any use or occupancy.

BUILDING HEIGHT: The vertical distance from the average adjacent building grade to the
highest point of the roof.

BUILDING INSPECTOR: An individual with duties and authority to enforce all building codes
and the provisions of this Code in accordance with Section 9.209, Building Permits.

BUILDING LINE: A line on a plat or map indicating the limit, beyond which buildings or
structures may not be erected. Also referred to as the Setback line, the area between the building
or setback line and the property line is referred to as the "yard."”

CARPORT: A building forming a shelter for a vehicle, open on at least two sides.

CHILD CARE CENTER: A child care facility that is certified by the Oregon Department of
Education Office of Child Care as a child care center.

CHURCH: A building, together with its accessory buildings and uses, where persons regularly
assemble for worship, and which building, together with its accessory buildings and uses, is
maintained and controlled by a religious body organized to sustain public worship.

CITY: The City of Lowell, Oregon.
CLINIC: Single or multiple offices for physicians, surgeons, dentists, chiropractors, osteopaths,
and other members of the healing arts, including a dispensary in each such building to handle only

merchandise of a nature customarily prescribed by occupants in connection with their practices.

CLINIC, SMALL ANIMAL: A business establishment in which veterinary services are rendered

201

180



to small domestic pets on an out-patient.

CLUB: A facility owned or operated for a social, educational, or recreational purpose, to which
membership is required for participation and which is neither operated primarily for profit nor to
render a service which is customarily carried on by a business.

COMMUNITY CENTER: A facility owned and operated by a governmental agency or a non-
profit community organization which is open to any resident of the neighborhood in which the
facility is located or to any resident of the City or surrounding area, provided that the primary
purpose of the facility is for assembly, and provided further that no permanent or temporary
commercial eating or drinking facilities shall be operated on the premises.

COMMUNITY SEPTIC SYSTEM: A sewage treatment and disposal system serving two or
more dwelling units.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: A city plan for the guidance of growth and improvement of the
City, including modifications or refinements which may be made from time to time.

COUNCIL: The City Council of the City of Lowell, Oregon, which is the governing body of said
City.

DECIDING AUTHORITY: The City Administrator, City Planning Commission or City
Council, which ever is responsible for making a decision on an application.

DEVELOPMENT: Means any physical change to improved or unimproved real estate, including
but not limited to, improved or unimproved real estate, including but not limited to, buildings or
other structures, mining, dredging, filling, land clearing, grading, paving, excavation, or drilling
operations, but not including maintenance such as grass mowing or planting, vegetation control,
removal of noxious plants or non-native vegetation, tree thinning for fire control or diseases, and
removal of dangerous trees or materials.

DRAINAGEWAY: Means a constructed or natural channel or depression that may at any time
collect and convey water. A drainageway and its drainage reserve function together to manage
flow rate, volume, and water quality. A drainageway may be permanently or temporarily
inundated. In addition, any water course as seen on the City’s most recent Local Wetlands
Inventory map shall be considered a drainageway.

DLCD: Department of Land Conservation and Development.

DWELLING A building or portion thereof, which is occupied in whole or in part as a home,
residence, or sleeping place, either permanently or temporarily by one (1) or more families.
“Dwelling” includes manufactured homes, as defined in ORS 446.003, and prefabricated
structures, as defined in ORS 455.010.

DWELLING, MULTI-FAMILY (ARPARTMENT): A building or portion thereof designated for
occupancy by three (3) or more households living independently of each other, with the number
of households in residence not exceeding the number of dwelling units provided.

202

181



DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY: A detached building, other than a recreational vehicle,
designed for and occupied by not more than one household.

DWELLING, TWO-FAMILY (DUPLEX): A detached building designed for and occupied by
not more than two (2) households living independently of each other.

DWELLING UNIT: A single unit providing complete independent living facilities, designed for
occupancy by one (1) household, and including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating,
cooking and sanitation.

EASEMENT: A grant of the right to land for specific purposes without ownership.
FACADE TRANSPARENCY: The side of a building that faces a public street having clear glass.

Clear glass shall be glass that allows the transfer to light through it and can be seen through. Facade
Transparency is also known as Fenestration.

FACT: Something that has actual existence, an actual occurrence or a piece of information
presented as having objective reality. In the Land Use Hearing Process, facts are the information
submitted as evidence that is relied upon in making a decision on a land use issue. The justification
for the decision shall be based on the criteria, standards and facts set forth in the hearing.

FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME: A home that is registered or certified by the Oregon
Department of Education Office of Child Care to provide child care in the provider’s home to not
more than 16 children, including children of the provider, regardless of full-time or part-time
status. A family child care home is a residential use.

FENCE, SIGHT-OBSCURING: A continuous fence, wall, evergreen planting or combination
thereof, constructed and/or planted so as to effectively screen the particular use from view.

FLOOR AREA: The area included within the surrounding exterior walls of a building or portion
thereof, exclusive of vent shafts and courts. The floor area of a building or portion thereof, not
provided with surrounding exterior walls, shall be the usable area under the vertical projection of
the roof or floor above.

GARAGE, PRIVATE: A fully enclosed detached accessory building or a fully enclosed portion
of the main building for the parking of automobiles of the occupants of the premises.

GARAGE, PUBLIC: A building other than a private garage used for the care, repair, parking or
storage of automobiles.

GRADE (GROUND LEVEL): The average elevation of the finished ground level at the centers
of all walls of a building.

HOME OCCUPATION: A lawful occupation carried on by a resident of a dwelling, where the
occupation is secondary to the main use of the property as a residence provided the use does not
alter the character of the dwelling , there is no exterior display of stock and no employees other
than family members.

HOTEL/MOTEL: A building or group of buildings used for transient lodging containing more
than 5 guest rooms without guest room cooking facilities used primarily for sleeping purposes.

203

182



On-site restaurant facilities may also be provided.

HOUSEHOLD: A social unit composed of those living together in the same dwelling.

LCDC: Land Conservation and Development Commission.

LOADING SPACE: An off-street space or berth on the same lot with a building for the temporary
parking of a commercial vehicle while loading or unloading merchandise or materials, and which

abuts upon a street, alley or other appropriate means of access.

LOT CONSOLIDATION: The legal incorporation of two or more existing lots or parcels of land
to form a single, larger property.

LOT (PARCEL): A unit of land that is created by a legal division of land.

LOT (THROUGH): A lot that has frontage on two streets, and where the lot frontages do not
intersect.

MANUFACTURED DWELLING: A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is

built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when
attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured dwelling" does not include a

"recreational vehicle" and is synonymous with “manufactured home,” as defined in ORS 446.003.

NEIGHBORHOOD ACTIVITY CENTERS: Schools, parks, and other like sites.

NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE LOT OR USE: A lawful existing structure, lot, or use, at
the time this Code, or any amendment thereto, becomes effective which does not conform to the
standards of the zone or district in which it is located.

OCCUPANCY: The purpose for which a building, or part of a building, is used or intended to be
used.

OWNER: An individual, association, partnership, or corporation having legal or equitable title to
land, other than legal title held for purpose of security only.

PARCEL.: See LOT.

PARKING SPACE: An off-street enclosed or unenclosed surfaced area of not less than 180
square feet, not less 8 feet wide and 18 feet in length, exclusive of maneuvering and access area,
permanently reserved for the temporary storage of one automobile, and connected with a street by
a surfaced driveway which affords ingress and egress for automobiles.

PARTITION: Either an act of partitioning land or an area or tract of land partitioned.

PARTITION LAND: To divide land into two or three parcels of land within a calendar year, but
does not include:

204

183



(@) A divisions of land resulting from a lien foreclosure, foreclosure of a recorded contract for
the sale of real property or the creation of cemetery lots.

(b) An adjustment of a property line by the relocation of a common boundary where an
additional unit of land is not created and where the existing unit of land reduced in size by
the adjustment complies with any applicable zoning Code.

(c) Asaleorgrant by a person to a public agency or public body for state highway, county road,
city street or other right-of-way purposes provided that such road or right-of-way complies
with the applicable comprehensive plan.

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION: A continuous, unobstructed, reasonably direct route intended
and suitable for pedestrian use between two points. Pedestrian connections include but are not
limited to sidewalks, walkways, accessways, stairways and pedestrian bridges.

PEDESTRIAN WAY: A right-of-way for pedestrian traffic.
PLANNING COMMISSION: The Planning Commission of the City of Lowell.
PLAT: A final subdivision plat, replat or partition plat.

(@) Partition Plat: A final map and other writing containing all the descriptions, locations,
specifications, provisions and information concerning a partition.

(b) Subdivision Plat: A final map and other writing containing all the descriptions, locations,
specifications, dedications, provisions and information concerning a subdivision.

(c) Replat: The act of platting the lots, parcels and easements in a recorded subdivision or
partition plat to achieve a reconfiguration of the existing subdivision or partition plat or to
increase or decrease the number of lots in the subdivision.

PROFESSIONAL OFFICE: An office occupied by doctors, dentists, accountants, attorneys,
optometrists, architects, professional engineers or surveyors or persons engaged in similar
occupations.

PROPERTY: A lot or parcel, or a single unit of land which, at the time of application for a
building permit, is designated by its owner or developer as a tract to be used, developed or built
upon as a unit, under single ownership or control.

(a) Corner Property: A lot or parcel at least two adjacent sides of which abut streets other
than alleys, provided the angle of intersection of the adjacent streets does not exceed 135°.

(b) Through Property: A lot or parcel having frontage on two parallel or approximately
parallel streets other than alleys.

(c) Panhandle Property: A lot or parcel which has access to a right-of-way by means of a
narrow strip of land which is part of that parcel.

PROPERTY LINE: The legal boundary of a lot or parcel. The division line between two units of
land.

205

184



(@) Front Property Line: The lot or parcel line separating the property from a street other
than an alley, and in the case of a corner property, the shortest property line along a street
other than an alley.

(b) Rear Property Line: The lot or parcel line which is opposite and most distant from the
front property line.

(c) Side Property Line: Any lot or parcel line not a front or rear property line.

PROPERTY WIDTH: The average horizontal distance between the side lot lines, ordinarily
measured parallel to the front lot line.

PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENT: The relocation of a common property line between two
abutting properties.

PUBLIC AND SEMI-PUBLIC BUILDING OR USE: A building or use, owned or operated by
a religious, charitable, or other nonprofit organization; a public utility; or any social agency such
as a church, school, auditorium, meeting hall, library, art gallery, museum, fire station, cemetery,
park, playground, community center or similar use.

REQUIRED BUILD-TO-LINE (RBL): Means a set building line on a lot, measured parallel
from the front and/or corner side lot line, where the structure must be located. Facade articulation,
such as window or wall recesses and projections are not counted as the building facade line, which
begins at the applicable facade wall.

RIGHT-OF-WAY : A continuous strip of land between property lines allowing a right of passage
usually containing a street, railroad or other passageway.

ROADWAY: : The portion of a street right-of-way developed for vehicular traffic.

SALE OR SELL: Every disposition or transfer of land in a subdivision or partition or an interest
or estate therein.

SERVICE STATION, AUTOMOBILE: A place or station designed and used primarily for the

supplying of motor fuel, oil, lubrication and accessories to motor vehicles, but excluding major
repair and overhauling.

SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM: Any approved method of sewage treatment including but not
limited to a municipal system, septic tank and drainfield and sand filter systems.

SETBACK: A line within a property boundary defining a locational limit for buildings, or
other defined uses that creates an area or yard between the property line and the setback line.

SIDEWALK: A pedestrian walkway with permanent surfacing.

SIGN: Any medium including its structure and component parts, which is used or intended to be
used to attract attention to the subject matter for advertising purposes or identification.

SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED: Means a dwelling unit located on its own lot that shares one
or more common or abutting walls with one or more dwelling units on an adjacent lot. Single-

206

185



207

Family Attached shall also be considered to be a “rowhouse,” “attached house,” “townhouse,” or

“common-wall house.”

STORY: That portion of a building included between the upper surface of any floor and the upper
surface of the floor next above, except that the topmost story shall be that portion of a building
included between the upper surface of the topmost floor and the ceiling above. (See basement).

STREET OR ROAD: A public or private way that is created to provide ingress or egress for
persons to one or more lots, parcels, areas or tracts of land and including the term "road,"
"highway," "lane," "drive" "avenue," "alley" or similar designations.

@

(b)

(©
(d)
©)

®

Arterial: A street of considerable continuity which is primarily a traffic artery for
interconnection between large areas.

Collector: A street supplementary to the arterial street system and a means of
interconnection between arterials; used for through traffic and access to small areas.

Minor street: A street intended primarily for access to abutting properties.
Cul-de-sac: A short dead-end street terminated by a vehicular turnaround.

Half street: A portion of the width of a street, usually along the edge of a subdivision,
where the remaining portion of the street could be provided in another subdivision.

Limited access street: A means of access to property that is limited by law for public
roads or by posting by an owner for private roads.

STRUCTURAL ALTERATION: Any change to the supporting members of a structure
including foundations, bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams, girders or structural change in
the roof or in the exterior walls.

STRUCTURE: That which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, or any
physical work built up of parts joined together in some definite manner.

SUBDIVIDE LAND: To divide an area or tract of land into four or more lots within a calendar

year.

SUBDIVISION: Either an act of subdividing land or an area or tract of land subdivided.

TENTATIVE PLAN: A tentative plan is the application, supplemental data and map showing the
general design of the proposed subdivision or partition, submitted to the City for approval under
the provisions of ORS 92 and Section 9.220 of the Lowell Land Development Code.

USE: The purpose for which land or a structure is designed, arranged or intended or for which it
is occupied and maintained.

YARD:

(&) Exterior Yard A yard area abutting a street right-of-way created by a setback line.

186



208

(b) Interior Yard A yard area adjacent to a property line created by a setback line that
may be either a side yard or rear yard abutting another property.

(c) Rear Yard An interior yard opposite the Front Yard.

(d) FrontYard An exterior yard facing a street. For corner lots the smallest street
facing dimension shall be the front of the property.

(e) Street Side Yard: The yard of a corner lot not designated the Front Yard.

ZERO PROPERTY LINE: A lot or parcel line having no setback therefrom and may equally
divide a common wall in a building.

187



	00_101822_CC agenda
	1_Appointments
	2_Pickett application
	3_George application
	4_Joint meeting agenda sheet
	5_Joint meeting packet



